
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - November 2017

Hampton Inn and Suites
4301 Martin Way E.

Olympia,  WA



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS

STAFF

Bud Sizemore 
Chair

Julia Patterson 
Vice Chair

Ed Troyer Chris Stearns

Senator 
Steve Conway

Senator 
Lynda Wilson

Representative 
David Sawyer

Representative 
Brandon Vick

David Trujillo
Director

Amy Hunter
Deputy Director



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

Hampton Inn and Suites 
4301 Martin Way E., Olympia, WA 98516 

November 16, 2017 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair. 

10:30 AM Rules Discussion – Public Welcome 
                                                                                                      Amy Hunter, Deputy Director                          
                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

  

11:00 AM Call to Order                                                                                             Bud Sizemore, Chair                                                                        
 Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public 

Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation 
The public meeting will reconvene at approximately 12:30 pm 

PUBLIC MEETING  
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 

12:30 PM 
 

Tab 1 
 

Welcome and Introductions                                                                     Bud Sizemore, Chair 
 
Consent Agenda  (Action) 

• October 12, 2017 Commission Meeting Minutes 
• October 19, 2017 Special Commission Meeting Minutes 
• New Licenses and Class III Employees 

 
Class III Employees/Snoqualmie (Action) 
 
Defaults                                                                                           Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney 

• Charles Dangerfield – Card Room License Revocation (Action) 
• Dezaray J. Pacheco – Class III Certification Revocation (Action) 

 
Tab 4 

 
Presentation -Special Olympics of Washington                      

                                                                                                   Kevin Maxwell, Special Agent                         
Tina Griffin, Assistant Director                                                                                                       

• Program Review (Action)                                                           
• 2017 Western Washington Enhanced Raffle Results                  
• 2018 Western Washington Enhanced Raffle Plan Request (Action) 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
RULE UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING 

Tab 6 Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #3) 
                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• WAC 230-05-175 Individuals license fees  (Action) 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
RULE UP FOR FINAL ACTION 

Tab 10 
 

Petition for Rule Change (Ducks Unlimited)                        Tina Griffin, Assistant Director                                                                                                   
WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles (Action) 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
RULES UP FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION 

Tab 7 Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #1) 
                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Chapter 230-05 Fee Rules 
• Chapter 230-03 Permitting and Licensing Rules 

Tab 8 
 

Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #2)  
                                                                                                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

• Chapter 230 - 06 Rules for all licensees. 
• Chapter 230 - 07 Charitable and nonprofit rules. 
• Chapter 230 - 09 Fund-raising event rules. 
• Chapter 230 - 10 Bingo rules. 
• Chapter 230 - 11 Raffles. 
• Chapter 230 - 13 Amusement game rules. 
• Chapter 230 - 14 Punchboard and pull tab. 
• Chapter 230 - 15 Card game rules. 
• Chapter 230 - 16 Manufacturer, distributor, and gambling service supplier rules. 
• Chapter 230 - 17 Brief Adjudicative Proceedings. 
• WAC 230-03-085 Denying, suspending, or revoking an application, license or 

permit. 
• WAC 230-05-102 All licensed organizations report activity quarterly beginning 

with the July 1, 2018 through September 30, 2018 quarter. 
 

 
 

New Petition for Employees Contributing and Winning Player Supported Jackpots 
(Meir Lowenthal)   WITHDRAWN 

• WAC 230-15-410 Owners, prize fund custodians, and card room employees 
participating in player supported jackpots. 

 
Tab 9 

 
Staff Request for New Rule                                                     Tina Griffin, Assistant Director                                                                                  

• WAC 230-17-192 Submission of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment 
during rule making 
 

Tab 3 Presentation -2017 G2E Update                                                                        
                                                                                               Jennifer Lamont, Agent In Charge 
                                                                                           Melissa Velencia, Lab Administrator 
 

Tab 2 Presentation - Legal and Records Unit Update                                                  
                                                                       Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

Tab 1 2018 Legislative Update                              Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

Tab 1 Director’s Report                                                                                 David Trujillo, Director 
 

 Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments 
 Meeting Adjourn 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
October Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

Hampton Inn & Suites  4301 Martin Way E. 
Olympia, WA 98516 

 
Public Meeting  
October 12, 2017 

 
Commissioners Present:  
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Kelsey Gray, PhD. 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer  

 

Ex Officios Present: 
Senator Steve Conway 

 

Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; John 
Meader, Assistant Attorney General; Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Julie 
Lies, Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; Julie Anderson, Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Executive Session Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the October Gambling Commission Meeting to order at 11:10 a.m. and 
immediately went into Executive Session to discuss Tribal Negotiations, Pending Investigations 
and Litigation.   
 
Public Session Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the Gambling Commission to order at 1:05 p.m. and welcomed everyone 
to the Hampton Inn & Suites and introductions were made.  
 
There were 30 people in attendance.  
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda: 
September Commission Meeting Minutes/ New Licensees  
Commissioner Gray moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0  
 
Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees Licensees 
Commissioner Gray moved to approve Snoqualmie Class III Gaming Employees as presented. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 3:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained.  



 

2 
 

Director’s Update: 
Director Trujillo reported on a recent visit he and Julie Lies had with the Yakama tribal leaders 
and their staff. The meeting was coordinated by the Governor’s Office of Indian Affairs and 
included many other state agencies. He introduced Tommy Oakes, Special Agent Supervisor for 
the Law Enforcement Unit to the Commissioners and mentioned Chair Sizemore was able to 
attend the Swearing in Ceremony that was held at the Gambling Commission Headquarters 
October 11, 2017. Director Trujillo updated the Commissioners on the 2017 Centennial Accord 
Ceremony that was held October 10, 2017 at Swinomish Casino. He, along with Julie Lies and 
Commissioner Stearns attended the celebration. Commissioner Stearns shared some of the topics 
that were covered at Centennial Accord. Commissioner Stearns was pleased to announce that the 
Accord was very well attended. Director Trujillo gave an update on the agency’s upcoming Re-
Accreditation process that will occur in early 2018. He directed the Commissioners to the House 
bank card room activity report that was in their Commission packet.  Director Trujillo announced 
that Commissioner Gray would be retiring from the Commission and that this meeting would be 
her last meeting. The Gambling Commission presented Commissioner Gray with a token of 
appreciation for her term on the Commission and Chair Sizemore read the letter of appreciation 
from the Governor.  
  
Commissioner Stearns spoke briefly about World Mental Health Awareness day. He reminded 
everyone that the national council on problem gambling estimates that 1 in 5 gambling addicts 
attempts suicide.  
 
Tab 2  
Defaults                                                                                            
Staff Attorney, Haylee Mills presented the materials for Tab 2. 

Commissioner Troyer moved to revoke the Class III Certification for James D. Garner. 
Commissioner Gray Seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0 
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to revoke the Card Room License for Anthony Ward. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0  
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke the Card Room License for Justin O. Madison. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed 4:0  
 
Commissioner Troyer asked if the information regarding Wesley L. Johnson was forwarded to 
the prosecutor’s office or if there are plans to send it forward based on this specific dollar 
amount. Ms. Mills explained based on the information that was found during the investigation, it 
was not referred to the prosecuting authority. Commissioner Stearns asked for clarification on 
whether Wesley L. Johnson received warning for failing to make the said transfer. Haylee 
explained that he had received prior warning for prior conduct. Director Trujillo interjected that 
Wesley L. Johnson did not take the said funds, they just weren't transferred to his account but the 
money was preset.  Ms. Mills confirmed Director Trujillo’s statement. 



 

3 
 

 
Commissioner Troyer moved to revoke the Card Room License for Wesley L. Johnson. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0  
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to revoke the Card Room License for Nouviris Real. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0  
 
Tab 3  
Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #2)  
Assistant Director, Tina Griffin, and Legal and Legislative Manager, Brian Considine presented 
the materials for Tab 3. This Rule Changes/Fee Simplification packet is the second of at least 
packets to be brought before the Commission for the Fee Simplification. Senator Conway asked 
if all changes have been distributed to the licensees. AD Griffin confirmed that these changes 
have been posted on the website. She also mentioned that the website has all the updated 
information including a fee calculator.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment after each chapter in Tab 3 individually.  
Chapter 6, Rules for all Licensees. No comment. 
Chapter 7, Charitable and nonprofit rules. No comment. 
Chapter 9, Fund-raising event rules. No comment. 
Chapter 10, Bingo rules. No comment. 
Chapter 11, Raffles rules. No comment. 
Chapter 13, Amusement game rules. No comment. 
Chapter 14, Punchboard and Pull tab rules. No comment.  
Chapter 15, Card game rules. No comment. 
Chapter 16, Manufacturer, distributor, and gambling service supplier rules. No comment. 
Chapter 5, WAC 230-05-102. No comment. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked Mr. Considine to join the table to continue the presentation. Mr. Considine 
presented the material for Chapter 17, Brief Adjudicative Proceedings (BAP) rules.  
Commissioner Stearns asked for clarification on the presiding officer and the discretion they 
have to convert any BAP to a formal proceeding whenever it appears. Mr. Considine clarified the 
question and agreed with what Commissioner Stearns heard. Chair Sizemore asked for public 
comment.  
Public Comment: There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Stearns moved to file the Rule Changes/Fee Simplification Package #2 as 
presented by staff with an effective start date of July 1, 2018. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0 
 
Tab 4 
Petition for Rule Change to Restrict Employee Gambling at their Place of Employment 
(Great American Gaming)      



 

4 
 

Assistant Director, Tina Griffin introduced the other presenters for Tab 4. Richard Proctor, 
Regional General Manager for Great American Gaming Corporation and Stacey Hess Regional 
Manager of Surveillance and Compliance of Great American Gaming Corporation. AD Griffin 
said the petitioners are seeking to restrict employees from gambling at the facilities where they 
work. This petition excludes the game of poker. Poker games or pot games need to allow 
employees to participate in the games. Mr. Procter stated that they put forward this rule change 
and it does not include poker. As an industry, Mr. Procter believes that they have a responsibility 
to protect their internal as well as external stakeholders. By facilitating, enabling, encouraging, 
or requiring employee gambling in the workplace, it is not only disingenuous to our employees 
but a direct contradiction to the vision statement of the Washington State Gambling Commission, 
which states providing a workplace that allows employees to excel at their jobs. Senator Conway 
asked why Great American Gaming Corporation considered poker an exemption from gambling. 
Mr. Proctor explained that in his opinion poker is a player-banked game verses a house-banked 
game.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment.  Rich Lemieux, representing Wizard's Casino in 
Burien, Washington commented that he is originally from Las Vegas, operates Wizards Casino, 
and is not in favor of this rule.  Maureen Greeley, representing Evergreen Council of Problem 
Gambling said she didn’t have any particular feeling, one way or the other, on how the Gambling 
Commission moves forward on this rule. Except, that there are several things that have happened 
over the past 5 to 10 years. - and Senator Conway knows this better than anyone in the room - on 
how we have expanded our understanding of responsible gaming, and problem gambling, and 
put into place effective measures to deal with it. And yet we still have a long way to go. I have to 
compliment the industry in our state, as well as the Commission for being proactive in the area of 
responsible gaming and problem gambling. Ms. Greeley spoke specifically about the August 
meeting where Special Agent Lisa Saila, Gambling Commission's Problem Gambling Liaison, 
spoke at length about problem gambling and responsible gaming measures. Ms. Greenly 
mentioned that Commissioner Patterson, Senator Conway, and Commissioner Stearns came 
forward with measures that they would like the Gambling Commission staff to work with 
Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling, and with others in the field. Ian Rawley, representing 
The Black Pearl in Spokane, Washington, thanked Mr. Proctor for clarifying that he intended not 
to include poker in his rule petition. Mr. Rawley said they do not encourage gambling. He 
recognized that a small percentage of their business would be reliant on employee participation. 
But, he is not in favor of this rule.  Gary Malcolm, General Manager of Macau Casino in 
Lakewood, and is also speaking for Caribbean Casino and Macau Casinos said he spoke to Bill 
Zender regarding this rule quite a bit. Mr. Zender is a game protection expert. Mr. Zender’s job 
is to protect the house and protect the businesses and he will also tell you that this is the most 
unique gaming environment in the world. Mr. Malcolm is not in favor of this rule.  
 
After hearing the public comment the Commission took a short break. When the Commission 
reconvened the petitioner decided during the break to withdraw his petition. No Motion Needed.  
 
Tab 5 
Staff Request for Rule Changes/Fee Simplification (Package #1)  
Assistant Director, Tina Griffin presented the materials in Tab 5. This packet is the first of at 
least three fee simplification packets to be brought before the Commission. This packet was first 
heard at the September Meeting and will be up for Final Action at the January Commission 
Meeting. The Commissioners had no comments on this packet.  



 

5 
 

Public Comment: There was no public comment. 
 
Tab 6 
Staff Request for New Rule – Gambling Equipment  
Assistant Director, Tina Griffin presented the materials for Tab 6. Staff is requesting a new rule 
to require a manufacturer or its designee to submit electronic or mechanical gambling equipment 
for evaluation during rule-making. This petition was up for further discussion. 
Public Comment: There was no public comment.  
 
Tab 7 
Petition for Rule Change – Ducks Unlimited 
Assistant Director, Tina Griffin presented the materials for Tab 7. This rule was up for further 
discussion and Final Action will be at the November meeting. There were no questions from the 
Commissioners.  
Public Comment: There was no public comment. 
 
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 
Deputy Director, Amy Hunter introduced the new Lab Administrator, Melissa Velencia. Melissa 
has worked for the agency for 17 years and was acting Lab Administrator while the recruitment 
process took place. Congratulations Melissa.  
 
Commission meeting adjourned at 4:42 pm. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
October Special Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

John L. O’Brien Building  
Hearing Room D 

Olympia, WA  
 

Public Meeting  
October 19, 2017 

 
Commissioners Present:  
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Chris Stearns                                                             
Ed Troyer  

 

Ex Officios Present: 
Senator Steve Conway 
Senator Lynda Wilson 
Representative Brandon Vick 
Representative David Sawyer 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director; Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; John 
Meader, Assistant Attorney General; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public 
Information Officer; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant. 
 
Public Session Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the Special Gambling Commission meeting to order at 12:36 pm and 
welcomed everyone to the John L. O’Brien building and introductions were made. 
 
There were about 10 people in attendance.  
 
Tab 1 
Puyallup Tribe of Indians Compact Amendment 
Bill Sterud, Chairman, Puyallup Tribe of Indians, David Bean, Puyallup Tribe Council Member, 
David Trujillo, Director WSGC, Frank Wright, General Manager, Emerald Queen Casinos and 
Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison WSGC presented the materials for the Puyallup Tribe of Indians 
Compact Amendment.  

Chair Sizemore stated that “This is the first of two amendments that will reflect current 
regulatory practices, reduce duplication between tribal and state regulators and clarify the roles 
for each party.”  
 
Below is a summary of the major changes in the proposed amendment. 
 

• Restriction on Electronic Benefits Cards:  Each tribe must ensure all cash dispensing 
outlets and point of sale machines within its gaming facilities do not accept electronic 
benefits cards. 



 

2 
 

• Player Terminal Allocations:  Each tribe’s allocation of player terminals (gaming 
machines) is increased from 975 to 1,075.  In addition, the proposed amendment does not 
change the maximum number of machines allowed at a facility. 

• Annual Regulatory Fees 
• Cost Allocation:  Regulatory fees for each tribe’s gaming activities shall be determined 

according to the state’s current cost allocation model.   The amendment eliminates the 
10% pre-payment discount, credit, and alternative regulatory fee agreement options. 

• Revisions to the State’s Cost Allocation Model:  The state may revise its cost allocation 
model upon 90-day notice to a tribe.  In the event of a dispute, the parties shall meet 
informally then follow the Regulatory Fee Dispute section in Appendix X2, if needed. 

• Audit:  The state shall give each tribe an audited accounting of its actual costs by April 
30 of the following year. 

• Problem Gambling Smoking Cessation Contributions:  Each tribe’s annual contributions 
towards problem gambling and smoking cessation services established in Appendix X2 
shall be paid within one year of the close of the tribe’s fiscal year to match other required 
contribution timeframes. 

• Appendix X2 Addendum:  Each tribe may increase its allocation by 50 player terminals, 
but only if the following conditions are met: 

• A tribe provides the state with written notice that there are 500 or fewer player 
terminals available for lease among all tribes participating in the Tribal Lottery 
System, along with a certification from an independent accounting firm 
confirming the number of machines available. 

• Within 30 days, the state reviews the certification and verifies the player terminals 
available for lease in the state.  Any allocation change would be effective 30 days 
after notification by the state to the tribe. 

• This allocation is limited to one (1) per twelve (12) month period.  However, if 
any Washington tribe will operate more than 1,075 player terminals upon opening 
a new gaming facility, a tribe can notify the state, and with state concurrence, 
receive an additional 50 player terminal increase within the twelve month period.   

• When a tribe receives an increase under this section, any other compacted 
Washington tribe shall receive the same increase. 

These changes are consistent with several other tribes’ gaming compacts. Negotiations regarding 
several other changes are ongoing and will be included in a separate amendment. 
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to forward the proposed compact amendment to the Governor for 
review and final execution. 
Senator Conway seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 7:0  

Meeting adjourned at 1:15 

























































 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
November 1, 2017 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
  Kelsey Gray, Ph.D. 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Charles Dangerfield, CR 2017-00895 
  Final Order – November 16, 2017 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Charles Dangerfield had a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity 
at Freddie’s Club in Renton, Washington.  His license expires on February 16, 2018.   
 
Freddie’s Club uses a Sonoma Player Tracking System for its Player’s Club.  Player’s Club is a 
rewards program for players that rewards points for time spent playing card games.  Floor 
supervisors at Freddie’s Club have access to this system and can manage a player’s point 
accumulation.  
 
Surveillance footage from Freddie’s Club shows that between March 10, 2017 and March 30, 
2017, Mr. Dangerfield, while working as a floor supervisor, improperly used a card room 
customer’s Player’s Club rewards on five separate occasions.  On March 10, 11, 22, 24, and 30, 
2017, Mr. Dangerfield accessed the Sonoma Player Tracking System and printed out receipts for 
food comps, then ordered food items which he consumed at the card room.  His fraudulent use of 
the system allowed him to unlawfully take $102.00 in rewards points. 
 
Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on August 22, 2017, to Mr. 
Dangerfield by regular and certified mail to his last known address. The regular mail was returned 
to the Commission as, “Return to Sender, Attempted-No Known, Unable to Forward,” on 
September 6, 2017.  The certified mail was returned to the Commission, as, “Return to Sender, 
Vacant, Unable for Forward,” on September 27, 2017.  As of the date of this memo, the 
Commission has not received a response from Mr. Dangerfield. 
 
Mr. Dangerfield’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. 
Dangerfield’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2017-00895.  You may take final action against 
his gambling license.  Based on his conduct, Mr. Dangerfield cannot show by clear and convincing 



Default Hearing – Charles Dangerfield 
November 16, 2017 
Page 2 
 
evidence that he is qualified to keep his gambling license.  Therefore, staff recommends that the 
Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Charles Dangerfield’s Public Card Room 
Employee license, License Number 68-32753. 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
November 1, 2017 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
  Kelsey Gray, Ph.D. 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Dezaray J. Pacheco, 2017-00779 
  Final Order – November 16, 2017 Commission Meeting 
 
Ms. Dezaray J. Pacheco has a gambling license authorizing Class III Employee activity at Lucky 
Dog Casino in Skokomish, Washington.  Her license expired on September 14, 2017.   
 
On November 9, 2016, while working as a Cash Operations Employee at Lucky Dog Casino, Ms. 
Pacheco was responsible for performing “Hot Seat” drawings for $50.00 Tribal Lottery System 
(“TLS”) vouchers.  During one such drawing, Ms. Pacheco drew out the name of a patron and 
discussed the patron’s name being drawn with a security officer and floor supervisor, subsequently 
discarding the valid winning draw and drawing another name, awarding the prize to that other 
patron.   When interviewed by the Skokomish Tribal Gaming Agency (“TGA”), Ms. Pacheco and 
the two other employees admitted to their involvement in and/or knowledge of the intentional 
failure to pay the valid drawing winner.  On November 22, 2016, the Skokomish TGA suspended 
Ms. Pacheco’s tribal gaming license, and then revoked it on January 6, 2017.  Ms. Pacheco did not 
appeal the revocation, nor did she ever report the suspension or revocation to the Gambling 
Commission. 
 
Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on July 11, 2017, to Ms. Pacheco by 
regular and certified mail to her last known address.  Charges were re-issued to Ms. Pacheco’s 
forwarding address on July 27, 2017.  The Commission received a request for hearing on August 
9, 2017, and a prehearing conference was scheduled for October 6, 2017.  Ms. Pacheco was sent 
notice of the prehearing conference to her forwarding address on September 14, 2017.  Ms. 
Pacheco failed to appear at the prehearing conference, and no further communication from Ms. 
Pacheco has been received by the Commission as of the date of this memo.  
 
Ms. Pacheco’s failure to attend or participate in a hearing or other stage of an adjudicative 
proceeding is a waiver of Ms. Pacheco’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2017-00779.  You may 



Default Hearing – Dezaray J. Pacheco 
November 16, 2017 
Page 2 
 
take final action against her gambling license.  Based on her conduct, Ms. Pacheco cannot show 
by clear and convincing evidence that she is qualified to keep her gambling license.  Therefore, 
staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Dezaray J. 
Pacheco’s Class III Employee license, License Number 69-37116. 



































1 

 
 
 
Tab 6: NOVEMBER 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                             Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Changes  
This is third of at least four packages staff will bring forward to make changes to the Commission’s 
licensing fee structure.  This third package sets the individual license fees under the new license fee 
structure.  The key changes to individual license fees in this third package: 
 

• Establishes the license fees for individuals.  There are basically two annual license fee schedules 
for individuals: 

 
License Type 

New 
Application Fee 

Renewal 
Fees 

Class F and HBCR card room employees 
and all representatives 

$275 (in-state 
fee for CREs) 

$170 

Nonhouse-banked card room employees, 
charitable or nonprofit gambling manager, 
and commercial gambling manager 

$200 $95 

 
• Requires all representatives to apply and pay a fee when adding or changing employers consistent 

with all other individual licensees.  The fees are consistent with other fees for this transaction.  
 

• Outlines in rule the card room employees required to pay “out-of-state” new application fees.    

A fourth rules package will include any corrections or updates to the rules filed in packages #1, #2, or #3. 
This package will likely be on your January agenda. 
 
 
Attachments: 
   WAC 230-05-175 
 

Policy Considerations 
The Commissioners began considering changing the fee structure in 2014. The current fee structure was 
created over 40 years ago.  It began with 25 fees.  Today the Gambling Commission has approximately 
194 different fees for Commercial and Non-Profit organizations and individuals. This fee schedule is 
typically based on a “class” system, which can be cumbersome for licensees and agency staff. The 

Rule Changes / Fee Simplification (Package #3) 
New Rule: 

WAC 230-05-175 Individuals license fees. 
 

November 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
 



2 

Gambling Commission is looking to simplify this current system to allow it to be easier to navigate and 
have a licensing fee schedule that is more predictable for both the agency and its licensees.  
 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends filing for further discussion.  

Staff anticipates asking for an effective date of May 1, 2018. 
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-05-175 Individuals license fees. Individuals must pay the 

following fees:  

(1) Annual license and additional employer fees: 

License Type New Application 

Fee 

Annual Renewal 

Fee 

Additional or 

Change of Em-

ployer Fee 

Call center for en-

hanced raffle repre-

sentative 

$275 $170 - 

Card room employee li-

cense – Nonhouse-banked 

(Class A) 

$200 $95 $65 

Card room employee li-

cense – Class F and 

house-banked (Class B) 

$275 (in-state) 

$340 (out-of-

state) 

$170 $65 

Charitable or nonprofit 

gambling manager 

$200 $95 $95 

Commercial gambling 

manager 

$200 $95 $95 

Distributor representa-

tive 

$275 $170 $65  

Linked bingo prize pro-

vider representative 

$275 $170 $65  

Manufacturer repre-

sentative 

$275 $170 $65  

Gambling service sup- $275 $170 $65  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

plier representative 

  

(2) Class B card room employees must pay the out-of-state appli-

cation fee if over the last ten years the applicant lived 

outside of Washington for six non-consecutive months or 

more.   

  

(3) Other service fees: 

Transaction Fee 

Change of name $30 

Card room employee emergency 

waiver request 

$65 

Duplicate license $30 

 

(4)  Military personnel returning from service 

If a license expires while an individual is on active military ser-

vice, the individual may apply to have their license reissued at the 

renewal fee. The application must be received within six months after 

completing their active military service. The applicant must provide 

evidence of the completion date of active military service.
 



 
 
 
Tab 10: NOVEMBER 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                            Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
 
Scott Eisenhauer, State Chairman, Ducks Unlimited Washington.  As of June 9, 2017, there were 52 
Ducks Unlimited chapters in Washington that held raffle licenses. 
 
Attachments: 

• RCW 9.46.0277 “Raffle.” 
• WAC 230-11-086 Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles.   
• Petition for Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of a State Administrative Rule received on May 23, 

2017. 
• Letter from John Tierney, Sr. Regional Director Northwest Washington, dated August 29, 2017 

with attachments. 
 

Petitioner’s Request  
 
Mr. Eisenhauer submitted a petition for rule change “to increase the maximum value of a raffle ticket sold 
as part of a members-only raffle from $25 to $100.  This rule change is necessary because it increase(s) 
predictability for licensees that a members-only (raffle), which involves selling tickets as part of a multi-
component package, will result in a net profit for the licensee.  By raising the maximum price of a raffle 
ticket from $25 to $100 for raffle packages containing multiple components, the proceeds of the raffle are 
far more likely to exceed the fair market value of the awarded prize.”  
 
At the July 2017 Commission meeting, representatives from Ducks Unlimited explained that their rule 
change request would allow them to assign a value of up to $100 for the raffle portion of their Bronze 
Sponsorship package. With this change the Bronze Sponsorship package would be $350, of which $250 
goes to conservation efforts.  The ability to assign a higher value to the raffle tickets included in this 
package would allow the licensee to offset the cost of the raffle prize offered.   
 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was unnecessary because the rule does not impose any 
costs on the industry. 
 

Policy Considerations 
Our rules only authorize members-only raffles to offer multi-component packages to include a raffle 
ticket.   
 
In 2009, the Legislature increased the cost of raffle tickets from $25 to $100.  Today, when selling raffle 
tickets, bona fide and charitable organizations can charge up to $100 for a raffle ticket.  When using a 

Petition for Rule Change  
WAC 230-11-087 Other pricing plans for members-only raffles. 

 
November 2017 – Final Action 

October 2017 – Further Discussion 
September 2017 – Further Discussion  

August 2017 – Further Discussion  
July 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 

 
 



pricing scheme, bundling tickets or discounting tickets, such organizations must follow WAC rules that 
authorize such alternative methods of selling tickets.  The petitioner is requesting to modify the WAC to 
address the petitioners pricing scheme. 
 
Licensees could include multiple tickets at $25 each as part of a multi-component package under the 
current rule.  For example, Ducks Unlimited could include four raffle tickets in their multi-component 
package at $25 each.   
 

Staff Recommendation 
Final action. 

Effective Date 
Effective 31 days from filing. 

 



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-20-040, filed 9/26/06, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-11-087  Other pricing plans for members-only raffles. 
(1) Licensees may sell multiple tickets to enter one or more drawings 
as a package if the total price of the package does not exceed twenty-
five dollars.

(2) Licensees may include tickets to enter a raffle as a part of 
a package that includes dues, entertainment, or other fund-raising ac
tivities if:

(a) The package discloses the value of each component of the 
package to the purchaser; and

(b) The value of each individual raffle ticket does not exceed 
((twenty-five)) one hundred dollars.

[ 1 ] OTS-8962.1



RCW 9.46.0277  "Raffle." 
 

"Raffle," as used in this chapter, means a game in which tickets bearing an individual number 
are sold for not more than one hundred dollars each and in which a prize or prizes are awarded 
on the basis of a drawing from the tickets by the person or persons conducting the game, when 
the game is conducted by a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization, no person other than a 
bona fide member of the organization takes any part in the management or operation of the 
game, and no part of the proceeds thereof inure to the benefit of any person other than the 
organization conducting the game. 

 
[ 2009 c 133 § 1; 1995 2nd sp.s. c 4 § 1; 1987 c 4 § 20. Formerly RCW 9.46.020(19).] 
 

  

http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1053.SL.pdf?cite=2009%20c%20133%20%C2%A7%201;
http://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1995-96/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5269.SL.pdf?cite=1995%202nd%20sp.s.%20c%204%20%C2%A7%201;
http://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1987c4.pdf?cite=1987%20c%204%20%C2%A7%2020.
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.020


WAC 230-11-086 Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles. 
In discounted pricing plans, licensees may sell tickets for a discounted price based on the number 
of tickets a player purchases if: 

(1) The amount of the discount is set before any raffle tickets are sold; and 
(2) Participants are allowed to purchase a single ticket; and 
(3) There is only one discount plan for each raffle; and 
(4) The cost of a single ticket, without a discount, does not exceed ten dollars; and 
(5) The total cost of a discount package does not exceed twenty-five dollars; and 
(6) The cost of a single ticket is printed on each ticket (for example, one dollar each); and 
(7) The discounted tickets are identified by a unique ticket audit numbering system; and 
(8) The licensee establishes an audit system that includes internal controls and procedures to 
determine gross gambling receipts from the sale of tickets using a discounted pricing plan. 

 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-11-086, filed 9/26/06, effective 
1/1/08.] 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070
























 
 
 
Tab 7: NOVEMBER 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                             Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Changes  
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the October 2017 Commission Meeting 
This is the first of at least three packages to make changes to the Commission’s licensing fee structure.   
 
In this first package, rule changes are being recommended in the following chapters: 
• Chapter 230 – 05 WAC – Fees 
• Chapter 230 – 03 WAC – Permitting and Licensing rules 
 
Rules package #2 includes due dates for activity reports and deletes references to the term “classes.” While 
the current fee structure is based on a “classes” system, the new proposed system is based primarily on 
gross gambling receipts.  
 
Rules package #3 sets the individual license fees under the new license fee structure. 
 
A fourth rules package will include any corrections or updates to the rules filed in packages #1, #2 
or #3. This package will likely be on your January agenda. 
 
Some of the key rules in Chapter 05 (Fees) in this first package are: 

• New proposed fee schedule (WAC’s 230 –05–160, 230–05–165 and WAC 230–05–170); 
• Calculating quarterly license fees (WAC 230–05–122); 
• Penalties for late filing of quarterly license reports or late payment of quarterly license fees (WAC 

230-05-132); 

• New definitions needed for this new way of calculating fees; for example:    
o Defining “base license fee.” (WAC 230–05–104)  
o Defining “maximum annual license fee.” (WAC 230–05–106) 
o Defining “quarterly license fees.” (WAC 230–05–108) 
o Defining “gross gambling receipts rate.” (WAC 230 – 05 – 110) 

 
Some rules are simply being moved from Chapter 06 (Rules for all licensees) to Chapter 05 (Fees).   
 
Most of the key rules in Chapter 03 (Permitting and Licensing rules) in this first package are being made 
because the current fee schedule includes descriptions of what a license authorizes, rather than simply 
stating the fee for the license.  
 

 
Rule Changes / Fee Simplification (Package #1) 

Various Rules in: 
• Chapter 230 – 05 WAC – Fees 
• Chapter 230 – 03 WAC – Permitting and Licensing rules 

November 2017 – Up for Further Discussion 
October 2017 – Up for Further Discussion 
September 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 



Minor changes were made to the following rules and are highlighted in yellow in the attached packet:  
WACs 230-05-101, 230-05-112, 230-05-116, and 230-03-235. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Current Fee Schedule: 
Fee Schedule – Bona Fide Charitable / Nonprofit Organization (Pink) 
Fee Schedule – Commercial Stimulant  / Profit-Seeking Organization (Blue) 
WAC Chapters 230-03 and 230-05 containing changes. 
Stakeholder feedback 
 

Policy Considerations 
The Commissioners began considering changing the fee structure in 2014. The current fee structure was 
created over 40 years ago.  It began with 25 fees.  Today the Gambling Commission has approximately 
194 different fees for Commercial and Non-Profit organizations and individuals. This fee schedule is 
typically based on a “class” system, which can be cumbersome for licensees and agency staff. The 
Gambling Commission is looking to simplify this current system to allow it to be easier to navigate and 
have a licensing fee schedule that is more predictable for both the agency and its licensees.  

Stakeholder Feedback 
Ric Newgard, Seattle Junior Hockey – testified at the September commission meeting that he appreciated 
being able to participate in the process. 
John McSweeney, Gambling Manager, past President Shoreline Elks – see attached. 
Scott Johnson, Spokane Pulltab – see attached. 
Walt Antioch, Tri-Focus Enterprises, Pull-tab Distributor 
Aleena Schneider, Harlequin Productions, Raffle Licensee 
Cory Thompson, FRE Distributor and Service Supplier 
Mark Skoglund, Funtastic Shows, Amusement Game Licensee 
Victoria Carlson, Service Supplier 
David Thompson, Dave’s Bar & Grill, Pull-tab Licensee 
Wes Fults, Bonanza Press, Pull-tab Manufacturer 
Michael T. Hurley, Law Enforcement Association of Southwest Washington, Raffle Licensee 
 

Staff Recommendation 
Further discussion. 

Staff anticipates asking for an effective date of May 1, 2018, to accommodate licensees who are renewing 
June 30, 2018. 

 

 











  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-05 WAC
 

FEES
 

Last Update: 3/30/16
 

WAC 

RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING BEFORE JUNE 30, 2018
 

230-05-001
 

Prorating or refunding of fees.
 

230-05-005
 

Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, services, or games.
 

230-05-010
 

Returned payments.
 

230-05-015 

230-05-016 

230-05-017 

230-05-018
 

Two-part payment plan for license fees. 

Exceeding license class. 

Failing to apply for license class upgrade. 

Partial refund of license fees if gambling receipts limit not met.
 

230-05-020
 

Charitable or nonprofit organization fees.
 

230-05-025
 

Commercial stimulant fees.
 

230-05-030
 

Fees for other businesses.
 

230-05-035 

 

230-05-101 

230-05-104 

230-05-106 

Individuals license fees. 

RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING ON OR AFTER JUNE 30, 2018 

Implementation of new permit and license fees – effective dates. 

Defining “base license fee.” 

Defining “maximum annual license fee.” 



WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING

203-05-108 

230-05-110 

230-05-112 

230-05-114 

230-05-116 

230-05-120 

230-05-122 

230-05-124 

230-05-126 

230-05-128 

230-05-132 

230-05-134 

230-05-136 

230-05-138 

230-05-140 

230-05-142 

230-05-160 

230-05-165 

230-05-170 

230-05-175 

Defining “quarterly license fees.” 

Defining “gross gambling receipts rate.” 

Defining “gross gambling receipts.” 

Defining “net win.” 

Defining “quarterly license report.” 

Paying annual license fee.  

Calculating quarterly license fees. 

Quarterly license fees and license reports. 

Online filing and payments required with waivers available upon request for good cause. 

Renew your license in a timely manner. 

Late filing of quarterly license reports or late payment of quarterly license fees - pen-

alties. 

Amending quarterly license reports and changes to quarterly license fees paid. 

Prorating and refunding fees. 

Returned payments. 

Outstanding fees. 

Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, services or games. 

Charitable or nonprofit organization fees. 

Commercial stimulant organization fees. 

Fees for other businesses. 

Individual license fees. (Changes will be part of rules at November Meeting)



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

WAC 230-05-005 Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, 

services, or games. You must apply to us if you want to submit gambling 

equipment, supplies, services, or games for our review. You must pay the 

application deposit before we perform the review. You must also reimburse 

us for any additional costs of the review.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

05-005, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-016 Exceeding license class. (1) Licensees must not 

exceed the gross gambling receipts limits for their license class dur-

ing any annual license period.
 

(2) Licensees must apply a projection of year-to-date receipts to 

the remaining period of their license and, if it indicates that it is 

reasonably likely that they may exceed their license, they must imme-

diately:
 

(a) Apply for a license that authorizes the anticipated level of 

gross gambling receipts; and
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(b) Submit the fee required for the new license, minus the amount 

originally submitted for the previous license, plus a change of clas-

sification fee.
 

(3) If we issue a license upgrade, it is valid only for the re-

mainder of the original term of the license.
 

(4) Licensees may exceed license class limits once, by the amount 

shown in the fees table, without having to upgrade or pay the penal-

ties as long as they upgrade to the higher license class the next time 

they renew their license.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-017 Failing to apply for license class upgrade. (1) If 

licensees fail to apply for a license class upgrade and exceed the li-

cense class limit within a present or previous license year, we assess 

an additional fee. We charge an additional fee of up to fifty percent 

of the difference between the fee for the present license class and 

the new license class, or one thousand dollars, whichever is less.
 

(2) Licensees must pay any required license class upgrade fee, 

plus any additional fee required by subsection (1) of this section, 

within thirty days of our notification.
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(3) Failure to pay the fees may result in an immediate summary 

suspension of all licenses.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-018 Partial refund of license fees if gambling re-

ceipts limit not met. (1) Licensees may apply for a partial refund of 

their license fee when their annual gross gambling receipts are less 

than the minimum for the class of license we issued to them.
 

(2) Licensees may receive a refund for the difference between the 

fees actually paid and the fees that would normally apply to the level 

of gross gambling receipts actually received during the period less 

our processing costs.
 

(3) Licensees may make their request for refund after the end of 

any annual license period and before the end of the next annual li-

cense period.
 

[]
 

RULES FOR PERMITS OR LICENSE YEARS ENDING ON OR AFTER JUNE 30, 2018
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-101 Implementation of new permit and license fees. WAC 

230-05-1042 through 230-05-175 apply to all:
 

(1) Permits or license years ending on or after June 30, 2018; 

and
 

(2) Permits or licenses issued on or after July 1, 2018.
 

(3) Other fees assessed in this chapter on or after July 1, 2018.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-104 Defining "base license fee." (1) "Base license 

fee" is the fee you pay us when you:
 

(a) Apply for an organization license or permit; or
 

(b) Renew your organization's license or annual permit.
 

(2) "Base license fee" is the minimum annual license fee a li-

censed organization or permit holder will pay for operating an author-

ized activity.
 

[]
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-106 Defining "maximum annual license fee." "Maximum 

annual license fee" is the most you will pay to operate an authorized 

activity for the license year, which includes the:
 

(1) Base license fee; and
 

(2) Quarterly license fees.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-108 Defining "quarterly license fees." "Quarterly li-

cense fees" means the licensee's gross gambling receipts from the pre-

vious quarter multiplied by the gross gambling receipts rate.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-110 Defining "gross gambling receipts rate." "Gross 

gambling receipts rate" is the rate listed in this chapter that licen-

sees use to calculate their quarterly license fees.
 

[]
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-112 Defining "gross gambling receipts." (1) "Gross 

gambling receipts" means the amount due to any operator of an author-

ized activity as described in subsection (5) of this section.
 

(2) The amounts must be stated in U.S. currency.
 

(3) The value must be before any deductions for prizes or other 

expenses, such as over/short.
 

(4) "Gross gambling receipts" does not include fees from players 

to enter player-supported jackpots. However, any portion of wagers de-

ducted for any purpose other than increasing current prizes or repay-

ment of amounts used to seed prizes are "gross gambling receipts."
 

(5) Gross gambling receipts for authorized activities:
 

 

Activity: 

Gross gambling receipts include 
amounts due to any operator 
for: 

(a) Punchboard 
and pull-tab 

Purchasing chances to play. 

(b) Raffles and 
enhanced raffles 

Purchasing chances to enter. 

(c) Bingo Fees or purchase of cards to 
participate. 

(d) Amusement 
games 

• Fees to participate; 
• Rent or lease payments paid to 
licensees for allowing operation 
of an amusement game on their 
premises. 
• Amounts paid to play 

amusement games. 
(e) Card games • "Net win" from house-banked 

card games; 
• Tournament entry fees; 
• Administrative fees from 
player-supported jackpots; 
• Fees to participate in nonhouse-
banked card games. 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

Activity: 

Gross gambling receipts include 
amounts due to any operator 
for: 

(f) Manufacturers 
and distributors 

(a) Fees from sales, rentals, 
leases, royalties, and service fees 
collected for the following 
gambling equipment in 
Washington to include, but not 
limited to: 
• Punchboards and pull-tabs; 
• Devices for dispensing pull-
tabs; 
• Electronic devices for 
conducting, facilitating or 
accounting for the results of 
gambling activities; 
• Cards; 
• Dice; 
• Gambling chips; 
• Cash exchange terminals; 
• Progressive meters; 
• Gambling software; 
• License agreements; 
• Card shuffling devices; 
• Graphical game layouts for 
table games; 
• Ace finders or no-peek devices; 
• Roulette wheels; 
• Keno equipment; 
• Tables manufactured 
exclusively for gambling 
purposes; 
• Bet totalizers; 
• Electronic devices for reading 
or displaying outcomes of 
gambling activities; 
• Tribal lottery systems and 
components thereof. 
(b) Fees from the service, repair 
and modification of gambling 
equipment in Washington to 
include, but not limited to: 
• Charges for labor and parts for 
repairing gambling equipment; 
• Service fees related to gambling 
operations; 
• Training or set-up fees; 
• Maintenance contract fees 
related to gambling equipment 
and operations. 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

Activity: 

Gross gambling receipts include 
amounts due to any operator 
for: 

(g) Gambling 
service suppliers 

Fees from gambling-related 
services provided in or to be used 
in Washington to include, but not 
limited to: 
• Consulting, advisory or 
management services related to 
gambling; 
• Interest from financing the 
purchase or lease of gambling 
equipment, infrastructure or 
facilities or equipment that 
supports gambling operations; 
• Acting as a lending agent, loan 
services or placement agent; 
• Assembly of components for 
gambling equipment to be used 
under a contract with a licensed 
manufacturer; 
• Ongoing financial arrangements 
for gambling related software 
with a licensed manufacturer; 
• Installing, integrating, 
maintaining, or servicing digital 
surveillance systems that allow 
direct access to the operating 
system; 
• Training individuals to conduct 
authorized gambling activities; 
• Performing testing and 
certification of tribal lottery 
systems in meeting requirements 
specified in the tribal-state 
compacts; 
• Providing nonmanagement 
related recordkeeping or storage 
services for punchboard and pull-
tab operators. 
• Ownership of proprietary 

games or equipment. 
(h) 
Punchboard/pull-
tab service 
businesses 

Providing nonmanagement 
related recordkeeping or storage 
services for punchboard and pull-
tab operators. 

(i) Fund-raising 
event distributors 

Fees from contracts to organize 
and conduct recreational gaming 
activities. 

(j) Fund-raising 
events and 
agricultural fairs 

Fees received from the operation 
of bingo, amusement games, 
raffles, lotteries, contests of 
chance, and/or net win from table 
games operated at a fund-raising 
event. 

 

[]
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-114 Defining "net win." "Net win" means gross wagers 

received from gambling activities or fund-raising events minus the:
 

(1) Amount paid to players for winning wagers; and
 

(2) Accrual of prizes for progressive jackpot contests; and
 

(3) Repayment of amounts used to seed guaranteed progressive 

jackpot prizes.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-116 Defining "quarterly license report." "Quarterly 

license report" means the report:
 

(1) Filed by each licensed organization, annual permit holder and 

fund-raising event licensee thirty days after the end of each quarter; 

and
 

(2) Which includes the licensee's gross gambling receipts from 

the previous quarter multiplied by the gross gambling receipts rate to 

calculate the quarterly license fee due to the commission.
 

[]
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-120 Paying annual license fee. (1) All licensed organ-

izations will pay annual license fees in up to five payments. The an-

nual license fee includes:
 

(a) A base license fee paid with your:
 

(i) Initial application for a new license or permit; or
 

(ii) License renewal or annual permit application; and
 

(b) Quarterly license fees based on the gross gambling receipts 

reported on your quarterly license report.
 

(2) Licensed organizations starting a new activity will begin 

paying quarterly license fees on that activity upon completion of the 

first quarter, whether a partial or full quarter, after your license 

or annual permit was issued.
 

(3) Individual licensees will pay an annual license fee with 

their initial application or license renewal application.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-122 Calculating quarterly license fees. (1) The quar-

terly license fee is calculated based on the gross gambling receipts 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

from the previous quarter as reported on your quarterly license re-

port.
 

(2) Each license year, the quarterly license fees will be offset 

by the base license fee. (For example, if your base license fee is 

sixty-five dollars and your quarterly license fee is forty-five dol-

lars for the first quarter, no additional amount is due for the first 

quarter. You would offset any future quarterly license fees by the re-

maining twenty dollars of your base license fee.)
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-124 Quarterly license fees and license reports. All 

licensed organizations must submit quarterly license fees and license 

reports to us for each licensed gambling activity beginning with the 

first quarter of their license year. The quarterly license fee is due 

with the quarterly license report.
 

(1) The quarterly license reports must be in the format we re-

quire and must: 

(1) 
 

 

Cover the period: 
Be received by us no 
later than: 

January 1 through March 31 April 30 
April 1 through June 30 July 30 
July 1 through September 30 October 30 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

Cover the period: 
Be received by us no 
later than: 

October 1 through December 31 January 30 
 

(2) Be received online at our administrative office or postmarked 

no later than the dates indicated in the table in subsection (1) of 

this section; and
 

(3) Be submitted even if there is no quarterly license fee paya-

ble to us; and
 

(4) Be accurate; and
 

(5) Be completed by the highest ranking executive officer or a 

designee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee prepares 

the report, the preparer must include his or her name and business 

telephone number on the report; and
 

(6) Be submitted for any period of time the license was valid, 

even if there was no gambling activity or the gambling license was not 

renewed.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-126 Online filing and payments required with waivers 

available upon request for good cause. (1) All licensees must submit 

the following online:
 

(a) Renewal application and base license fees; and
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(b) Quarterly license fees; and
 

(c) Quarterly license reports.
 

(2) We may waive these requirements if a licensed organization 

can show good cause. The reasons for good cause include:
 

(a) You do not have access to the internet using your own com-

puter or similar equipment; or
 

(b) You do not have a bank account; or
 

(c) Your bank is unable to send electronic fund transactions; or
 

(d) Some other circumstance or condition exists that, in our 

judgment, prevents you from submitting online.
 

(3) We may waive these requirements if a licensed individual can 

show good cause. The reasons for good cause include:
 

(a) You do not have access to the internet using your own com-

puter or similar equipment; or
 

(b) You do not have a bank account or credit card; or
 

(c) Your bank is unable to send electronic fund transactions; or
 

(d) Some other circumstance or condition exists that, in our 

judgment, prevents you from submitting online.
 

(4) You must request a waiver when applying for a new license or 

permit.
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(5) A waiver will cover all fees and reports required under sub-

section (1) of this section.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-128 Renew your license in a timely manner. (1) You 

must renew online, unless you have received a waiver as outlined in 

this chapter and allow enough time to:
 

(a) Print the license prior to midnight before the license ex-

pires; or
 

(b) Have us print the license and mail it to you so you receive 

it before your license expires.
 

(2) If you have a waiver and are not renewing your license 

online, you must ensure a properly completed renewal application and 

all applicable base license fees are received at our administrative 

office in Lacey at least fifteen days before the expiration date on 

the license.
 

(3) If you do not submit a properly completed renewal application 

and all fees and your license expires, you must immediately stop the 

gambling activity covered by your license.
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(4) If your license expires, you must submit an application and 

you must not operate any gambling activity until a new license is is-

sued.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-132 Late filing of quarterly license reports or late 

payment of quarterly license fees—Penalties. (1) Licensees who do not 

file their quarterly license reports and/or pay quarterly license fees 

within thirty days from the end of each quarter are in violation of 

this chapter.
 

(2) Licensees will be afforded one thirty-day late filing and 

payment period after their quarterly license reports and quarterly li-

cense fees are due. However, a twenty-five dollar fee will be charged 

for each day a licensee fails to file a quarterly license report or 

pay quarterly license fees during the thirty-day late filing and pay-

ment period.
 

(3) A licensee's failure to file quarterly license reports or pay 

quarterly license fees during the thirty-day late filing and payment 

period could result in administrative action against your licenses.
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(4) Licensees will be responsible for paying any outstanding li-

cense fees including, but not limited to, late fees and any additional 

costs associated with the collection of these fees before a license 

suspension is lifted or a new licensing application is approved.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-134 Amending quarterly license reports and changes to 

quarterly license fees paid. (1) You must amend any previously submit-

ted quarterly license reports immediately upon discovering a discrep-

ancy in reporting your gross gambling receipts or quarterly license 

fees paid.
 

(2) Any additional quarterly license fees due as a result of an 

amended quarterly license report will be due immediately upon filing 

your amended quarterly license report. You may face administrative ac-

tion against your license for failing to accurately report. If you 

overpaid your quarterly license fees, you may receive a refund after 

we deduct our processing costs.
 

(3) You must submit amended quarterly license reports and any re-

lated payments to us online unless you have a waiver.
 

[]
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 17 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-136 Prorating or refunding fees. (1) We may prorate 

organization license fees when we adjust expiration dates to schedule 

our workload.
 

(2) We may adjust expiration dates to end on the same day for or-

ganizations licensed for more than one activity. Whenever we adjust 

license expiration dates under this provision, we may prorate the re-

quired fees.
 

(3) We will not prorate or refund fees when:
 

(a) You discontinue your gambling activities; or
 

(b) You voluntarily surrender your license or permit; or
 

(c) We suspend or revoke your license.
 

(4) We keep a portion of your application or license fees for 

processing costs when:
 

(a) We deny or administratively close your application; or
 

(b) You withdraw your application; or
 

(c) You overpaid us; or
 

(d) We received duplicate license fees.
 

[]
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 18 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-138 Returned payments. (1) If your bank returns your 

payment to us for any reason, you must:
 

(a) Pay us in full, by certified check, money order, or cash, 

within five days of notification; and
 

(b) Reimburse our processing costs which would include, but not 

be limited to, time spent notifying you and seeking payment.
 

(2) If you fail to pay within five days of notification:
 

(a) We will administratively close your application; or
 

(b) Your license expires and all gambling activity must stop.
 

(3) If we administratively close your application or your license 

expires, you must give us a new application with fees paid by certi-

fied check, money order, or cash in order to be considered for a li-

cense.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-140 Outstanding fees. (1) You must pay all outstanding 

fees assessed and owed if you:
 

(a) Stop operating the gambling activity; or
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 19 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(b) Close your business; or
 

(c) Surrender your license; or
 

(d) Do not renew your license; or
 

(e) Your license is revoked.
 

(2) If you do not pay, we may take action against other licenses 

you hold or refer the debt to collections, or both.
 

(3) Licensees will be responsible for paying any outstanding li-

cense fees, including late fees, and any additional licensing or pro-

cessing costs associated with the collection of these fees before a 

licensing suspension is lifted or any new licensing application is ap-

proved.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-142 Fees for review of gambling equipment, supplies, 

services, or games. (1) You must submit gambling equipment, supplies, 

services, or games for our review.
 

(2) You must pay the application deposit before we perform the 

review.
 

(3) You must also reimburse us for any additional costs of the 

review.
 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 20 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-160 Charitable or nonprofit organization fees. Bona 

fide charitable and nonprofit organizations must pay the following 

fees:
 

(1) Annual licenses:
 

 

License Type Base License Fee 
Gross Gambling Receipts 

Rate 
Maximum Annual License 

Fee 
Amusement games $65 plus $65 per approved 

location 0.730% $1,000 
Bingo $65 0.460% $11,000 
Card games - House-banked $10,000 1.462% $40,000 
Card games - Nonhouse-
banked $65 0.430% $1,000 
Combination $125 - - 
Fund-raising equipment 
distributor $270 1.430% $700 
Punchboard/pull-tabs $650 1.430% $10,000 
Raffles $65 3.380% $2,000 
Enhanced raffles $5,000 0.430% $32,000 

 

(2) Event licenses or permits:
 

 

License Type Base License Fee 
Gross Gambling Receipts 

Rate 
Maximum Annual License 

Fee 
Fund-raising event $180 3.130% $1,000 
Recreational gaming 
activity $65 - - 

Special property 
bingo/change of bingo 
premises $30 

- - 
 

(3) Change fees:
 

 

Change of: Fee 
Name $100 
Location $100 
Fund-raising event 
location, date, or time $50 

 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 21 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(4) Other fees:
 

 

Transaction Fee 
Add a new amusement 
game location $65 
Duplicate license $50 
Review, inspection, and/or 
evaluation of gambling 
equipment, supplies, 
services, games, or 
schemes 

Deposit and cost 
reimbursement 

 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-165 Commercial stimulant organization fees. All com-

mercial stimulant organizations must pay the following fees:
 

(1) Annual licenses:
 

 

License Type Base License Fee 
Gross Gambling Receipts 

Rate 
Maximum Annual License 

Fee 
Card games - Nonhouse-
banked $65 1.462% $20,000 
Card games - House-banked $10,000 1.462% $40,000 
Punchboards/pull-tabs $700 1.430% $13,000 

 

(2) Change fees:
 

 

Change of: Fee 
Name $100 
Location $100 
Business classification 
(same owners) $100 
Corporate stock/limited 
liability company 
shares/units $100 
License transfers $100 

 

(3) Other fees:
 

 

Transaction Fee 
Duplicate License $50 

 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 22 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-05-170 Fees for other businesses. All other business or-

ganizations must pay the following fees:
 

(1) Annual licenses or permits:
 

 

License Type Base License Fee 
Gross Gambling Receipts 

Rate 
Maximum Annual License 

Fee 
Agricultural fair bingo 
(annual permit) $200 - - 

Call centers for enhanced 
raffles $4,800 - - 

Commercial amusement 
games 

$500 plus $65 per approved 
location 1.130% $11,000 

Distributor $700 1.430% $7,000 
Fund-raising event 
distributor $280 1.430% $1,000 
Manufacturer $1,500 1.430% $25,000 
Manufacturer's special sales 
permit $250 - - 

Punchboard/pull-tab service 
business permit $250 - - 

Gambling service supplier $300 1.430% $7,000 
 

(2) Events or permits:
 

 

License or Permit Type Base License Fee 
Gross Gambling Receipts 

Rate 
Maximum Annual License 

Fee 
Recreational gaming 
activity $65 - - 

Special property bingo $30 - - 
 

(3) Change fees:
 

 

Change of: Fee 
Name $100 
Location $100 
Business classification 
(same owners) $100 
Corporate stock/limited 
liability company 
shares/units $100 
License transfers $100 

 



  

10/3/2017 3:46 PM [ 23 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9047.3 
  

(4) Other fees:
 

 

Transaction Fee 
Add a new amusement 
game location $65 
Defective 
punchboard/pull-tab cost 
recovery fees Up to $100 
Duplicate license $50 
Pre- and post-licensing 
investigations 

Cost reimbursement 

Review, inspection, and/or 
evaluation of gambling 
equipment, supplies, 
services, games, schemes, 
or group 12 amusement 
games 

Deposit and cost 
reimbursement 

 

[]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-03 WAC
 

PERMITTING AND LICENSING RULES
 

Last Update: 9/8/16
 

WAC
 

ACTIVITIES REQUIRING A PERMIT AND RULES FOR THOSE ACTIVITIES
 

230-03-005
 

Permits for recreational gaming activities.
 

230-03-010 Fund-raising equipment distributors must report recreational gaming activities. 

230-03-015
 

Permits to conduct bingo at agricultural fairs.
 

230-03-018
 

One annual change of bingo premises allowed.
 

230-03-020
 

Punchboard and pull-tab service business permit.
 

230-03-025
 

Applying for a manufacturer's special sales permit. 

APPLYING FOR A LICENSE
 

230-03-030
 

Other licenses, certificates, inspections, or permits needed to be considered for a gam-

bling license.
 

230-03-035
 

Applying for a license.
 

230-03-040
 

Signing the application.
 

230-03-045
 

Defining substantial interest holder.
 

230-03-050
 

Additional information required from applicants for licensing.
 

230-03-052
 

Registered agent to be appointed by out-of-state applicants and licensees.
 

230-03-055
 

Reporting changes to application.
 

230-03-060
 

Fingerprinting.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-061
 

Fingerprinting persons holding an interest in the building of house-banked card room li-

censees or charitable or nonprofit licensees in regulatory groups III, IV, or V.
 

230-03-065
 

Spouses must also be qualified.
 

230-03-070
 

Training required for licensing.
 

230-03-075 

 

Withdrawing your application. 

LICENSE APPROVAL
 

230-03-080 

 

License approval process. 

LICENSE DENIAL, SUSPENSION, OR REVOCATION 

230-03-085
 

Denying, suspending, or revoking an application, license or permit.
 

ADDITIONAL LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARITABLE AND NONPROFIT APPLICANTS
 

230-03-090
 

Defining "agricultural."
 

230-03-095
 

Defining "athletic."
 

230-03-100
 

Defining "charitable."
 

230-03-105
 

Defining "civic."
 

230-03-110
 

Defining "educational."
 

230-03-115
 

Defining "fraternal."
 

230-03-120
 

Defining "patriotic."
 

230-03-125
 

Defining "political."
 

230-03-130
 

Defining "religious."
 

230-03-135
 

Defining "social."
 

230-03-140
 

Full and regular membership requirements.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-145
 

Additional requirements for charitable and nonprofit licensing.
 

230-03-150
 

Additional requirements for branches or chapters of eligible parent organizations.
 

230-03-152
 

Additional requirements for enhanced raffles.
 

230-03-155
 

Submitting a proposed plan of operations for charitable and nonprofit organizations.
 

230-03-160 

 

230-03-161 

230-03-162
 

Licensed charitable or nonprofit organizations prohibited from managing or operating com-

mercial gambling activities. 

Applying for a combination license. 

Applying for a fund-raising event license. 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL LICENSING AMUSEMENT GAME LICENSE APPLICANTS
 

230-03-163 

230-03-164 

230-03-165
 

Applying for a charitable or nonprofit amusement game license. 

Applying for a commercial amusement game license. 

Information required with license application for commercial amusement games.
 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL STIMULANT APPLICANTS
 

230-03-170
 

Defining "business premises."
 

230-03-175
 

Requirements for commercial stimulant businesses.
 

ADDITIONAL LICENSING REQUIREMENTS CARD ROOM LICENSE APPLICANTS
 

230-03-177 

230-03-178 

 

230-03-179 

230-03-180
 

Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games – charitable or nonprofit organizations. 

Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games and/or a Class F endorsement - commercial 

organizations. 

Applying to operate a house-banked card game. 

Additional information required for a house-banked card room application.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MANUFACTURER, DISTRIBUTOR, AND GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIER LICENSE APPLICANTS 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-185
 

Applying for a manufacturer license.
 

230-03-190 

230-03-192
 

Applying for a distributor license. 

Applying for a fund-raising equipment distributor license.
 

230-03-195
 

Additional information required from manufacturer and distributor license applicants.
 

230-03-200
 

Defining "gambling equipment."
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIERS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-210
 

Applying for a gambling service supplier license.
 

230-03-211
 

Defining "lending agent," "loan servicer," or "placement agent."
 

230-03-212
 

Defining "regulated lending institution."
 

230-03-215
 

Gambling service suppliers prohibited from assuming ultimate responsibility.
 

230-03-220
 

Marketing level restrictions for punchboard or pull-tab manufacturers, distributors, or 

operators.
 

230-03-225
 

Marketing level restrictions for punchboard or pull-tab gambling service suppliers.
 

REQUIREMENTS FORLICENSING LINKED BINGO PRIZE PROVIDERS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-230
 

Applying for linked bingo prize provider license.
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSING CALL CENTERS APPLICANTS
 

230-03-232
 

Applying for an enhanced raffle call center license.
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL LICENSES
 

LICENSING CHARITABLE OR NONPROFIT GAMBLING MANAGERS
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-03-235
 

Applying for charitable or nonprofit gambling manager license.
 

230-03-240
 

Working before receiving a charitable or nonprofit gambling manager license.
 

230-03-245
 

Licensing period for charitable or nonprofit gambling manager.
 

LICENSING COMMERCIAL GAMBLING MANAGERS
 

230-03-250
 

Applying for a commercial gambling manager license.
 

230-03-255
 

Working before receiving a commercial gambling manager license.
 

230-03-260
 

Licensing period for commercial gambling manager.
 

LICENSING CARD ROOM EMPLOYEES
 

230-03-265
 

Applying for a card room employee license.
 

230-03-270
 

Working as a card room employee before receiving a license.
 

230-03-275
 

Licensing period for card room employee.
 

230-03-280
 

Substantial interest holders not required to be licensed as card room employees.
 

230-03-285
 

Class III gaming employee working as card room employee.
 

LICENSING REPRESENTATIVESEPRESENTATIVE LICENSING
 

230-03-300
 

Applying for a manufacturer's representative license.
 

230-03-305
 

Applying for a distributor's representative license.
 

230-03-310
 

Applying for a gambling service supplier's representative license.
 

230-03-315
 

Applying for a linked bingo prize provider representative license.
 

230-03-317
 

Applying for an enhanced raffle call center representative license.
 

230-03-320
 

Substantial interest holders not required to be licensed as representatives.
 

230-03-325
 

Office, clerical, or warehouse workers not required to be licensed as representatives.
 



WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING

230-03-330
 

Representing one or more licensed businesses.
 

230-03-335
 

Representatives must not work before receiving a license.
 

230-03-340
 

Gambling service supplier representative must report conflicts of interest.
 

DISPOSITION OF SECTIONS FORMERLY CODIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER
 

230-03-001
 

"We," "our," and "us" mean the commission and staff. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. 

WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-001, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by 

WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070.
 

230-03-051
 

Incorporated cities and towns exempt from some information requirements for application. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-051, filed 

3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), filed 10/22/07, effec-

tive 1/1/08. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 

230-03-290
 

Card room employees working for additional employer or changing employer. [Statutory Au-

thority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-290, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 08-21-087 (Order 633), filed 10/14/08, effective 1/1/09. Statu-

tory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-07-157, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08)
 

WAC 230-03-015 Permits to conduct bingo at agricultural fairs. 

(1) You must apply to us if you wish to operate bingo games at agri-

cultural fairs licensed to conduct bingo. You may apply for either:
 

(a) An annual permit to conduct bingo games at different agricul-

tural fairs; or
 

(b) A special property bingo permit to conduct bingo games at a 

single agricultural fair.
 

(2) Each agricultural fair is fully responsible for the operation 

of bingo conducted under its license.
 

(3) A commercial or charitable or nonprofit organization may ap-

ply for a special property bingo permit.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-015, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-07-157, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08)
 

WAC 230-03-035 Applying for a license. (1) You must fully com-

plete the license application form we provide in order to be consid-



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

ered for a license. You must return it, along with the appropriate 

fees, to our headquarters office.
 

(2) If your application is incomplete, you must provide us with 

the required items within thirty days of notification or we may admin-

istratively close the application.
 

(3) Applicants for a new organization license or permit will sub-

mit the base license fee for each authorized activity they are apply-

ing for with their application.
 

(4) Applicants for a new individual license will submit the annu-

al license fee they are applying for with their application.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-035, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 13-19-056, filed 9/16/13, effective 

10/17/13)
 

WAC 230-03-060 Fingerprinting. (1) The following persons must 

submit fingerprints and undergo a national criminal history background 

check:
 

(a) Substantial interest holders of commercial businesses and 

charitable or nonprofit organizations who live or have lived out of 

the state in the last ten years; and
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(b) Card room employees, commercial and nonprofit gambling manag-

ers, and manufacturer, distributor, service supplier, call centers for 

enhanced raffles, and linked bingo prize provider representatives; and
 

(c) Any other substantial interest holder when we have infor-

mation they may not be qualified for licensure or to participate in a 

gambling activity.; and
 

(2) ((Applicants or licensees for the following activities)) Rec-

reational gaming activity and agricultural fair permit holders do not 

need to submit fingerprints((: Recreational gaming activities, agri-

cultural fair permits, and Class A commercial amusement games)).
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0209. WSR 13-19-056 (Order 

692), § 230-03-060, filed 9/16/13, effective 10/17/13. Statutory Au-

thority: RCW 9.46.070(7). WSR 13-17-018 (Order 690), § 230-03-060, 

filed 8/9/13, effective 9/9/13. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 

06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-060, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 16-19-015, filed 9/8/16, effective 

10/9/16)
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-161 Applying for a combination license. (1) Charitable 

or nonprofit organizations may apply for a combination license to op-

erate one or more of the following gambling activities:
 

(a) Authorized nonhouse-banked card games without collection of a 

fee to play; and
 

(b) Raffles with gross gambling receipts up to two thousand dol-

lars during the license year; and
 

(c) Bingo with gross gambling receipts up to twenty-five thousand 

dollars during the license year; and
 

(d) Amusement games, owned and operated by the organization, with 

gross gambling receipts up to seven thousand five hundred dollars dur-

ing the license year.
 

(2) You must apply for a separate license if any of the gambling 

activities in subsection (1)(b) through (d) of this section you oper-

ate will exceed the gross gambling receipt limits specified during 

your license year.
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-162 Applying for a fund-raising event license. (1) 

Charitable or nonprofit organizations may offer fund-raising events as 

authorized by RCW 9.46.0233.
 

(2) Your organization must apply for a fund-raising event license 

to operate gambling activities for:
 

(a) One event not to exceed twenty-four consecutive hours; or
 

(b) One event not to exceed seventy-two consecutive hours; or
 

(c) Participation in joint fund-raising events; or
 

(d) One limited fund-raising event not to exceed six consecutive 

hours.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-163 Applying for a charitable or nonprofit amusement 

game license. You must apply for a charitable or nonprofit amusement 

game license if your organization owns, leases or rents approved 

amusement games and:
 

(1) Operates the approved amusement games in your licensed loca-

tion; or
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(2) Rents or leases approved amusement games for operation in ap-

proved locations.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-164 Applying for a commercial amusement game license. 

(1) You must apply for a commercial amusement game license if your 

business:
 

(a) Owns and operates approved amusement games in your licensed 

location; or
 

(b) Rents or leases approved amusement games for operation in ap-

proved locations.
 

(2) Your business can operate approved amusement games in multi-

ple approved locations under the same license as long as the locations 

are owned by the same business.
 

[]
 

WAC 230-03-177 Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games—

Charitable or nonprofit organizations. (1) You must apply for a non-

house-banked card game license if you are a charitable or nonprofit 

organization that wants to:
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(a) Offer for play authorized nonhouse-banked card games, whether 

a fee to play is charged or not; and/or
 

(b) Conduct approved tournaments.
 

(2) You may not operate more than fifteen card tables.
 

[]
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-178 Applying to operate nonhouse-banked card games 

and/or a Class F endorsement—Commercial organizations. (1) You must 

apply for a nonhouse-banked card game license if you are a commercial 

stimulant business that wants to:
 

(a) Offer for play authorized nonhouse-banked card games, whether 

a fee to play is charged or not; and/or
 

(b) Conduct approved tournaments.
 

(2) You must apply for a Class F endorsement to use:
 

(a) Authorized alternative fee collections; and/or
 

(b) Player-supported jackpots.
 

(3) You may not operate more than fifteen card tables.
 

[]
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-179 Applying to operate house-banked card games. (1) 

You must apply for a house-banked card game license if you want to of-

fer for play authorized house-banked card games.
 

(2) With this license, you may also: 
 

(a) Offer for play nonhouse-banked card games; and/or
 

(b) Conduct approved tournaments; and/or
 

(c) Offer player-supported jackpots; and/or
 

(d) Use alternative fee collection.
 

(3) You may not operate more than fifteen card tables.
 

[]
 

WAC 230-03-185 Applying for a manufacturer license. (1) You must 

apply for a manufacturer license if you:
 

(a) Make or assemble a completed piece or pieces of gambling 

equipment for use in authorized gambling activities; or
 

(b) Convert, modify, combine, add to, or remove parts or compo-

nents of any gambling equipment for use in authorized gambling activi-

ties; or
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(c) Manufacture group 12 amusement games approved or modified af-

ter May 1, 2016. Manufacturers of group 12 amusement games that were 

approved before the effective date of this rule must apply by May 1, 

2016, and be licensed by December 31, 2016. Manufacturers of group 12 

amusement games can sell or lease group 12 amusement games to a li-

censed distributor or ((a Class B or above)) an amusement game licen-

see.
 

(2) You must demonstrate your ability to comply with all manufac-

turing, quality control, and operations restrictions imposed on au-

thorized gambling equipment that you want to manufacture or market for 

use in Washington state.
 

(3) The licensing process may include an on-site review of your 

manufacturing equipment and process for each separate type of author-

ized gambling equipment to ensure compliance capability.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-

03-185, filed 9/8/16, effective 10/9/16; WSR 16-08-033 (Order 718), § 

230-03-185, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 09-11-085 (Order 646), § 230-03-185, filed 5/18/09, ef-

fective 7/1/09; WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-185, filed 

3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 16-19-015, filed 9/8/16, effective 

10/9/16)
 

WAC 230-03-190 Applying for a distributor license. You must apply 

for a distributor license if you:
 

(1) Buy or otherwise obtain a finished piece of gambling equip-

ment for use in authorized gambling activities from another person and 

sell or provide that gambling equipment to a third person for resale, 

display, or use; or
 

(2) Are a manufacturer who sells or provides gambling equipment 

you do not make to any other person for resale, display, or use; or
 

(3) Service and repair authorized gambling equipment. However, 

distributors must not add, modify, or alter the gambling equipment; or
 

(4) Modify gambling equipment using materials provided by manu-

facturers to upgrade equipment to current technology.
 

(5) Buy or lease a group 12 amusement game from another licensee 

and sell or lease the group 12 amusement game to ((a Class B and 

above)) an amusement game licensee.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-

03-190, filed 9/8/16, effective 10/9/16; WSR 16-08-033 (Order 718), § 

230-03-190, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-03-190, filed 3/22/06, ef-

fective 1/1/08.]
 

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-07-157, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08)
 

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-03-192 Applying for a fund-raising equipment distributor 

license. (1) You must apply for a fund-raising equipment distributor 

license if you are a commercial or charitable or nonprofit organiza-

tion and want to:
 

(a) Rent or lease gambling equipment to:
 

(i) Fund-raising event license holder; or
 

(ii) A qualified organization, business or association for recre-

ational gaming activities; or
 

(b) Organize and conduct recreational gaming activities.
 

(2) Fund-raising equipment distributors cannot make their own 

gambling equipment.
 

[]
 

 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

WAC 230-03-235 Applying for charitable or nonprofit gambling man-

ager license. You must apply for a charitable or nonprofit gambling 

manager license if you are an employee or member of a charitable or 

nonprofit organization who:
 

(1) Will have control to a material degree over a ((Class D and 

above)) bingo ((license)) or punchboard and pull-tab licensee with 

hose gross gambling receipts overare more than one hundred fifty thou-

sand dollars in atheir previous licensing year; or
 

(2) ((Will have control to a material degree over a Class C and 

above punch boards and pull-tabs license; or
 

(3))) Will be the supervisor of gambling managers who manage ((a 

Class D and above bingo license or Class C and above)): A bingo or 

punch board((s)) and pull-tab((s license)) licensee with gross gam-

bling receipts over more than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in 

atheir previous license year; or
 

(((4))) (3) Will be assigned the highest level of authority by 

the officers or governing board of directors to manage the day-to-day 

affairs of the organization and is responsible for safeguarding assets 

purchased with gambling funds and/or managing the disbursement of gam-

bling funds when the organization:
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(a) Is licensed to receive more than three hundred thousand dol-

lars in gross gambling receipts; or
 

(b) Has established a trust and/or endowment fund to which gam-

bling receipts in excess of one hundred thousand dollars have been 

contributed; or
 

(((5))) (4) Will be the supervisor of the operation of progres-

sive jackpot pull-tab games.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-235, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-07-157, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08)
 

WAC 230-03-265 Applying for a card room employee license. You 

must apply for a card room employee license:
 

(1) If you will be involved in the operation of a((:
 

(1) Class E card room; or
 

(2) Class F card room; or
 

(3) House-banked card room; and
 

(4))) nonhouse-banked card room, Class F endorsed nonhouse-banked 

card room, or house-banked card room; and
 

(2) You perform any of the following functions:
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(a) Collecting fees; or
 

(b) Dealing; or
 

(c) Supervising any card game or other card room employee, such 

as acting as a pit boss, floor person, or section supervisor; or
 

(d) Selling or redeeming chips; or
 

(e) Performing cashier or cage duties such as counting and han-

dling chips or cash, completing credit slips, fill slips, or inventory 

slips, or accounting for other card room receipts in the cage; or
 

(f) Observing dealers and card games to detect cheating or con-

trol functions; or
 

(g) Controlling card room funds including keys to secure loca-

tions; or
 

(h) Taking part in the operation of a card game.
 

(3) A Class B card room employee license is required to work at a 

house-banked card room and Class F endorsed nonhouse-banked card room.
 

(4) A Class A card room employee license is required to work at a 

nonhouse-banked card room.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-265, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-07-157, filed 3/22/06, effective 

1/1/08)
 

WAC 230-03-285 Class III gaming employee working as card room em-

ployee. A certified Class III gaming employee must submit an 

((add/transfer)) application and pay a fee before beginning work for a 

public card room.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), § 230-

03-285, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-24-012, filed 11/20/09, effective 

12/21/09)
 

WAC 230-03-330 Representing one or more licensed businesses. (1) 

If you are a licensed distributor representative, gambling service 

supplier representative, or a linked bingo prize provider representa-

tive or applying for one of these representative licenses, you must 

represent only one licensed distributor, gambling service supplier, or 

linked bingo prize provider at a time.
 

(2) If you are a licensed manufacturer representative, you may 

represent more than one licensed manufacturer.
 



  

9/15/2017 2:28 PM [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9082.1 
  

(3) If the owner you represent owns more than one licensed busi-

ness, you may represent the owner in all those licensed businesses, 

including licensed manufacturers((, without applying for another rep-

resentative license)).
 

(4) You must submit an application and pay a fee before beginning 

work at a new or additional employer.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 09-24-012 (Order 664), § 230-

03-330, filed 11/20/09, effective 12/21/09; WSR 06-07-157 (Order 457), 

§ 230-03-330, filed 3/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK



From: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
To: Rancour, Michelle (GMB)
Subject: FW: fee schedual
Date: Thursday, November 02, 2017 4:25:09 PM

Please save this with the other feedback from stakeholders.
 
From: David Thompson [mailto:dthomp3511@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, November 2, 2017 3:12 PM
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB) <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: fee schedual
 
WSGC, Commissioners,
                                       The new fee schedule represents a 48% increase for a $700,000 limit
pulltab license. In 28 years of operating  a Bar and Grill the WSGC has not provided for any
kind of mechanism to pass through ever increasing costs. Minimum wage has gone from
$4.25/hr to$13.00/hr and game cost has gone from $10.00 per bag to $36.00 per bag, Not to
mention all of the other costs associated with the day to day operation that go up every year.
Without some kind of a method to transfer these costs to the consumer the gross margin in
gambling has become so thin that it is a real option to discontinue the sale of pulltabs and lay
off the corresponding labor and not spend the license fees. Without a cost pass through option
the new fees are completely unfair, 
 
                                                  Thanks, David Thompson,Pres. Dave's Bar and Grill
                                                                                            Pres.. Modern Electric and Water
Company
                                                                                            Director, Spokane Valley Chamber
of Commerce 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TINAG
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Trujillo, Dave (GMB)
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB); Rancour, Michelle (GMB)
Cc: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Wilson, Tyson (GMB)
Subject: FW: New fees
Date: Tuesday, October 31, 2017 10:25:11 AM

Michelle, to be added to fee feedback for rule packets.
 

From: Griffin, Tina (GMB) 
Sent: Monday, October 23, 2017 10:25 AM
To: Trujillo, Dave (GMB) <dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Wilson, Tyson (GMB) <tyson.wilson@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: FW: New fees
 
FYI
 

From: Wilson, Tyson (GMB) 
Sent: Tuesday, October 10, 2017 12:43 PM
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB) <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: New fees
 
Tina,
 
I received a call today from Wes Fults, owner of Bonanza Press.  They are an “E” pull-tab
manufacturer, currently paying $3,654/yr.  He had a few concerns relating to the new fee structure
for manufacturers.  He does not like the cap on manufacturer fees.  He thinks everyone should pay
the same percentage regardless of receipts.
 
Here is an outline of his issues:
 
Bonanza Press should make about $2,000,000 in a year, per Wes.  That would be make his new fee
$25,000/yr.
Arrow, his competitor, makes about $8,000,000 a year, per Wes.  They would also pay $25,000/yr.
per the new fee structure.
 
If you are below the threshold of $25,000 at 1.430% you pay at 1.430% of your gross receipts.
 
Bonanza would pay at 1.25% based on $2,000,000 in gross receipts.
 
Arrow would pay at  0.3125% based on $8,000,000 in gross receipts.
 
He does not think it is fair that he is paying at a higher rate because his sales are less.
 
Just a heads up, he is concerned, guessing someone will hear from him.  I gave him and email and
phone number for license fee questions.
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DAVET
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tyson.wilson@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


Thanks,
 
Special Agent Tyson Wilson, CFE
Financial Investigations Unit
Washington State Gambling Commission
360-486-3592 (work)
360-280-4329 (cell)
 

















From: Trujillo, Dave (GMB)
To: Rancour, Michelle (GMB); Anderson, Julie (GMB)
Cc: FeeWorkGroup (GMB)
Subject: Reference Two Emails from Ms. Aleena Schneider
Date: Friday, October 27, 2017 1:33:10 PM

Michelle, please include this feedback in the rules packet.
 
Julie, once we have the November agenda finalized, please be sure Ms. Schneider is notified of date,
location and time. 
 
Thanks,
Dave
 
From: Aleena Schneider [mailto:aleena@harlequinproductions.org] 
Sent: Friday, October 27, 2017 1:07 PM
To: Trujillo, Dave (GMB) <dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Re: Meeting
 
Dave,
Yes, this seems to capture my concerns about the new rate structure. 
Thank you,
 
Aleena Schneider
General Manager
360-705-3250 Ext. 106
 
Harlequin Productions
202 4th Avenue East, Olympia, WA  98501
www.harlequinproductions.org
 
On Thu, Oct 26, 2017 at 9:05 AM, Trujillo, Dave (GMB) <dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov>
wrote:

Greetings Aleena,
Please review the following to see if I have captured the spirit of our meeting. If so, I’ll include this
in the rules packet and make sure that we notify you of the time, date and location of our
November Commission meeting.
It was nice to meet with you in person.  I am sending you this email to confirm I understand your
feedback.

1)      When you initially received notice that the Gambling Commission was simplifying it’s license
fee structure, you were happy.

2)      That happiness changed when you saw that the amount you would pay annually would
increase from $680 to $1,700.  You determined this by using the calculator added to our public
website.

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DAVET
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.harlequinproductions.org/
mailto:dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov


3)      You sent two emails to the agency using the feedback email provided on our website.  Both
were sent on October 12, 2017.

4)      You are concerned that by capping the amount a licensee will pay, the larger volume
organizations will be paying less than the smaller organizations.

5)      You are a small licensee and any increase in a license fee takes away from the services you
offer.

6)      We discussed the stakeholder workgroup that had been formed, their desire to be able to
have a fee with a min and max when planning budgets, and that the proposal allows for licensees
to pay after earning revenue and not have to pay in advance.  We also briefly discussed the rules
process and that final rules are still several months out.

7)      You were still concerned that the min and max does not help with your budget planning, your
fee more than doubles and it is not fair to your organization; as smaller licensee because you will
pay more as a percentage of revenue than a larger licensee.

8)      At the end of our meeting, I invited you to tell your story to the Commissioners in person at
our next public Commission meeting in November where the rules will be up for discussion.

Very Respectfully,
Dave
From: Aleena Schneider [mailto:aleena@harlequinproductions.org] 
Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2017 2:39 PM
To: Trujillo, Dave (GMB) <dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Re: Meeting today
Yes, that would be great.
Aleena Schneider
General Manager
360-705-3250 Ext. 106
 
Harlequin Productions
202 4th Avenue East, Olympia, WA  98501
www.harlequinproductions.org
On Thu, Oct 19, 2017 at 2:32 PM, Trujillo, Dave (GMB) <dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov>
wrote:

Hi Aleena,
I have time as early as 330pm if you are free to meet earlier today.
Dave
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

 

 

mailto:aleena@harlequinproductions.org
mailto:dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov
tel:(360)%20705-3250
https://maps.google.com/?q=202+4th+Avenue+East,+Olympia,+WA%C2%A0+98501&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=202+4th+Avenue+East,+Olympia,+WA%C2%A0+98501&entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.harlequinproductions.org/
mailto:dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov




From: FeeWorkGroup (GMB)
To: Considine, Brian (GMB)
Cc: FeeWorkGroup (GMB)
Subject: FW: New Fee Feedback
Date: Thursday, October 12, 2017 3:37:48 PM

 
 
From: Aleena Schneider [mailto:aleena@harlequinproductions.org] 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 3:33 PM
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB) <feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: New Fee Feedback
 

1.       What is the name of your charitable or nonprofit or commercial organization or business?

Harlequin Productions

2.       Does your organization or business have 50 or fewer employees?

Yes, far fewer.

3.       Will the proposed rules, including the new fee schedule, cost your business more than three-tenths
of one percent of annual revenue or income, or one hundred dollars, whichever is greater, or one percent
of annual payroll?

It appears that you are justifying your horrendous 150%
increase in gambling fees by looking beyond your
purview of gambling receipts to our other revenues. THIS
IS NOT OK! This proposed increase will cost us an additional $1,020
over our current rate of $680 for a total of $1,700 per year. That is a 150%
increase. We struggle for every dollar of revenue we receive in order to
keep afloat. It is not ok for the Gambling Commission to swoop in for a
larger share. It seems that you are, in effect, trying to get a percentage of
our other revenue and not just our gambling revenue. This is not ok. Your
proposed fees should be based only on our gambling revenues; our other
revenues should have nothing to do with this decision. 

4.       Will the proposed rules, excluding any proposed fee increase, require your organization or business
to incur additional costs, including equipment, supplies, labor, professional services, and/or administrative
costs?  If so, please identify your additional costs and provide your estimated cost for each category
listed.

Yes, 150% increase in gambling fees!

5.       Will the proposed rules cause you to gain or lose jobs at your business?  If so, please provide an
estimate of the number of jobs gained or lost.

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=FEEWORKGROUP147
mailto:brian.considine@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov


These new fees are a 150% increase over what we have been paying. This
is a ridiculously high increase for a small non-profit struggling to survive. We
may not make it another year and then all our employees will be out of work.
We need cooperation and support from the Gambling Commission. Please
leave non-profits alone in your quest to aggressively increase your revenue.

 
 
 
Aleena Schneider
General Manager
360-705-3250 Ext. 106
 
Harlequin Productions
202 4th Avenue East, Olympia, WA  98501
www.harlequinproductions.org

http://www.harlequinproductions.org/


From: Mark Skoglund
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB)
Subject: Re: Gambling Commission seeks input on redesigned fee structure
Date: Thursday, October 26, 2017 9:02:52 AM

1.       What is the name of your charitable or nonprofit or commercial organization or business?
          
           Fun Enterprises, Inc. aka Funtastic Shows

2.       Does your organization or business have 50 or fewer employees?

           No. We have in excess of 50 employees.

3.       Will the proposed rules, including the new fee schedule, cost your business more than three-tenths of one percent of
annual revenue or income, or one hundred dollars, whichever is greater, or one percent of annual payroll?

           The increase will cost us less than three-tenths of one percent of annual revenue.
           The increase will cost us less than one percent of annual payroll.

4.       Will the proposed rules, excluding any proposed fee increase, require your organization or business to incur additional
costs, including equipment, supplies, labor, professional services, and/or administrative costs?  If so, please identify your
additional costs and provide your                     estimated cost for each category listed.

          If quarterly filing is required, the additional filing of quarterly rather than
annually will cause some additional administrative effort but the cost will be minimal. If
annual reporting is still available, there will be no increase in cost.

5.       Will the proposed rules cause you to gain or lose jobs at your business?  If so, please provide an estimate of the number
of jobs gained or lost.

          There will be no job gain or job loss.

On Thu, Oct 12, 2017 at 12:21 PM, FeeWorkGroup (GMB) <feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov>
wrote:

[cid:image009.png@01D34354.B0177EC0]

 [FB icon] <https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/>   [twitter icon]
<https://twitter.com/WAGambling>   [instagram_2016_icon_email]
<https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/>   [In-2C-21px-R] <https://www.linkedin.com/
company-beta/16262525/>

October 12, 2017

mailto:mark.skoglund@funtasticshows.com
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/
https://twitter.com/WAGambling
https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/


Dear Licensee,

The staff at the Washington State Gambling Commission is working to make it easier and
more convenient for you to apply for your gambling licenses by creating a simpler and more
flexible fee structure. The commissioners have initiated the rule-making process and the first
rules package<http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/09-2017-rule-package-1-sept-
comm-mtg.pdf>, including a proposed fee schedule<http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-
fee/proposed-fee-schedule-sept-comm-mtg.pdf>, has been filed.

The redesigned fee structure will:

*       Reduce the number of fee categories.

*       Eliminate the need for you to estimate future gambling receipts in order to determine
license classes.

*       Allow you to take in revenue before you pay fees.

*       Provide you the ability to calculate and pay fees online using My Account.

*       Allow you to make quarterly payments rather than annual or biennial payments.
Our projections indicate that your licensing fees will increase $100 or more under the new
fee schedule if your current gross revenue remains constant for 2018-19.  For your
convenience, we have a fee calculator<http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/license-fee-calc.aspx> on
our website<http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/license-fee.aspx>, which you can use to estimate your
license fees under the proposed fee schedule.

The Gambling Commission would like your input on the redesigned fee structure, including
the proposed fee schedule. Your feedback is optional, but we would appreciate your
responses to the following questions:

1.       What is the name of your charitable or nonprofit or commercial organization or
business?

2.       Does your organization or business have 50 or fewer employees?

3.       Will the proposed rules, including the new fee schedule, cost your business more than
three-tenths of one percent of annual revenue or income, or one hundred dollars, whichever
is greater, or one percent of annual payroll?

4.       Will the proposed rules, excluding any proposed fee increase, require your
organization or business to incur additional costs, including equipment, supplies, labor,
professional services, and/or administrative costs?  If so, please identify your additional
costs and provide your estimated cost for each category listed.

5.       Will the proposed rules cause you to gain or lose jobs at your business?  If so, please
provide an estimate of the number of jobs gained or lost.

http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/09-2017-rule-package-1-sept-comm-mtg.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/09-2017-rule-package-1-sept-comm-mtg.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/proposed-fee-schedule-sept-comm-mtg.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/proposed-fee-schedule-sept-comm-mtg.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/license-fee-calc.aspx
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/license-fee.aspx


Please submit your responses to feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov<
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov> no later than Wed., Oct. 31, 2017 in order for them to
be considered by the Commissioners at their November public meeting.

All emails received by Dec. 18, 2017 will be considered prior to final action.

The Commissioners will continue discussing rules for the redesigned fee structure at their
upcoming meetings. You can find the dates and locations of the meetings on our
website<http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/meetings.aspx> and social media.

Sincerely,

Brian Considine
Legal & Legislative Manager
Washington State Gambling Commission

[FB icon]<https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/>  [twitter icon]
<https://twitter.com/WAGambling>   [instagram_2016_icon_email]
<https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/>   [In-2C-21px-R] <https://www.linkedin.com/
company-beta/16262525/>

-- 

Mark L. Skoglund C.F.O.

Funtastic Shows, Inc.

3407 SE 108th Avenue

Portland, OR 97266-2273

503 761-0989 phone

503 761-6648 fax

mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/meetings.aspx
https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/
https://twitter.com/WAGambling
https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/






From: Victoria Carlson
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB)
Subject: RE: Commissioners vote to file first rules package for redesigned fee structure
Date: Thursday, October 05, 2017 4:06:34 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image004.png
image008.png
image010.png
image012.png

Does this apply to us? we just install cameras.
 

From: FeeWorkGroup (GMB) [mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2017 1:23 PM
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB) <feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Commissioners vote to file first rules package for redesigned fee structure
 
 

 
 
 

       

 
October 5, 2017
 
Dear Licensee,
 
Last month, we sent you an email announcing that we are making it easier and more convenient
for you to apply for, and renew, your gambling licenses by creating a simpler and more flexible fee
structure.
 
On Sept. 14, the commissioners voted unanimously to file the first rules package for the
redesigned fee structure. This is the first of several steps in the rule-making process and includes a
proposed fee schedule.
 
The current fee structure originated in the 1970’s when the first gambling activities were legalized
in Washington State. The gambling industry has seen many changes since then, which has caused
the fee schedule to become complex and cumbersome over the years. Today, the schedule
includes 194 different fees and requires licensees to estimate gambling receipts for the upcoming
year in order to determine which license to apply for. Estimating revenues often results in
overpaid fees, which require refunds, or underpaid fees, which carry penalties.
 
To address the fee schedule, we formed a work group, comprised of representatives from across
the industry. Over the past year, the group has met several times and provided input to staff, so

mailto:victoria@connectionsit.com
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/
https://twitter.com/WAGambling
https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/proposed-fee-schedule-sept-comm-mtg.pdf


























that a new fee structure could be designed.
 
The redesigned fee structure will:

·       Reduce the number of fee categories.
·       Eliminate the need for you to estimate future gambling receipts in order to determine

license classes.
·       Allow you to take in revenue before you pay fees.
·       Provide you the ability to calculate and pay fees online using My Account.
·       Allow you to make quarterly payments rather than annual or biennial payments.

 
The Commissioners will continue discussing rules for the redesigned fee structure at their
upcoming meetings. Staff will be available to answer your questions immediately prior to start of
each meeting.
 
We’ve created an online calculator that you can use to calculate your fees based on the proposed
schedule. Our goal is to implement the new fee structure on July 1, 2018.  When you would begin
paying your fees under the new fee structure depends on when your license year ends.  For
example, if your license expires June 30, 2018, you’ll start using the new system on July 1, 2018.  If
your license year doesn’t end until Dec. 31, 2018, you would not start paying fees under the new
system until Jan. 1, 2019.
 
Your continuing feedback is important to us. To submit your comments or questions, please send
an email to feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov or give us a call at 360-486-3588. To receive the most
current updates, please visit our website and follow us on social media.
 
 
Sincerely,
 

Dave Trujillo
Executive Director
Washington State Gambling Commission
 

      
 

 
 
        

 

http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/license-fee-calc.aspx
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/license-fee.aspx
https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/
https://twitter.com/WAGambling
https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/


From: Hunter, Amy (GMB)
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB); Songer, Heather (GMB); Rancour, Michelle (GMB)
Subject: Fwd: Feedback
Date: Friday, September 15, 2017 7:08:03 PM

Hi Michelle. Heather and I talked about cc'ing the fee work group email whenever we respond
so whoever is checking the box will know if a response is gone out or not. Thanks so much to
both of you for all of your help!

Sent from my Verizon 4G LTE smartphone

-------- Original message --------
From: "Rancour, Michelle (GMB)" <michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov> 
Date: 9/13/17 9:33 AM (GMT-08:00) 
To: "McSweeney, John (GMB)" <mcsweeneyjw@yahoo.com> 
Cc: "Hunter, Amy (GMB)" <amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Feedback 

Hi John,

Thank you so much for the positive feedback.  I will definitely forward this on to our Commissioners and staff.

Have a wonderful day.

Sincerely,

Michelle Rancour
Assistant to Deputy Director
Washington State Gambling Commission
(360) 486-3447
            

-----Original Message-----
From: John McSweeney [mailto:mcsweeneyjw@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Friday, September 08, 2017 4:47 PM
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB) <feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Feedback

You are awesome! This will be a great improvement. The work performed prior to the tribal lawsuit seemed like it
was being honored by the commission. That was an uplifting feeling. The restructuring objectives are admirable. 

I can't attend the Spokane meeting but I'll bug the small pulltabs rep. 

Thanks again for your efforts. 

John Mcsweeney
Gambling Manager
Past President, Shoreline Elks
Elks Care, Elks Share

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AMYB
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:heather.songer@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:mcsweeneyjw@yahoo.com


From: Hunter, Amy (GMB)
To: FeeWorkGroup (GMB)
Subject: FW: Fee Simplification Work Continues - Ready for rulemaking
Date: Thursday, September 28, 2017 11:53:29 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image004.png

 
 

From: Hunter, Amy (GMB) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 8:37 PM
To: 'Scott Johnson' <scott@spokanepulltab.com>
Subject: RE: Fee Simplification Work Continues - Ready for rulemaking
 
Thanks, Scott.  I appreciate you getting back to me.  I don’t know if it helps with scheduling, but the
Commissioners are meeting Friday morning also.  If you wanted to come and address them, you
would sure be welcome.  I will pass along your comments.
 
Take care,
Amy
 
 
 

From: Scott Johnson [mailto:scott@spokanepulltab.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 1:06 PM
To: Hunter, Amy (GMB) <amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: Fee Simplification Work Continues - Ready for rulemaking
 
Thank you for the information, unfortunately I will not be able to attend the meeting.
 
Personally I would prefer the simple fee as opposed to a percentage of sales.  If you want to make it
easy and simple make it easy and simple.
 
I wish I could be there tomorrow, but there is my 2 cents.
 
Thank you
Scott
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scott Johnson
Spokane Pulltab & Bingo Supply

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AMYB
mailto:feeworkgroup@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:scott@spokanepulltab.com
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov










Spokane, Wa. 99202
 
509-747-1339
 

From: Hunter, Amy (GMB) [mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2017 10:38 AM
To: Scott Johnson
Subject: Fee Simplification Work Continues - Ready for rulemaking
 
Hi, Scott:
 
I hope you are doing well.  First, please accept my apologies for emailing you much later than I had
planned.  I met with you last year about a proposal the Gambling Commission was considering to
restructure its fees.  That proposal has changed quite a bit based on the feedback received while
meeting with you and other stakeholders.  We created a workgroup, which included all
segments of the gambling industry (commercial, nonprofit, and tribal).  Wendy Winsor, of
WOW Distributing, represented the distributors.  All workgroup members are listed here. 
Based on the feedback, the workgroup recommended the fee proposal I shared with you be
changed significantly. 
 
Here are a few highlights of the now-revised  proposal:
 

·       License fees will be based on a percentage per gambling activity, rather than the very
simplified approach we were working with before where there was one percentage for
organizations and one percentage for vendors. 

·       There will be a maximum fee, as well as a minimum fee.  Here are some examples by
activity:

 
 
Commercial Activities:
 
Distributors: Exact fee is still being worked out, but minimum fee will likely be in the

neighborhood of $700 (it’s $699 now) and the maximum fee will likely be in the
neighborhood of $7,000.  Right now, a Class F Distributor fee is $4,498.

Punchboard/Pull-tabs:  Minimum fee $700/Max. fee $13,000
 

 
Charitable/Nonprofit Activities:
Bingo:  Minimum fee $65/Max. fee $11,000
Punchboard/Pull-tabs – Minimum fee $650/Max. fee $10,000

 
Aspects of the proposal that have not changed:

·       Fees will be paid quarterly (compared to annually or semi-annually now).
·       Licensees will be able to use My Account to calculate and pay their fees.

 
At tomorrow’s September 14 Commission meeting in Spokane the Commissioners will be
discussing the revised proposal and voting on whether to begin the rulemaking process to
change the fee system.  This discussion will likely occur about 2:00 p.m.  Staff will be

mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/docs/license-fee/workgroup-rep-list-03202017.pdf


available to answer any questions you might have earlier that day, around 12:45 p.m.  If the
fee system is changed, changes would likely go into effect in July 2018.  Because this is the
only meeting the Commissioners have planned in Eastern Washington over the next several
months, I wanted to make sure you were aware of the meeting.  Our website is also the best
place to check for general updates.
 
If you would like to come to the meeting and share any comments with the Commissioners
directly, the meeting will be held at:
 
Red Lion River Inn Hotel
700 N. Division Street
Spokane, WA 99202
 
If you have any questions, please let me know.  My cell # is 360-701-1269.
 
Again, my apologies for this later than planned email.
 
Sincerely,
 
Amy
 
Amy B. Hunter
Deputy Director
Washington State Gambling Commission
(360) 486-3463

       
 
 
 

https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/
https://twitter.com/WAGambling
https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/


1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tab 8: NOVEMBER 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                             Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Changes  
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the October 2017 Commission Meeting 
 
This is the second of at least four packages staff will bring forward to make changes to the Commission’s 
licensing fee structure.  The key rules in this second package: 
 

• Delete references to the term “classes.” While the current fee structure is based on a “classes” 
system, the new proposed system is based primarily on gross gambling receipts.  Therefore, 
approximately twenty rules need to be changed to delete references to “classes.” 

 
• Establish new due dates for activity reports.  All licensees will begin reporting their activity 

quarterly beginning with the July 1-September 30 quarter.  These rules establish those new dates:  
o New language for (WAC 230-07-155) Reporting annual activities for raffles, enhanced 

raffles, amusement games, Class A, B or C bingo, or combination licenses; 
o New language for (WAC 230-07-160) Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs; 
o New language for (WAC 230-09-056) Activity reports for fund-raising events; 
o New language for (WAC’s 230-10-330 and 230-10-331) Activity reports for bingo, 

agricultural fairs, and other organizations. Activity reports for Class D and above bingo 
licensees; 

o New language for (WAC 230-13-169) Annual activity reports for commercial amusement 
game licensees; 

o New language for (WAC 230-14-284) Activity reports for punchboard pull-tab licensees; 
o New language for (WAC 230-15-200) Reporting card game activity; 
o Defining “activity reports by manufacturers and distributors.” (WAC 230-16-220) 

 

Rule Changes / Fee Simplification (Package #2) 
Various Rules in: 
• WAC 230-05-102 – All licensed organizations report activity quarterly 

beginning with the July 1, 2018 through September 30, 2018 quarter. 
• Chapter 230 – 06 WAC – Rules for all licensees. 
• Chapter 230 – 07 WAC – Charitable and nonprofit rules. 
• Chapter 230 – 09 WAC – Fund-raising event rules. 
• Chapter 230 – 10 WAC – Bingo Rules. 
• Chapter 230 – 11 WAC – Raffles. 
• Chapter 230 – 13 WAC – Amusement game rules. 
• Chapter 230 – 14 WAC – Punchboard and pull tab. 
• Chapter 230 – 15 WAC – Card game rules. 
• Chapter 230 – 16 WAC – Manufacturer, distributor, and gambling service 

supplier rules. 
• Chapter 230 – 17 WAC – Brief Adjudicative Proceedings. 
• WAC 230-03-085 – Denying, suspending, or revoking an application, license or 

permit. 
 
November 2017 – Up for Further Discussion 
October 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
 



2 

• Adds the process (brief adjudicative proceeding) we will use if licensees don’t submit their 
quarterly license reports and/or quarterly license fees. 

Rules package #3 sets the individual license fees under the new license fee structure. 
 
A fourth rules package will include any corrections or updates to the rules filed in packages #1, #2 
or #3. This package will likely be on your January agenda. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
WAC 230-05-102 
WAC Chapters 230-06 through 230-17 containing changes. 
WAC 230-03-085 
 

Policy Considerations 
The Commissioners began considering changing the fee structure in 2014. The current fee structure was 
created over 40 years ago.  It began with 25 fees.  Today the Gambling Commission has approximately 
194 different fees for Commercial and Non-Profit organizations and individuals. This fee schedule is 
typically based on a “class” system, which can be cumbersome for licensees and agency staff. The 
Gambling Commission is looking to simplify this current system to allow it to be easier to navigate and 
have a licensing fee schedule that is more predictable for both the agency and its licensees.  

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends filing for further discussion.  

Staff anticipates asking for an effective date of July 1, 2018. 
 

 



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-05-102  All licensed organizations report activity quar
terly beginning with the July 1, 2018, through September 30, 2018, 
quarter.  (1) Beginning July 1, 2018, all licensed organizations must 
submit activity reports quarterly, regardless of whether they previ
ously submitted reports annually, quarterly, or semi-annually and re
gardless of when their permit or license year ends.

(2) This includes gambling service suppliers and any other li
censed organizations that did not previously submit activity reports.

(3) The activity reports must be in the format we require and 
must:

Cover the period:
Be received by us no later 
than:

July 1 through September 
30

October 30

October 1 through 
December 31

January 30

January 1 through March 
31

April 30

April 1 through June 30 July 30

(4) All licensed organizations must submit quarterly license fees 
to us for each licensed gambling activity after the first quarter of 
their license year that begins on or after July 1, 2018, as set forth 
in WAC 230-05-124.

[ 1 ] OTS-9110.1



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-06 WAC
 

RULES FOR ALL LICENSEES
 

Last Update: 1/19/17
 

WAC
 

RULES FOR CONDUCTING A GAMBLING ACTIVITY
 

230-06-002
 

"We," "our," and "us" mean the commission and staff.
 

230-06-003
 

Defining "cash."
 

230-06-004
 

Defining "consecutively numbered," "consecutive," and "consecutively."
 

230-06-005
 

Accept checks in gambling activities.
 

230-06-007
 

Licensed employees must wear nametags.
 

230-06-010
 

Age restrictions for players.
 

230-06-011
 

Detaining and identifying persons under eighteen years of age engaging in or attempting to 

engage in authorized gambling activities.
 

230-06-012
 

Conducting underage compliance test programs with minors.
 

230-06-015
 

Prevent intoxicated persons from operating or playing gambling activities.
 

230-06-020
 

Restrictions on alcohol as prizes.
 

230-06-025
 

Restrictions on firearms as prizes.
 

230-06-030
 

Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions.
 

230-06-031
 

Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, or gambling activi-

ties.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-06-035
 

Credit, loans, or gifts prohibited.
 

230-06-045
 

Conduct gambling activities on licensed business premises only.
 

230-06-046
 

Additional requirements for licensed business premises of nonhouse-banked, cClass E, F, 

and house-banked card rooms.
 

2230-06-050
 

Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment.
 

230-06-051
 

Computation of time.
 

230-06-052
 

Withdrawing gambling equipment authorization.
 

230-06-054
 

Notification of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment malfunctions.
 

NOTIFYING LAW ENFORCEMENT, POSTING PUBLIC NOTICES, AND RECORDKEEPING
 

230-06-055
 

Notify law enforcement of gambling activity.
 

230-06-065
 

Displaying of licenses.
 

230-06-070
 

Keep monthly records.
 

230-06-071
 

Washington state identification and inspection stamps to be called "I.D. stamps."
 

230-06-074
 

Assistance required for commission inspections.
 

230-06-075
 

Removal of equipment or records for inspection.
 

REPORTING CHANGES TO APPLICATION INFORMATION
 

230-06-080 

230-06-081 

230-06-082
 

Report changes to application information and submit updated documents and information. 

Submitting gambling service supplier contracts for review. 

Manufacturers, distributors, gambling service suppliers, linked bingo prize providers, and 

call centers for enhanced raffles reporting changes in licensed employees.
 

230-06-083
 

Card game licensees reporting changes in licensed employees.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

REPORTING CRIMINAL, ADMINISTRATIVE, AND CIVIL ACTIONS
 

230-06-085
 

Report criminal actions filed.
 

230-06-090
 

Report administrative and civil actions filed.
 

CHANGING NAMES OR LOCATIONS
 

230-06-095
 

Change name, trade name, or corporate name.
 

230-06-100
 

Changing business locations.
 

CHANGING MANAGEMENT OR OWNERSHIP
 

230-06-105
 

Report change of management.
 

230-06-106
 

Limited transfers of ownership allowed.
 

230-06-107
 

Ownership changes—Allowed.
 

230-06-108
 

Ownership changes—Prohibited.
 

SALES AND TRANSFERS OF EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, AND SERVICES
 

230-06-109
 

Sales invoices for merchandise prizes.
 

230-06-110
 

Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment.
 

230-06-112
 

Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement games.
 

230-06-120
 

Selling or transferring gambling equipment when no longer licensed.
 

LICENSE RENEWALS AND ACTIVITY REPORTS
 

230-06-124
 

Online filing and payments required with waivers available upon request for good cause.
 

230-06-125 

 

 

Renew your license in a timely manner. 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

230-06-130
 

Exceeding license class.
 

230-06-135
 

Failing to apply for license class upgrade.
 

230-06-140
 

Partial refund of license fees if gambling receipts limit not met.
 

230-06-145
 

Surrendering suspended or revoked licenses. 

DEFINITIONS
 

230-06-150
 

Defining "gross gambling receipts."
 

230-06-155
 

Defining "gross sales."
 

230-06-160
 

Defining "net gambling receipts."
 

230-06-165
 

Defining "net gambling income."
 

230-06-170
 

Defining "net win."
 

230-06-175 

 

230-06-176 

 

Defining "cost." 

SURRENDERING SUSPENDED OR REVOKED LICENSES 

Surrendering suspended or revoked licenses.
 

DISPOSITION OF SECTIONS FORMERLY CODIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER
 

230-06-001
 

Defining "operator." [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-

06-001, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), filed 

10/22/07, effective 1/1/08. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-06-060
 

Maintain copy of commission rules on business premises. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. 

WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-06-060, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 

11-05-058 (Order 675), filed 2/10/11, effective 3/13/11. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 

230-06-115
 

Using checks or credit cards to purchase gambling equipment, products, or services. [Stat-

utory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-06-115, filed 8/22/06, 

effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 08-21-087 (Order 633), filed 10/14/08, effective 1/1/09. 

Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070.
 

 

  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-06-046 Additional requirements for licensed business prem-

ises of nonhouse-banked, class E, F, and house-banked card rooms. (1) 

The licensed business premises of nonhouse-banked, class E, F, and house-

banked card rooms may not be adjacent to each other if each licensed 

business premises:
 

(a) Shares inside public access between the two licensed business 

premises; or
 

(b) Has employee access between the two licensed business premises 

visible to the public; or
 

(c) Shares windows or similar structures that allow customers to 

see into the other licensed business premises.
 

(2) Subsection (1) of this section does not apply to nonhouse-

banked class E, F, and house-banked card room physical locations that 

have any of the features listed in subsection (1) of this section and 

were licensed on the effective date of this rule.
 

(3) Adjacent card rooms must post signs at each entrance that is 

accessible by the public to clearly notify customers of the licensed 

business premises' identity.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0282. WSR 10-07-102, § 230-

06-046, filed 3/19/10, effective 7/1/10.] 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-06-081 Submitting gambling service supplier contracts for re-

view. 

Prior to executing financing, consulting, or management contracts, 

gambling service suppliers must submit these agreements to us for re-

view for compliance with WAC 230 and RCW 9.46. 

 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-06-082 Manufacturers, distributors, gambling service suppli-

ers, linked bingo prize providers, and call centers for enhanced raf-

fles reporting changes in licensed employees. 

Manufacturers, distributors, gambling service suppliers, linked bingo 

prize providers and call centers for enhanced raffle licensees must: 

(1) Submit an application and the required fees before allowing li-

censed employees to begin working.  

(1)(2) Notify us in the format we require when a licensed employee 

no longer works for them.  We must receive the notice at our 

Lacey office within ten days of the licensed employee’s last 

day. 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-06-083 Card game licensees reporting changes in licensed 

employees. Card game licensees, except Class B or Class D must:
 

(1) Submit an add/transfer application and the required fees before 

allowing a licensed card room employee to begin working.
 

(2) Notify us in the format we requirewriting when a licensed card 

room employee no longer works for them. We must receive the notice at 

our Lacey office within ten days of the card room employee’s last day-

terminating employment.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-21-087 (Order 633), § 230-

06-083, filed 10/14/08, effective 1/1/09.]
 

WAC 230-06-100 Changing business locations. (1) Licensees must ap-

ply to us and pay a fee to change the location of their licensed business 

premises. Licensees must receive our approval before changing the busi-

ness location.
 

 (2) Commercial amusement game licensees may add or delete from the 

list of locations for which we issued their license without paying a 

fee.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-

06-100, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-06-110 Buying, selling, or transferring gambling equipment. 

(1) All licensees and persons authorized to possess gambling equipment 

must closely control the gambling equipment in their possession.
 

(2) Before selling gambling equipment, licensees must ensure that 

the buyer possesses a valid gambling license or can legally possess the 

equipment without a license.
 

(3) Before purchasing gambling equipment, licensees must ensure 

that the seller possesses a valid gambling license.
 

(4) Applicants for Class F or house-banked card room licenses may 

purchase and possess gambling equipment during the prelicensing process, 

but only after receiving written approval from us.
 

(5) Charitable and nonprofit organizations conducting unlicensed 

bingo games, as allowed by RCW 9.46.0321, may possess bingo equipment 

without a license.
 

(6) Group 12 amusement games can only be sold or leased to Class B 

and above amusement game licensees by a licensed manufacturer or dis-

tributor. Class B and above Aamusement game licensees can lease or rent 

group 12 amusement games for operation atto approvedClass A amusement 

game locationslicensees. Lease agreements entered into prior to the 

effective date of this rule may continue until the manufacturer is 

licensed or December 31, 2016, whichever occurs first.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(7) Licensees may transfer gambling equipment as a part of a sale 

of a business as long as a condition of the sale is that the buyer 

receives a gambling license before the sale is complete. Licensees must 

make a complete record of all gambling equipment transferred in this 

manner, including I.D. stamps. Licensees must report these transfers, 

including a copy of the inventory record, to us.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-06-

110, filed 9/8/16, effective 10/9/16; WSR 16-08-033 (Order 718), § 230-

06-110, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 08-11-044 (Order 628), § 230-06-110, filed 5/14/08, ef-

fective 7/1/08; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-06-110, filed 10/22/07, 

effective 1/1/08; WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-06-110, filed 

8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-06-112 Buying, selling, renting and leasing amusement 

games. (1) Class A amusement game licensees can rent or lease amusement 

games from otherClass B and above amusement game licensees.
 

(2) AClass B and above amusement game licensees can:
 

(a) Own and operate group 1 through 12 amusement games at their 

licensed premises;
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Buy or lease group 12 amusement games from a licensed manufac-

turer or distributor and lease or rent them for operation atto other 

approved Class A amusement game locationicenseess; and
 

(c) Rent or lease group 1 through 11 amusement games to approved 

Class A amusement game locationicensees.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-19-015, § 230-06-

112, filed 9/8/16, effective 10/9/16.]
 

  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

ACTIVITY REPORTS
 

WAC 230-06-124 Online filing and payments required with waivers 

available upon request for good cause. (1) All licensees must submit 

activity reportsthe following online:
 

(a) Renewal application and fees, as referenced in Title 230 WAC; 

and
 

(b) Activity reports, as referenced in Title 230 WAC.
 

(2) We may waive these requirements if a licensed organization can 

show good cause. The reasons for good cause include:
 

(a) You do not have access to the internet using your own computer 

or similar equipment; or
 

(b) You do not have a bank account; or
 

(c) Your bank is unable to send electronic fund transactions; or
 

(d) Some other circumstance or condition exists that, in our judg-

ment, prevents you from submitting online.
 

 (3) We may waive these requirements if a licensed individual can 

show good cause. The reasons for good cause include:
 

(a) You do not have access to the internet using your own computer 

or similar equipment; or
 

(b) You do not have a bank account or credit card; or
 

(c) Your bank is unable to send electronic fund transactions; or
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(d) Some other circumstance or condition exists that, in our judg-

ment, prevents you from submitting online.
 

(4)(3) You must request a waiver, in writing, no later than sixty 

days before your activity report due date or license expiration date. A 

waiver will cover subsection (1)(a) and (b) of this section. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 15-08-017 (Order 712), § 230-

06-124, filed 3/24/15, effective 7/1/15.]
 

WAC 230-06-125 Renew your license in a timely manner. (1) You must 

renew online, unless you have received a waiver, as outlined in WAC 230-

06-124 and allow for enough time to:
 

(a) Print the license prior to midnight before the license expires; 

or
 

(b) Have us print the license and mail it to you so you receive it 

before your license expires.
 

(2) If you have a waiver and are not renewing your license online, 

you must ensure a properly completed renewal application and all appli-

cable fees are received at our administrative office in Lacey at least 

fifteen days before the expiration date on the license.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) If licensees do not submit a properly completed application and 

all fees and their license expires, they must immediately stop the 

gambling activity covered by their license.
 

(4) If your license expires, you must submit an application and you 

must not operate any gambling activity until a new license is issued.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 15-08-017 (Order 712), § 230-

06-125, filed 3/24/15, effective 7/1/15; WSR 08-03-062 (Order 623), § 

230-06-125, filed 1/14/08, effective 2/14/08; WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), 

§ 230-06-125, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 

 

WAC 230-06-130 Exceeding license class. (1) Licensees must not 

exceed the gross gambling receipts limits for their license class during 

any annual license period.
 

(2) Licensees must apply a projection of year-to-date receipts to 

the remaining period of their license and, if it indicates that it is 

reasonably likely that they may exceed their license, they must immedi-

ately:
 

(a) Apply for a license that authorizes the anticipated level of 

gross gambling receipts; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Submit the fee required for the new license, minus the amount 

originally submitted for the previous license, plus a change of classi-

fication fee.
 

(3) If we issue a license upgrade, it is valid only for the re-

mainder of the original term of the license.
 

(4) Licensees may exceed license class limits once, by the amount 

shown in the fees table, without having to upgrade or pay the penalties 

as long as they upgrade to the higher license class the next time they 

renew their license.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-

06-130, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-06-135 Failing to apply for license class upgrade. (1) If 

licensees fail to apply for a license class upgrade and exceed the 

license class limit within a present or previous license year, we assess 

an additional fee. We charge an additional fee of up to fifty percent 

of the difference between the fee for the present license class and the 

new license class, or one thousand dollars, whichever is less.
 

(2) Licensees must pay any required license class upgrade fee, plus 

any additional fee required by subsection (1) of this section, within 

thirty days of our notification.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) Failure to pay the fees may result in an immediate summary 

suspension of all licenses.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-

06-135, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-06-140 Partial refund of license fees if gambling receipts 

limit not met. (1) Licensees may apply for a partial refund of their 

license fee when their annual gross gambling receipts are less than the 

minimum for the class of license we issued to them.
 

(2) Licensees may receive a refund for the difference between the 

fees actually paid and the fees that would normally apply to the level 

of gross gambling receipts actually received during the period less our 

processing costs.
 

(3) Licensees may make their request for refund after the end of 

any annual license period and before the end of the next annual license 

period.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 15-07-055 (Order 711), § 230-

06-140, filed 3/13/15, effective 4/13/15; WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 

230-06-140, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 17 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-06-145 Surrendering suspended or revoked licenses. If we 

suspend or revoke your license, you must, on demand, surrender the 

license and return it to us.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-17-132 (Order 601), § 230-

06-145, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 

DEFINITIONS 

 

WAC 230-06-150 Defining "gross gambling receipts." (1) "Gross gam-

bling receipts" for activity reports means the amount due to any operator 

of a gambling activity for:
 

(a) Purchasing chances to play a punch board or pull-tab series; 

and
 

(b) Purchasing chances to enter a raffle; and
 

(c) Fees or purchase of cards to participate in bingo games; and
 

(d) Fees to participate in an amusement game, including rent or 

lease payments paid to licensees or franchisers for allowing operation 

of an amusement game on their premises; and
 

(e) "Net win" from a house-banked card game; and
 

(f) Tournament entry fees; and
 

(g) Administrative fees from player-supported jackpots; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 18 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(h) Fees to participate in a nonhouse-banked card game (for example, 

time, rake, or per hand fee).
 

(2) The amount must be stated in U.S. currency.
 

(3) The value must be before any deductions for prizes or other 

expenses.
 

(4) "Gross gambling receipts" does not include fees from players 

to enter player-supported jackpots. However, any portion of wagers de-

ducted for any purpose other than increasing current prizes or repayment 

of amounts used to seed prizes are "gross gambling receipts." 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-20-007 (Order 630), § 230-

06-150, filed 9/18/08, effective 1/1/09.]
 

WAC 230-06-170 Defining "net win." "Net win" for activity reports 

means gross wagers received from gambling activities or fund-raising 

events minus the:
 

(1) Amount paid to players for winning wagers; and
 

(2) Accrual of prizes for progressive jackpot contests; and
 

(3) Repayment of amounts used to seed guaranteed progressive jack-

pot prizes. 

 [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-20-007 (Order 630), § 230-

06-170, filed 9/18/08, effective 1/1/09.] 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:32 PM) [ 19 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

SURRENDERING SUSPENDED OR REVOKED LICENSES. 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-06-176 Surrendering suspended or revoked licenses. If we 

suspend or revoke your license, you must, on demand, surrender the 

license and return it to us.
 

 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-07 WAC
 

CHARITABLE AND NONPROFIT RULES
 

Last Update: 10/28/16
 

WAC
 

230-07-001
 

Defining "charitable or nonprofit licensee."
 

230-07-005
 

Defining "licensees," "licensee," "organizations," and "organization."
 

230-07-010
 

Use of gambling proceeds.
 

230-07-015
 

Regulatory group assignments.
 

230-07-020
 

Making "significant progress."
 

230-07-025
 

Additional requirements for "significant progress" for Groups IV and V.
 

230-07-030
 

Defining "functional expenses."
 

230-07-035
 

Defining "program service expenses."
 

230-07-040
 

Defining "supporting service expenses."
 

230-07-045
 

Obtaining a waiver for significant progress requirements.
 

230-07-050
 

Defining "excessive reserves."
 

230-07-051
 

Accumulating excessive reserves.
 

230-07-055
 

Prorating expenses when gambling funds are not kept separate.
 

230-07-060
 

Independent management structure required.
 

230-07-065
 

Group III, IV, and V management control system.
 

230-07-070
 

Defining "direct relatives."
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-07-075
 

Conflicts of interest.
 

230-07-080
 

Qualification reviews for Groups III, IV and V.
 

230-07-085
 

Compensating gambling management and operations personnel.
 

230-07-090
 

Keeping and depositing all gambling funds separate from other funds.
 

230-07-095
 

Fund-raising events and members only raffles exempt from deposit requirements.
 

230-07-100
 

Special banking exemption for Point Roberts Peninsula.
 

230-07-105
 

Safeguarding prize inventory.
 

230-07-106
 

Insuring prizes.
 

230-07-110
 

Supervision requirements.
 

230-07-115
 

Duties of charitable or nonprofit gambling managers.
 

230-07-120
 

Notifying us of changes in responsibilities of charitable or nonprofit gambling managers.
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR LOWER VOLUME LICENSEES
 

230-07-125
 

Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume charitable or nonprofit organizations.
 

RECORDKEEPING AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
 

230-07-130
 

Additional recordkeeping for charitable or nonprofit licensees.
 

230-07-135
 

Recording gifts.
 

230-07-140
 

Minimum accounting records for Class D and above bingo licensees with gross gambling 

receipts over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year and licen-

sees with combined activities over five hundred thousand dollars in their previous license 

year.
 

REQUIRED ANNUAL REPORTS
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-07-145
 

Reporting annual progress.
 

230-07-150
 

Financial statements required for Groups III, IV, and V.
 

230-07-155
 

Reporting annual activity for raffles, enhanced raffles, amusement games, Class A, B, or 

C bingo, or combination licenses.
 

230-07-160
 

Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs.
 

WAC 230-07-090 Keeping and depositing all gambling funds separate 

from other funds. Charitable or nonprofit licensees must protect all 

funds generated from gambling activities and keep these funds separate 

from their general funds.
 

(1) Licensees must:
 

(a) Keep a separate gambling receipts account(s) in a recognized 

Washington state bank, mutual savings bank, or credit union; and
 

(b) Deposit only gambling receipts into that account. Licensees may 

deposit receipts from nongambling activities operated in conjunction 

with bingo games into the gambling receipts account if the licensee 

keeps detailed receipting records of the nongambling receipts; and
 

(c) Deposit all gambling receipts first into the account before 

spending or transferring them into other accounts, except for prize pay 

outs; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(d) Deposit funds received from commercial amusement game operators 

operating amusement games on their premises in the licensee's gambling 

receipts account no later than the second banking day after they receive 

the receipts; and
 

(e) Make all deposits of net gambling receipts from each activity 

separately from all other deposits, and keep the validated deposit re-

ceipt as a part of their records. Deposit receipts are a part of the 

applicable daily or monthly records and licensees must make them avail-

able for our inspection; and
 

(f) Deposit all net gambling receipts which they are holding, pend-

ing pay out:
 

(i) From bingo, no later than the second banking day after they 

receive them. Licensees may withhold bingo receipts from deposits for 

"jar," "pig," or other special game prizes if the total of all such 

prize funds does not exceed two hundred dollars, enter the amount with-

held each session in the bingo daily record, and record the reconcili-

ation of the special game fund on the bingo daily record. "Reconcile" 

means the licensee must compare the two balances, resolve any differ-

ences, and document the comparison and the differences in writing. Li-

censees must keep the reconciliation as part of their records; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(ii) From raffles (Class E and above) and amusement games (Class D 

and above),with gross gambling receipts over fifty thousand dollars in 

their previous license year, at least once each week; and
 

(iii) From punch board and pull-tabs, including cost recovery for 

merchandise prizes awarded, no later than two banking days after they 

remove the board or series from play; and
 

(g) Record the Washington state identification number assigned to 

the punch board or pull-tab series and the amount of net gambling re-

ceipts on the deposit slip/receipt. Licensees may record the number and 

the receipts on a separate record if they record the bank validation 

number and maintain the record with the deposit slip/receipt; and
 

(2) These requirements do not apply to organizations who:
 

(a) Conduct only one or more of the following activities:
 

(i) Raffles under the provisions of RCW 9.46.0315;
 

(ii) Bingo, raffles, or amusement games under the provisions of RCW 

9.46.0321;
 

(iii) Bingo, raffle, and amusement game licensees with gross gam-

bling receipts of fifty thousand dollars or less in their previous 

license yearClass A, B, or C bingo game;
 

(iv) Class A, B, C, or D raffle; or
 

(v) Class A, B, or C amusement game; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-032 (Order 609), § 230-

07-090, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR LOWER VOLUME LICENSEES
 

WAC 230-07-125 Recordkeeping requirements for lower volume chari-

table or nonprofit organizations. (1) Organizations operating without a 

license under RCW 9.46.0315 or 9.46.0321 and lower volume charitable or 

nonprofit licensees must keep a set of permanent monthly records of the 

gambling activities. Lower volume licensees include:
 

(a) Fund-raising events;
 

(b) Bingo with gross gambling receipts of one hundred fifty thousand 

dollars or less in their previous license year(Classes A, B, and C);
 

(c) Raffles with gross gambling receipts of fifty thousand dollars 

or less in their previous license year(Classes A, B, C, and D);
 

(d) Amusement games with gross gambling receipts of fifty thousand 

dollars or less in their previous license year(Classes A, B, C, and D); 

and
 

(e) Nonhouse-banked cCard games (Classes A, B, and C).
 

(2) The monthly records must include, at least:
 

(a) The gross gambling receipts from each activity;
 

(b) The gross gambling receipts from group 12 amusement games;
 

(c) The total amount of cash prizes actually paid out;
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(d) The total of the cost to the licensee of all merchandise prizes 

actually paid out for each activity;
 

(e) A summary of all expenses related to each of the activities; 

and
 

(f) The net income received from the activity, the purpose(s) for 

which the net income was raised, and the amount paid to each recipient.
 

(3) Licensees must keep these records for three years from the end 

of the license year for which the record was created.
 

(4) Organizations operating under RCW 9.46.0315 or 9.46.0321 must 

maintain their records for one year.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-22-049, § 230-07-

125, filed 10/28/16, effective 11/28/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 07-10-032 (Order 609), § 230-07-125, filed 4/24/07, ef-

fective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-07-140 Minimum accounting records for Class D and above 

bingo licensees with gross gambling receipts over one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in their previous license year and licensees with com-

bined activities over five hundred thousand dollars in their previous 

license year. Bingo Class D and above bingo licensees with gross gambling 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

receipts over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous li-

cense year and licensees with who are authorized for more thanover five 

hundred thousand dollars in gross gambling receipts from combined gam-

bling activities in their previous licenseduring any fiscal year must 

keep accounting records necessary to document all receipts, costs, and 

disbursements, including, at least, those related to gambling activi-

ties.
 

Requirements for accounting records
 

For these accounting records, licensees must:
 

(1) Conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) ex-

cept as modified by other commission rules; and
 

(2) Include, at least:
 

(a) A cash disbursements journal and/or check register;
 

(b) A cash receipts and/or sales journal;
 

(c) A list of all assets the licensee paid for;
 

(d) A listing of all liabilities;
 

(e) A complete general ledger system; and
 

(f) A list of all donated items valued at more than two hundred 

fifty dollars; and
 

(g) Bank statements, related deposit slips, and canceled checks or 

facsimiles of canceled checks; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Donated items
 

(3) Document donated items. Licensees must:
 

(a) Use the fair market value at the time of donation;
 

(b) Add items to the list no later than thirty days after receiving 

them;
 

(c) Remove items when they no longer have legal ownership; and
 

(d) Not remove an item from the list, even if it has become obsolete 

or completely depreciated, until management has completed and documented 

appropriate review. A depreciation schedule for all capitalized items 

is sufficient; and
 

(e) Add items to the list when they convert items from gambling 

merchandise prize inventory to licensee use. This list must include, at 

least:
 

(i) A description of the item;
 

(ii) The date purchased, acquired by donation, or converted from 

the gambling prize pool;
 

(iii) The cost at the time of purchase or, if donated, the fair 

market value at the time received; and
 

(iv) The date and method of disposition of the item; and
 

Method of accounting
 

(4) Use the accrual method of accounting; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(5) The cash, modified cash, or tax basis accounting methods may 

be used only if that method accurately represents the licensee's finan-

cial position, the results of operations, and the licensee does not have 

substantial liabilities or expenses, such as depreciation or amortiza-

tion expenses, which require a current outlay of cash; and
 

Expenditures for nongambling activities
 

(6) Sufficiently document all expenditures relating to nongambling 

activities in order to provide a satisfactory audit trail and to allow 

us to verify that the funds were used for the licensee's stated pur-

pose(s); and
 

Expenditures for gambling activities
 

(7) Sufficiently document all of the licensee's expenditures re-

lating to gambling activities. Canceled checks or facsimiles of canceled 

checks, and bank statements are not sufficient documentation for ex-

penditures without additional support. Licensees must provide additional 

support for expenditures, including:
 

(a) Invoices or other supporting documents from commercial vendors 

or service agencies with at least:
 

(i) The name of the person or entity selling the goods or providing 

the services;
 

(ii) A complete description of goods or services purchased;
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(iii) The amount of each product sold or services provided;
 

(iv) The price of each unit;
 

(v) The total dollar amount billed; and
 

(vi) The date of the transaction.
 

(b) Documentation, in the form of checks and other written records 

of disbursements in excess of twenty-five dollars made directly to in-

dividuals who do not furnish normal, business type, invoices or state-

ments. The written records must indicate at least:
 

(i) The name of the person receiving the payment;
 

(ii) The amount;
 

(iii) The date; and
 

(iv) The purpose; and
 

(8) Document allocated expenditures that relate to more than one 

function to the various functions. Licensees must document their methods 

of allocation and make them available for our review; and
 

Capitalizing assets
 

(9) Include a capitalization policy based on materiality and ex-

pected life of operating assets. To determine a minimum level for cap-

italizing assets, licensees must:
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(a) Capitalize and depreciate, or amortize over the useful life of 

the asset, any assets of more than two thousand dollars that have a 

useful life of more than one year; and
 

(b) Capitalize and depreciate, or amortize over sixty months, be-

ginning with the first month that bingo games are conducted, preoperating 

start up costs related to bingo games of more than six thousand dollars; 

and
 

(c) Amortize, over a period not longer than the life of the lease, 

any leasehold improvements related to gambling activities that are more 

than six thousand dollars. Licensees may extend the amortization period 

to include any lease option periods if the licensee's management states 

a reasonable expectation that they will use the lease option; and
 

(d) Charge all unamortized leasehold improvements as an expense of 

the gambling activities in the year that the lease expires.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-03-062 (Order 623), § 230-

07-140, filed 1/14/08, effective 2/14/08; WSR 07-10-032 (Order 609), § 

230-07-140, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-07-155 Reporting annual activity for raffles, enhanced raf-

fles, amusement games, Class A, B, or C bingo, or combination licenses. 

(1) Raffle, enhanced raffle, amusement game, Class A, B, or C bingo, or 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

combination licensees must submit an annual report of all their activ-

ities in the format we require.
 

(2) We must receive the completed report in our office postmarked 

no later than thirty days following the expiration of their license(s). 

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be sub-

mitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102.
 

(3) The highest ranking officer or his/her designee must sign the 

report.
 

(4) If the licensee has someone else prepare the report, then the 

preparer must include his/her name and phone number on the report.
 

(5) Licensees that operate retail sales activities in conjunction 

with bingo games must report the net income from those retail sales 

activities.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0209. WSR 13-19-056 (Order 

692), § 230-07-155, filed 9/16/13, effective 10/17/13. Statutory Au-

thority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-032 (Order 609), § 230-07-155, filed 

4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-07-160 Reporting annual activity for agricultural fairs. 

(1) Charitable or nonprofit licensees who operate bingo, raffles, and/or 

amusement games only at agricultural fairs and other special properties 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

and permittees as defined in WAC 230-03-015 who operate bingo under 

another's license at agricultural fairs and other special properties 

must submit an annual report of all their activities in the format we 

require.
 

(2) We must receive the completed report in our office postmarked 

no later than thirty days following the expiration of the license year. 

Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be sub-

mitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102.
 

(3) Permittees operating under another's license must provide the 

licensee with all information about the permitted operation that is 

needed by the licensee to complete the annual activity report not less 

than ten days before the time that we require the licensee to file his 

or her report.
 

(4) The highest ranking officer or his or her designee must sign 

the report. If the licensee has someone else prepare the report, then 

the preparer must include his or her name and phone number on the report.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-032 (Order 609), § 230-

07-160, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-09 WAC
 

FUND-RAISING EVENT RULES
 

Last Update: 5/18/09
 

WAC
 

230-09-001
 

Purpose.
 

230-09-005
 

Notify local law enforcement.
 

230-09-007
 

Canceling, changing time, date, or location of fund-raising events.
 

230-09-010
 

Ten thousand dollars net receipts limit.
 

230-09-015
 

Fund-raising events on December 31.
 

230-09-020
 

Post house rules.
 

230-09-022
 

Wagering limits for fund-raising events.
 

230-09-025
 

No wagering among participants.
 

230-09-030
 

Use chips or scrip.
 

230-09-035
 

Prepare membership list.
 

230-09-040
 

Separation of duties for central accounting system required.
 

230-09-045
 

Counting money.
 

230-09-050
 

Use lock boxes and money paddles.
 

230-09-055
 

Maintain records of net receipts.
 

230-09-056
 

Activity reports for fund-raising events.
 

230-09-060
 

Winners must be present and participating to win.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-09-065
 

Use only full and regular members to operate the fund-raising event.
 

230-09-070
 

Compensation of other authorized employees.
 

230-09-075
 

Workers must wear name tags.
 

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT FOR FUND-RAISING EVENTS
 

230-09-080
 

Holding fund-raising events on commercial business premises.
 

230-09-085
 

Commercial business must not participate in fund-raising events.
 

230-09-090
 

Control of premises.
 

230-09-095
 

Using, leasing, or renting equipment.
 

GAMBLING ACTIVITIES AUTHORIZED AT FUND-RAISING EVENTS
 

230-09-100
 

Pull-tabs authorized.
 

230-09-105
 

Processing pull-tabs after play.
 

230-09-110
 

Punch boards not authorized.
 

230-09-115
 

Bingo authorized.
 

230-09-120
 

Disposable bingo cards at fund-raising events.
 

230-09-125
 

Raffles authorized.
 

230-09-130
 

Blackjack or "21" authorized.
 

230-09-131
 

Poker tournaments authorized.
 

JOINT FUND-RAISING EVENTS
 

230-09-135
 

Joining together with other licensees to conduct a fund-raising event.
 

230-09-140
 

Lead organization responsibilities.
 

LIMITED FUND-RAISING EVENTS
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-09-145
 

Limited fund-raising event defined.
 

230-09-150
 

Operating a limited fund-raising event.
 

230-09-155
 

Recordkeeping at limited fund-raising events.
 

230-09-160
 

Fund-raising event distributor rules at limited fund-raising events.
 

230-09-165
 

Restrictions on gambling activities at limited fund-raising events.
 

WAC 230-09-056 Activity reports for fund-raising events. Fund-

raising event licensees must submit an activity report to the commission 

concerning the operation of the licensed activities of each event. Li-

censees must complete the report in the format we require and the report 

must be:
 

(1) Received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 

than thirty days after the end of the authorized operating day or days.; 

and Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be 

submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102.
 

(2) Signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer or 

designee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee prepares the 

report, the preparer must print his or her name and phone number on the 

report.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

09-056, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

WAC 230-09-115 Bingo authorized. Licensees must operate bingo 

solely under their FRE license, not under a separate bingo license. If 

licensees operate bingo, they must:
 

(1) Count income from bingo against the maximum net receipts au-

thorized for FREs; and
 

(2) Comply with all of our rules for Class A, B, and C bingo 

licensees with gross gambling receipts of one hundred fifty thousand 

dollars or less in their previous license year.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-22-051 (Order 604), § 230-

09-115, filed 10/27/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 

WAC 230-09-125 Raffles authorized. (1) Licensees may operate raf-

fles at FREs in one of two ways:
 

(a) Solely under their fund-raising event license. Licensees must 

conduct all aspects of the raffle during the FRE. Income from this raffle 

counts toward the FRE limits; or
 

(b) Under a separate raffle license. Licensees must sell all tickets 

for the raffle and deposit all tickets in the drawing receptacle before 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:33 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

the FRE and hold the raffle drawing at the FRE. Income from this raffle 

counts toward the limits of the licensee's raffle class.
 

(2) For raffles conducted under an FRE license, licensees must:
 

(a) Not sell single FRE raffle tickets for more than twenty-five 

dollars per ticket; and
 

(b) Not require a person to buy more than one ticket; and
 

(c) Use consecutively numbered tickets; and
 

(d) Ensure that each ticket has a separate and equal chance to win; 

and
 

(e) Randomly draw the winning ticket; and
 

(f) Operate and account for raffles as independent gambling sta-

tions at the FRE; and
 

(g) Maintain records to verify gross sales of tickets; and
 

(h) Report all FRE raffle income, prizes awarded, and other expenses 

and these amounts count toward the maximum net receipts authorized for 

FREs.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-22-051 (Order 604), § 230-

09-125, filed 10/27/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-10 WAC
 

BINGO RULES
 

Last Update: 11/14/14
 

WAC
 

BINGO DEFINITIONS AND EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS
 

230-10-001
 

Defining "licensees," "licensee," "organizations," "organization," "operators" and "oper-

ator."
 

230-10-005
 

Agricultural fair bingo game licensees must only allow a permittee to operate bingo under 

their license.
 

230-10-010
 

Defining "bingo game."
 

230-10-015
 

Defining "bingo session."
 

230-10-020
 

Defining "bingo occasion."
 

230-10-025
 

Defining "bingo equipment."
 

230-10-030
 

Bingo card definitions.
 

230-10-035
 

Bingo card requirements.
 

230-10-040
 

Disposable bingo cards—Additional requirements.
 

230-10-045
 

Disposable bingo card inventory control.
 

230-10-050
 

Electronically generated bingo cards—Additional requirements.
 

230-10-055
 

Bingo cards required for licensees with gross gambling receipts over six hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in their previous license yearClass F and above bingo games.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-10-060
 

Bingo ball requirements.
 

230-10-065
 

Bingo ball mixer required for licensees with gross gambling receipts  one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in  license yearClass D and above bingo games.
 

230-10-070
 

Bingo flashboard requiredments for licensees with gross gambling receipts one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in  license yearClass D and above bingo games.
 

OPERATING BINGO GAMES
 

230-10-075
 

Licensed bingo manager required.
 

230-10-080
 

Supervision required for bingo workers.
 

230-10-085
 

Members or employees only to work bingo.
 

230-10-090
 

Workers not playing in Class D and above bingo games at bingo licensees with gross gambling 

receipts more than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in a license year.
 

230-10-095
 

Compensation limits for bingo employees.
 

230-10-100
 

Hours for bingo games.
 

230-10-105
 

Posting bingo rules.
 

230-10-110
 

Changing prize amounts in bingo games.
 

230-10-115
 

Selling bingo cards.
 

230-10-120
 

Duplicate bingo cards not sold for Class D or above bingo games of licensees with gross 

gambling receipts more than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in a license year.
 

230-10-125
 

Duplicate bingo cards pay out and documentation for Class D or above bingo licensees with 

gross gambling receipts more than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in a license yeargames.
 

230-10-130
 

Reserve only Braille bingo cards.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-10-135
 

Bingo cards sold on premises only.
 

230-10-140
 

Drawing, calling, and posting bingo numbers.
 

230-10-145
 

Determining bingo winners.
 

230-10-150
 

Multiple bingo winners.
 

230-10-155
 

Verifying bingo winners.
 

230-10-160
 

Shutting off the bingo ball blower.
 

230-10-165
 

Awarding bingo prizes.
 

230-10-170
 

Prizes paid for and available before bingo game starts.
 

RULES FOR ELECTRONIC BINGO CARD DAUBERS
 

230-10-175
 

Defining "electronic bingo card daubers."
 

230-10-180
 

Electronic bingo card daubers requirements.
 

230-10-185
 

Electronic bingo card daubers restrictions.
 

230-10-190
 

Discount marketing for electronic bingo card daubers.
 

230-10-195
 

Leasing electronic bingo card daubers.
 

230-10-200
 

Reserving and assigning electronic bingo card daubers.
 

230-10-205
 

Electronic bingo card dauber fees.
 

PLAYER SELECTION BINGO GAMES
 

230-10-210
 

Player selection bingo games authorized.
 

230-10-215
 

Player selection bingo game requirements.
 

230-10-220
 

Player selection bingo game card requirements.
 

230-10-225
 

Player selection bingo game restrictions.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

HIDDEN FACE BINGO GAMES
 

230-10-230
 

Hidden face bingo games authorized.
 

230-10-235
 

Hidden face bingo game requirements.
 

THREE NUMBER SPEED BINGO GAMES
 

230-10-240
 

Three number speed bingo authorized.
 

230-10-245
 

Three number speed bingo restrictions.
 

230-10-250
 

Operating three number speed bingo.
 

230-10-255
 

Wagers and prizes required in chips for three number speed bingo.
 

230-10-260
 

Chip standards for three number speed bingo.
 

230-10-265
 

Banking services for three number speed bingo.
 

230-10-270
 

Ticket sales and receipting for three number speed bingo income.
 

230-10-275
 

Exceptions to other bingo rules for three number speed bingo.
 

OTHER GAMES AUTHORIZED AT BINGO GAMES
 

230-10-280
 

Drawings for prizes, good neighbor prizes, and second element of chance prizes as part of 

bingo games.
 

RULES FOR ENTRY GUARANTEE TICKETS TO SPECIAL EVENT BINGO
 

230-10-285
 

Selling entry guarantee tickets for special event bingo.
 

230-10-290
 

Controlling entry guarantee tickets.
 

230-10-295
 

Canceling bingo special events with entry guarantee tickets.
 

230-10-300
 

Refunding entry guarantee tickets.
 

GIFT CERTIFICATES
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-10-305
 

Gift certificates as bingo prizes.
 

230-10-310
 

Selling gift certificates.
 

230-10-315
 

Gift certificates requirements.
 

230-10-320
 

Redeeming gift certificates.
 

230-10-325
 

Reconcile gift certificates monthly.
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR BINGO GAMES
 

230-10-330
 

Recordkeeping requirementsActivity reports for Class A, B, and C bingo licensees with gross 

gambling receipts less than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license 

year, agricultural fairs, and other organizations.
 

230-10-331
 

Activity reports for Class D and above bingo licensees.
 

230-10-335
 

Bingo daily records.
 

230-10-340
 

Daily records review by gambling manager.
 

230-10-345
 

Retaining daily records.
 

230-10-350
 

Recording bingo winners.
 

CASH FLOW REQUIREMENTS
 

230-10-355
 

Charitable or nonprofit organizations purpose and spending limits for bingo operations.
 

230-10-360
 

Defining "bingo operation."
 

230-10-365
 

Defining "adjusted cash flow from the bingo operations."
 

230-10-375
 

Failing to maintain a positive cash flow.
 

METHODS OF RECEIPTING BINGO INCOME
 

230-10-385
 

Receipting of bingo income required.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-10-390
 

Disposable bingo card method for receipting bingo income required when disposable bingo 

cards used.
 

230-10-395
 

Cash register method of receipting for bingo income.
 

230-10-400
 

Customer receipts for cash register method of receipting for bingo income.
 

230-10-405
 

Retaining cash register receipts for cash register method of receipting for bingo income.
 

230-10-410
 

Electronically generated bingo card method of receipting bingo income.
 

230-10-415
 

Electronically generated bingo card method of receipting for bingo income requirements.
 

230-10-420
 

Ticket method of receipting bingo income.
 

230-10-425
 

Ticket method of bingo receipting for bingo income restrictions.
 

230-10-430
 

Keeping an inventory record for the ticket method of bingo receipting.
 

230-10-435
 

Combination receipting method of receipting bingo income.
 

230-10-440
 

Combination receipting method for bingo income requirements.
 

LINKED BINGO GAMES AND PRIZES
 

230-10-445
 

Linked bingo games.
 

230-10-446
 

Defining "linked bingo prize."
 

230-10-447
 

Prizes in linked bingo prize games.
 

230-10-451
 

Recordkeeping for linked bingo prize games.
 

230-10-456
 

Additional accounting records for linked bingo prize providers.
 

230-10-457
 

Activity reports for linked bingo prize providers.
 

SHARING BINGO FACILITIES WITH OTHER CHARITABLE OR NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
 

230-10-460
 

Shared bingo facilities.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-10-465
 

Sharing facilities and using the cash register system of receipting bingo income.
 

230-10-470
 

Sharing management and accounting for shared bingo facilities.
 

SHARING BINGO FACILITIES WITH FOR-PROFIT BUSINESSES
 

230-10-475
 

Operating bingo in a for-profit business premises.
 

DISPOSITION OF SECTIONS FORMERLY CODIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER
 

230-10-370
 

Ticket sales and receipting for three number speed bingo income [Adjusted cash flow limits 

for bingo]. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-10-370, 

filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 14-23-049 (Order 710), filed 11/14/14, 

effective 12/15/14. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0209.
 

230-10-380
 

Drawings for prizes, good neighbor prizes, and second element of chance prizes as part of 

bingo games [Relief reduction for minimum annual adjusted cash flow]. [Statutory Authority: 

RCW 9.46.070. WSR 09-17-075 (Order 655), § 230-10-380, filed 8/14/09, effective 9/14/09; 

WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-10-380, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 

14-23-049 (Order 710), filed 11/14/14, effective 12/15/14. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070 and 9.46.0209.
 

230-10-450
 

Controlling gambling equipment by linked bingo prize licensees. [Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-10-450, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.] Re-

pealed by WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08. Statutory Authority: 

RCW 9.46.070.
 

230-10-455
 

Operating linked bingo prize games. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 

(Order 610), § 230-10-455, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 08-11-037 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(Order 626), filed 5/14/08, effective 7/1/08. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 

34.05.353.
 

WAC 230-10-045 Disposable bingo card inventory control. Bingo li-

censees must control and account for all disposable bingo cards they 

purchase or otherwise obtain.
 

(1) All licensees must keep:
 

(a) All purchase invoices, or photocopies of the invoices, for 

received disposable bingo cards on the bingo premises; and
 

(b) All manufacturer packing records as part of the inventory con-

trol record.
 

(2) Class D and above Bingo licensees with gross gambling receipts 

over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year 

must prepare an inventory control record in the format we require imme-

diately after purchase of disposable bingo cards or before the next 

bingo session. We may approve alternative formats, such as electroni-

cally generated forms, if the licensee requests it in writing.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-045, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-10-055 Bingo cards required for licensees with gross gam-

bling receipts over six hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous 

license yearClass F and above bingo games. Class F and above bBingo 

licensees with gross gambling receipts over six hundred fifty thousand 

dollars in their previous license year must use disposable bingo cards, 

electronically generated bingo cards, player selection bingo cards, or 

three number speed bingo cards.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-055, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-065 Bingo ball mixer required. Class D and above bBingo 

licensees with gross gambling receipts over one hundred fifty thousand 

dollars in their previous license year must use a machine that mixes 

balls and selects balls using air flow (a blower). The blower must:
 

(1) Allow players full view of the mixing action of the balls; and
 

(2) Not allow changes to the random placement of the balls in the 

exit tube of the blower except when it is shut off.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-065, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-10-070 Bingo flashboard requiredClass D and above bingo 

games. (1) Class D and above bBingo licensees with gross gambling re-

ceipts over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license 

year must use flashboards to display numbers. The flashboards must be 

visible to all players and clearly indicate all numbers that have been 

called; and
 

(2) If a flashboard malfunctions, licensees must repair it before 

using it in any other bingo occasion.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-070, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

OPERATING BINGO GAMES
 

WAC 230-10-075 Licensed bingo manager required. A licensed bingo 

manager must be on the premises and supervising bingo operation during 

all hours bingo games are conducted, except bingo games conducted:
 

(1) Under RCW 9.46.0321; or
 

(2) At a qualified agricultural fair; or
 

(3) By Llicensees with gross gambling receipts of one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars or less in their previous license yearUnder a Class A, 

B, or C bingo license; or
 

(4) At a special bingo property we authorize.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-075, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 

WAC 230-10-085 Members or employees only to work bingo. (1) Bingo 

licensees must not allow anyone except full and regular members or 

employees of the organization to take part in managing or operating 

bingo games.
 

(2) Licensees may allow:
 

(a) Persons other than the primary bingo manager to participate in 

bingo games for another bingo licensee. We do not consider a licensed 

assistant gambling manager to be a manager for this section; or
 

(b) Primary managers to manage or operate bingo for more than one 

Class A, B, or C licensee with gross gambling receipts of one hundred 

fifty thousand dollars or less in their previous license year as long 

as the managers do not receive payment for services from more than one 

licensee; or
 

(c) A person to manage or take part in operating a shared bingo 

operation according to WAC 230-10-470.
 

(3) Qualified agricultural fairs licensed to operate bingo are not 

required to meet these management or operation restrictions.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-085, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-090 Workers not playing in Class D and above bingo games. 

(1) Class D and above bBingo licensees with gross gambling receipts over 

one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year must 

not allow persons who participate in operating or managing their bingo 

games to play in any of their bingo games.
 

(2) Persons who work without compensation for Class D and above 

bingo licensees with gross gambling receipts over one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in their previous license year may play bingo, but they 

must not play during bingo sessions they are operating or managing.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-090, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-120 Duplicate bingo cards not sold for Class D or above 

bingo games. (1) Class D or above bBingo licensees with gross gambling 

receipts over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous li-

cense year must not sell duplicate cards in bingo games. Licensees using 

cards from multiple manufacturers may result in duplicate cards because 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

the majority of cards in the "1 to 9000 series" are duplicate, regardless 

of the manufacturer.
 

(2) Licensees must:
 

(a) Inform players of limits on prizes if duplicate cards win 

because Braille cards are in play; and
 

(b) Not be held responsible for duplicate cards caused by Braille 

cards in play.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-120, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-125 Duplicate bingo cards pay out and documentation for 

Class D or above bingo games. (1) If Class D or above bingo licensees 

with gross receipts over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their 

previous license year inadvertently sell duplicate bingo cards, they 

must:
 

(a) Pay all winners with duplicate cards the entire prize amount 

that would be due if there were no duplicate cards; or
 

(b) Compute and pay all winners with duplicate cards using the 

following guidelines:
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(i) If the game provides a bonus for a single winner and all winners 

have duplicate cards, then the licensee must pay all winners the bonus; 

or
 

(ii) If the game results in multiple winners and some of the players 

have duplicate cards, then the licensee must calculate the split of the 

prize pool by counting all duplicate card winners as one. All winners 

will be paid according to the calculated prize split; or
 

(iii) If the prize pool contains noncash or merchandise prizes, 

then the licensee may use the cost or retail value of the merchandise, 

whichever is posted in the game schedule, to calculate the amount added 

to the prize pool to make the split. Manufacturers are not responsible 

for reimbursement to this noncash or merchandise prize pool; or
 

(iv) If the prize is more than one thousand dollars, then the 

licensee must increase the total prize pool by no more than fifty percent 

or five thousand dollars, whichever is less. We authorize this limitation 

only once within a twelve-month period; and
 

(2) Licensees may deduct increases to prize pools caused by card 

manufacturers from prize pay outs when calculating cash flow.
 

(3) Licensees must document details of circumstances that resulted 

in duplicate cards being sold and maintain that documentation as a part 

of the daily bingo record for the session.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(4) Licensees must notify us within forty-eight hours after dis-

covery of a duplicate card sale if:
 

(a) Manufacturer printing, packaging, or collation errors caused 

the duplication. Licensees must request reimbursement from the manufac-

turer responsible for duplicate card errors; or
 

(b) The licensee did not pay any winning player with a duplicate 

card the entire prize amount.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-125, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-275 Exceptions to other bingo rules for three number 

speed bingo. The following rules do not apply to three number speed 

bingo:
 

(1) Prize disclosure before players pay to play. Licensees must 

still disclose the per card cost to play and the amount required to 

wager on a single card; and
 

(2) Number of balls used to conduct the game; and
 

(3) Number of spaces required on each bingo card; and
 

(4) Requirements that Class F and above licensees with gross gam-

bling receipts over six hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous 

license year use disposable bingo cards; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(5) Requirements to account for all income at the time it is re-

ceived; and
 

(6) Requirements of WAC 230-10-145 about drawing and physically 

displaying bingo numbers. However, licensees offering three number speed 

bingo must display the number on a flashboard and use the audio system 

to announce the number; and
 

(7) Recordkeeping for prizes awarded.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-275, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.] 

  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 17 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

RECORDKEEPING FOR BINGO GAMES
 

WAC 230-10-330 Recordkeeping requirementsActivity reports for Class 

A, B, and C bingo licensees with gross gambling receipts less than one 

hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year, agricul-

tural fairs, and other organizations. Licensees must immediately account 

for all income from bingo games. Class A, B, and C bBingo licensees with 

gross gambling receipts less than one hundred fifty thousand dollars in 

their previous license year, organizations conducting bingo under the 

provisions of RCW 9.46.0321, and bingo activities conducted at a qual-

ified agricultural fair must follow the recordkeeping requirements in 

WAC 230-07-125 or any of the receipting methods for bingo income required 

for Class D or above licensees.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

10-330, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 

230-10-330, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-331 Activity reports for Class D and above bingo licen-

sees. Class D and above bingo game licensees must submit activity reports 

to the commission. The activity reports must be in the format we require 

and must:
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 18 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(1) Cover the periods:
 

(a) January 1 through March 31; and
 

(b) April 1 through June 30; and
 

(c) July 1 through September 30; and
 

(d) October 1 through December 31 of each year; and
 

(2) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 

than thirty days following the end of the reporting period. Beginning 

July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be submitted quar-

terly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and
 

(3) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer 

or a designee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee prepares 

the report, the preparer must print his or her name and business tele-

phone number on the report; and
 

(4) Submit a report for any period of time their license was valid, 

even if they had no activity or did not renew.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

10-331, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-350 Recording bingo winners. Organizations conducting 

bingo under the provisions of RCW 9.46.0321, and bingo activities con-



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 19 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

ducted at a qualified agricultural fair, and Class A and B bingo licen-

sees with gross receipts of seventy-five thousand dollars or less in 

their license year do not have to follow this rule if they meet the 

requirements for lower volume charitable or nonprofit organizations in 

WAC 230-07-125. All other bingo licensees must report all prize payments 

for bingo games and drawings for prizes, good neighbor prizes, and second 

element of chance prizes at bingo games and record payment on a prize 

receipt.
 

(1) Licensees must use prize receipts printed by a commercial 

printer. The receipts must:
 

(a) Be two-part, self-duplicating paper that provides for an orig-

inal and a duplicate copy; and
 

(b) If the licensee is Class F or abovehas gross gambling receipts 

of over six hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license 

year, be imprinted with the name of the licensee and a consecutive 

ascending number that does not repeat in at least 100,000 occurrences; 

and
 

(c) If the licensee is Class E or belowhas gross gambling receipts 

of six hundred fifty thousand dollars or less in their previous license 

year, the receipt is not required to be imprinted with the licensee's 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 20 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

name and the consecutive ascending number may repeat in 1,000 occur-

rences; and
 

(d) Provide space for the licensee to record the information we 

require.
 

Prize receipt
 

(2) Operators must complete the prize receipt including, at least:
 

(a) Date; and
 

(b) Game number; and
 

(c) Complete name of the winner; and
 

(d) Complete address of the winner, if the prize is over twenty 

dollars; and
 

(e) Dollar amount of the prize or the operator's cost, if noncash 

prize; and
 

(f) Full description of all noncash prizes; and
 

(g) Check number, if any portion of the prize is paid by check; and
 

(h) Initials of the bingo worker making the payout; and
 

(i) Initials of the cashier making the payment.
 

Prize log
 

(3) Licensees may receipt prizes of twenty dollars or less on a 

single prize log. Licensees must:
 

(a) Maintain a separate prize log for each session; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 21 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) Record the same information required on prize receipts; and
 

(c) Retain the prize log as a part of the bingo daily records.
 

Linked bingo prizes
 

(4) Except for linked bingo prizes, licensees may omit an address 

for the winner if:
 

(a) The licensee pays all prizes greater than $300 by check or a 

combination of cash and check; and
 

(b) Checks are drawn on the licensee's gambling bank account; and
 

(c) Checks used are of a type that provides a duplicate copy. The 

copies must be kept as a part of the daily bingo records; and
 

(d) Checks are made payable only to the winner. Licensees may make 

checks for prizes won by players under age eighteen payable to the 

guardian or immediate family member accompanying the player; and
 

(e) Licensees note the game number and prize receipt number on the 

check; and
 

(f) The bank returns all original checks to the licensee. Licensees 

must have the original checks available for our inspection on demand; 

and
 

(g) The licensee does not cash or otherwise redeem prize checks.
 

(5) Licensees must record the complete name and address of the 

winner of linked bingo prizes.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 22 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(6) Licensees must:
 

(a) Issue prize receipts consecutively in an ascending order; and
 

(b) Void and retain with the daily records any prize receipts 

bearing a lower number than the highest number issued during a session; 

and
 

(c) Give the original of each prize receipt to the winner; and
 

(d) Keep a duplicate copy as a part of their records for not less 

than three years; and
 

(e) Account for and document all prize receipts purchased or oth-

erwise obtained on a vendor's invoice; and
 

(f) Keep the vendor's invoice, or a photocopy of it, on the premises 

and have it available for our inspection. The purchase invoice must 

document, at least:
 

(i) Name of the vendor;
 

(ii) Name of the purchasing organization;
 

(iii) Date of purchase;
 

(iv) Number of receipts purchased; and
 

(v) The beginning and ending receipt number.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-03-062 (Order 623), § 230-

10-350, filed 1/14/08, effective 2/14/08; WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 

230-10-350, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 23 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 

METHODS OF RECEIPTING BINGO INCOME
 

WAC 230-10-385 Receipting of bingo income required. Bingo licensees 

must account for all income from bingo games at the time they receive 

the income. Licensees must issue each player a receipt for the amount 

paid to play in each game or set of games at the time of payment. Players 

must keep this receipt to prove that they have properly purchased the 

number of cards they are playing.
 

(1) Class A, B, and C lLicensees with gross gambling receipts of 

one hundred fifty thousand dollars or less in their previous license 

year, organizations conducting bingo under the provisions of RCW 

9.46.0321, and bingo activities conducted at a qualified agricultural 

fair may use the receipting method for bingo income in WAC 230-07-125 

or any of the methods for receipting bingo income required for Class D 

or above licensees with gross gambling receipts over one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in their previous license year; and
 

(2) Class D and above lLicensees with gross gambling receipts over 

one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year must 

use the receipting method for bingo income required for the bingo games 

they are offering:
 

(a) The disposable bingo card receipting method; or
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 24 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) The cash register receipting method; or
 

(c) The electronically generated receipting method; or
 

(d) The ticket receipting method; or
 

(e) The combination receipting method.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-385, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-395 Cash register method of receipting for bingo income. 

Bingo licensees may use a cash register to record bingo income if the 

cash registers:
 

(1) Have separate keys to record each type of sale; and
 

(2) Store and compute a total for each type of sale recorded and 

is capable of providing the total on request; and
 

(3) Retain in the memory unit all transactions recorded during a 

session, regardless of whether or not the cash register power source is 

interrupted; and
 

(4) Record all transactions, customer receipt numbers, and control 

totals on the internal tape retained in the cash register. The licensee 

must keep the internal tape, showing these transactions, as part of the 

daily bingo records; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 25 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(5) Assign and imprint on the customer receipt and internal tape a 

minimum four-digit consecutive number for every sales transaction pro-

cessed. Only cash register service personnel may reset this numbering 

system and the numbering system must not return to zero at the conclusion 

of any period of use or power interruption. If licensees receive written 

approval from us before use, they may use cash registers that do not 

meet these requirements but have adequate alternative control features; 

and
 

(6) For Class D and above lLicensees with gross gambling receipts 

over one hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year, 

must imprint a minimum three-digit consecutive number on the customer 

receipt and internal tape to note each time transactions are totaled or 

when a set of transactions are totaled and closed. If licensees receive 

written approval from us before use, they may use cash registers that 

do not meet these requirements but have adequate alternative control 

features.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-395, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 26 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-10-420 Ticket method of receipting bingo income. Bingo 

licensees may use tickets to document receipts of bingo income. Tickets 

must be:
 

(1) Manufactured by a commercial printer and imprinted with:
 

(a) At least four digit numbers in a consecutive series. Class F 

and above lLicensees with gross gambling receipts over six hundred fifty 

thousand dollars in their previous license year must use tickets with 

numbers that do not repeat in at least 99,999 occurrences; and
 

(b) Each ticket on a roll must represent the same dollar value or 

amount of money; and
 

(c) Include Tthe name of the licensee operating Class F and above 

bingo gamewith gross gambling receipts over six hundred fifty thousand 

dollars in their previous license year; and
 

(2) If used by Class F or above licensees with gross gambling 

receipts over six hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous li-

cense year, purchased from a licensed distributor or manufacturer; and
 

(3) Issued consecutively from each roll, starting with the lowest 

numbered ticket; and
 

(4) Accounted for by the licensee. If purchased from a commercial 

business or licensed distributor, documentation must be on the sales 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 27 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

invoice. This invoice, or a photocopy, shall be maintained on the prem-

ises and available for inspection. Document the following information 

on the sales invoice for each roll of tickets purchased:
 

(a) Name of distributor; and
 

(b) Name of purchasing licensee; and
 

(c) Date of purchase; and
 

(d) Number of rolls of tickets purchased; and
 

(e) The color, dollar value, total number of tickets, and beginning 

ticket number for each roll; and
 

(5) Recorded in the daily records in the format we require; and
 

(6) Retained by the licensee as a part of the bingo daily records 

for those not issued as receipts and that bears a number falling below 

the highest numbered ticket issued during that session and not be used 

to receipt for any type of income; and
 

(7) Not be the same color and imprinted with the same ticket number 

as any other ticket on the premises.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

10-420, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 

230-10-420, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 28 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-10-425 Ticket method of bingo receipting for bingo income 

restrictions. (1) All bingo licensees may use the ticket method of 

receipting bingo income for drawings and good neighbor prizes offered 

at their bingo games.
 

(2) Class E and below lLicensees with gross gambling receipts of 

six hundred fifty thousand dollars or less in their previous license 

year may use the ticket method for games operated with hard cards and 

for bonus games.
 

(3) Class F and above lLicensees with gross gambling receipts over 

six hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year may 

use the ticket method for bonus games as a part of the combination 

receipting method.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-425, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-435 Combination receipting method of receipting bingo 

income. (1) Bingo licensees may use a receipting method that combines 

cash register receipting with another approved method of receipting 

bingo income.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 29 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Class F and above lLicensees with gross gambling receipts over 

six hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year must 

use combination receipting for income from sales of:
 

(a) Disposable bingo card packets; and
 

(b) Disposable bingo card sheets from a set of bingo cards divided 

into subgroups; and
 

(c) Electronically generated bingo cards, if sales transactions and 

issuing of cards are not completed and documented at the same time; and
 

(d) Bonus games.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-10-033 (Order 610), § 230-

10-435, filed 4/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-10-451 Recordkeeping for linked bingo prize games. (1) 

Class A, B, or C bAll linked bBingo licensees participating in linked 

bingo games must maintain all records required for Class D bingo licen-

sees with gross gambling receipts over one hundred fifty thousand dollars 

in their previous license year for all their bingo operations; and
 

(2) For funds contributed to accrued linked bingo prizes, licensees 

must modify each bingo game daily record to include, at least:
 

(a) The amount of the contribution; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 30 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(b) The amount of any consolation prize the licensee paid for a 

linked bingo prize game; and
 

(c) The name of the linked bingo prize provider to whom the con-

tribution is made.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

10-451, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 WAC 230-10-457 Activity reports for linked bingo prize providers. 

Linked bingo prize providers must submit activity reports to us twice a 

year for their sales and services. The activity reports must be in the 

format we require and must:
 

(1) Cover the periods:
 

(a) January 1 through June 30; and
 

(b) July 1 through December 31; and
 

(2) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 

than thirty days following the end of the reporting period. Beginning 

July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be submitted quar-

terly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and
 

(3) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer 

or a designee. If someone other than the licensee or an employee prepares 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 31 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

the report, the preparer must print his or her name and business tele-

phone number on the report; and
 

(4) Submit a report for any period of time their license was valid, 

even if they had no activity or did not renew.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

10-457, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-11 WAC
 

RAFFLES
 

Last Update: 10/13/14
 

WAC
 

CONDUCTING A RAFFLE
 

230-11-001
 

Defining "licensees," "licensee," "organizations," and "organization."
 

230-11-002
 

The definition of raffle as used in this chapter.
 

230-11-005
 

Display the raffle license.
 

230-11-006
 

Requiring raffle ticket purchase for membership prohibited.
 

230-11-010
 

Number tickets consecutively.
 

230-11-012
 

Licensees may conduct a joint raffle.
 

SELLING TICKETS
 

230-11-014
 

Maximum raffle ticket price.
 

230-11-015
 

Provide rules to participants.
 

230-11-020
 

Record information on ticket stub.
 

230-11-025
 

Bundling and selling tickets at a discount.
 

230-11-030
 

Restrictions on ticket sales.
 

230-11-035
 

Incentives for selling tickets.
 

DRAWING TICKETS
 

230-11-040
 

Place ticket stubs in receptacle for drawing.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-11-045
 

Draw winning tickets randomly.
 

230-11-050
 

Using alternative drawing formats.
 

230-11-055
 

Authorized alternative drawing formats.
 

230-11-060
 

Using a second element of chance in alternative drawing format raffles.
 

PRIZES
 

230-11-065
 

Raffle prizes.
 

230-11-067
 

Requesting commission approval prior to offering raffle prizes exceeding forty thousand 

dollars per prize or three hundred thousand dollars in a license year.
 

CONDUCTING A MEMBERS-ONLY RAFFLE
 

230-11-070
 

Defining "members-only" raffles.
 

230-11-075
 

Limit number of guests for members-only raffles.
 

230-11-080
 

Post rules of play for members-only raffles.
 

230-11-085
 

Modified and discounted pricing plans for tickets for members-only raffles.
 

230-11-086
 

Discounted pricing plans for tickets to members-only raffles.
 

230-11-087
 

Other pricing plans for members-only raffles.
 

230-11-090
 

Authorized alternative drawing formats for members-only raffles.
 

230-11-091
 

Members-only progressive raffle.
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR RAFFLES
 

230-11-095
 

Recordkeeping requirements for Class A through D licensees with gross gambling receipts of 

fifty thousand dollars or less in their previous license year and unlicensed raffles.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-11-100
 

Recordkeeping requirements for Class E and F licensees with gross gambling receipts over 

fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year and raffles using alternative drawing 

formats.
 

230-11-102
 

Recordkeeping requirements for enhanced raffles.
 

230-11-103
 

Independent audit required for enhanced raffles.
 

230-11-105
 

Retain and store raffle records.
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR RAFFLES
 

WAC 230-11-095 Recordkeeping requirements for Class A through D 

licensees with gross gambling receipts of fifty thousand dollars or less 

in their previous license year and unlicensed raffles. Class A through 

D lLicenseesd with gross gambling receipt of fifty thousand dollars or 

less in their previous license yearraffles and organizations conducting 

unlicensed raffles under the authority of RCW 9.46.0315 or 9.46.0321 

must keep a record by month of the following:
 

(1) Gross receipts; and
 

(2) Prizes paid; and
 

(3) Net income; and
 

(4) Documentation of expenses; and
 

(5) Documentation of how the proceeds were used.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-

11-095, filed 9/26/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-11-100 Recordkeeping requirements for Class E and F licen-

sees with gross gambling receipts over fifty thousand dollars in their 

previous license year and raffles using alternative drawing formats. 

Licensees conducting Class E or Class F raffles with gross gambling 

receipts over fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year or 

conducting raffles using alternative drawing formats must prepare a 

detailed record for each raffle they conduct. Licensees must:
 

(1) Record all data required in the standard format we provide; and
 

(2) Maintain the following:
 

(a) Validated deposit receipts for each deposit of raffle proceeds; 

and
 

(b) All winning tickets; and
 

(c) Name, address, and telephone number of all winners of a prize 

with a fair market value of more than fifty dollars; and
 

(d) All ticket stubs for raffles that participants are not required 

to be present at the drawing; and
 

(e) All unsold tickets for individual raffles for which gross gam-

bling receipts exceed five thousand dollars; and
 

(f) Invoices and other documentation recording the purchase or 

receipt of prizes; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(g) Invoices and other documentation recording the purchase of 

tickets and other expenses of the raffle; and
 

(3) Complete all records no later than thirty days following the 

drawing.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 06-20-040 (Order 602), § 230-

11-100, filed 9/26/06, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-13 WAC
 

AMUSEMENT GAME RULES
 

Last Update: 10/28/16
 

WAC
 

230-13-001
 

Defining "operator."
 

230-13-005
 

Amusement games authorized.
 

230-13-010
 

Approval of new amusement games.
 

230-13-015
 

Group 1—Ball toss or kick amusement game standards.
 

230-13-020
 

Group 2—Dart amusement game standards.
 

230-13-025
 

Group 3—Hoop or ring toss amusement game standards.
 

230-13-030
 

Group 4—Coin or token toss amusement game standards.
 

230-13-035
 

Group 5—Hand/eye coordination amusement game standards.
 

230-13-040
 

Group 6—Strength test amusement game standards.
 

230-13-045
 

Group 7—Crane amusement game standards.
 

230-13-050
 

Group 8—Penny fall amusement game standards.
 

230-13-055
 

Group 9—Ball roll amusement game standards.
 

230-13-060
 

Group 10—Shooting amusement game standards.
 

230-13-065
 

Group 11—Cake walk and fish pond amusement game standards.
 

230-13-067
 

Group 12—Electronic puzzle and pattern solving game standards.
 

OPERATING AMUSEMENT GAMES
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-13-070
 

Notifying local law enforcement of amusement game operation.
 

230-13-075
 

Assigning and rReporting group numbers of authorized amusement games.
 

230-13-080
 

Operating coin or token activated amusement games.
 

230-13-085
 

Control and maintenance of amusement games.
 

230-13-090
 

Adult supervision of unattended amusement games.
 

230-13-100
 

Material degree of skill required in amusement games.
 

230-13-105
 

Attended amusement game requirements.
 

230-13-110
 

Charitable or nonprofit amusement game operation and management.
 

230-13-115
 

"Limited location" license requirements.
 

230-13-120
 

Posting amusement game rules.
 

230-13-125
 

Factors affecting skill readily visible for amusement games.
 

230-13-130
 

Display and exchange of amusement game prizes.
 

230-13-135
 

Maximum wagers and prize limitations.
 

230-13-145
 

Marking the difference between objects thrown in multiple amusement games on the same 

premises.
 

AUTHORIZED LOCATIONS AND RENTAL OF AMUSEMENT GAMES OR PREMISES
 

230-13-150 

230-13-152
 

Amusement game locations. 

Applying for an approved location to operate amusement games
 

230-13-155
 

Contracts for commercial amusement games.
 

230-13-160
 

Basing rent on a percentage of gross receipts.
 

230-13-165
 

Charitable or nonprofit organizations renting amusement game equipment.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

RECORDKEEPING FOR AMUSEMENT GAMES
 

230-13-169
 

Annual activity reports for commercial amusement game licensees.
 

230-13-170
 

Recordkeeping for commercial amusement games.
 

230-13-175
 

Recordkeeping for unlicensed charitable and nonprofit amusement games.
 

DISPOSITION OF SECTIONS FORMERLY CODIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER
 

230-13-140
 

Price to play amusement games must be paid in cash or check. [Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-140, filed 7/16/07, effective 1/1/08.] Re-

pealed by WSR 16-09-045 (Order 719), filed 4/15/16, effective 7/15/16. Statutory Authority: 

RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201.
 

WAC 230-13-075 Assigning and rReporting group numbers of authorized 

amusement games. (1) Amusement game licensees must determine the au-

thorized group number of each game and prepare a list of all games they 

plan to operate during each license year. They must submit this list to 

us with their activity report. The list must contain, at least, the name 

and group number of each game.
 

(2) Amusement game licensees must notify us within thirty days of 

putting into play and removing from play a group 12 amusement game. 

Reporting must be in the format we require.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-22-049, § 230-13-

075, filed 10/28/16, effective 11/28/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-075, filed 7/16/07, ef-

fective 1/1/08.]
 

 

NEW SECTION 

WAC 230-13-152 Applying for an approved location to operate amuse-

ment games.  (1)Operators must apply, pay a fee, and receive a license 

for each location they will operate approved amusement games.   

(2) Operators must notify us in the format we require within thirty 

days of removing all amusement games from an approved location. 

 

WAC 230-13-155 Contracts for commercial amusement games. (1) Oper-

ators must ensure that all contracts are written and specific in terms, 

setting out the term of the contract, amount of rent or consideration, 

rent due dates, and all expenses each party must pay.
 

(2) All contracts become part of the operator's license file. If 

commercial amusement game operators violate any terms of a contract, it 

may be grounds for suspension or revocation of their license.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(3) OperatorsClass B or above licensees may enter into contracts 

with business owners of any of the following approved locations to 

operate amusement games on their premises:
 

(a) Amusement parks; or
 

(b) Regional shopping centers; or
 

(c) Any location that possesses a valid license from the Washington 

state liquor control board and prohibits minors on their premises; or
 

(d) Movie theaters; or
 

(e) Bowling alleys; or
 

(f) Miniature golf course facilities; or
 

(g) Skating facilities; or
 

(h) Amusement centers; or
 

(i) Department or grocery stores having more than ten thousand 

square feet of retail and support space, not including the parking areas; 

or
 

(j) Charitable or nonprofit organizations with a premises licensed 

for Class A amusement games; or
 

(k) Any commercial business that provides food service for on prem-

ises consumption as its primary activity.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(4) Operators must notonly place amusement games at a location 

after a license has been issued under WAC 230-13-152.which does not have 

a valid license  

 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-

13-155, filed 7/16/07, effective 1/1/08.] 

 

WAC 230-13-160 Basing rent on a percentage of gross receipts. Class 

B or above aAmusement game operators:
 

(1) May base the rent or consideration paid to Class A com-

mercial amusement game location or charitable or nonprofit 

amusement game location for group 12 amusement games on a 

percentage of revenue the activity generates if the method of 

distribution is specific. This applies to the following loca-

tions: 

(a) All commercial businesses; and 

(b) Charitable and nonprofit organizations renting group 12 

amusement games.
 

(2) May not base the rent or consideration paid to a charitable or 

nonprofit organization on a percentage of revenue the activity generates 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

unless the amount returned to the organization is equal to or exceeds 

twenty-two percent of the gross gambling receipts.
 

(3) Operators must pay the organization at least once a month.
 

(4) If located at regional shopping centers, may use a percentage 

of receipts to pay rental leases. They are also exempt from the profits 

restrictions of RCW 9.46.120(2).
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0201. WSR 16-08-033 (Order 

718), § 230-13-160, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16. Statutory Author-

ity: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-15-064 (Order 612), § 230-13-160, filed 

7/16/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR AMUSEMENT GAMES
 

WAC 230-13-169 Annual activity reports for commercial amusement 

game licensees. Commercial amusement game licensees must submit an an-

nual activity report to us in the format we require and must:
 

(1) Cover the license year of one calendar year or less; and
 

(2) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 

than thirty days following the end of the reporting period. Beginning 

July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must be submitted quar-

terly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and
 

(3) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer 

or a designee. If someone other than the commercial amusement game 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:34 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

licensee or its employee prepares the report, then it must provide the 

preparer's name and business telephone number; and
 

(4) Submit a report for any period of time their license was valid, 

even if they had no activity or did not renew their license; and
 

(5) Complete the report according to the instructions furnished 

with the report.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-20-007 (Order 630), § 230-

13-169, filed 9/18/08, effective 1/1/09; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 

230-13-169, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-14 WAC
 

PUNCH BOARD AND PULL-TAB RULES
 

Last Update: 1/19/16
 

WAC
 

PUNCH BOARDS AND PULL-TABS
 

230-14-001
 

Defining "licensee," "licensees," "operator," and "operators."
 

230-14-005
 

Defining "punch board."
 

230-14-010
 

Defining "pull-tab."
 

230-14-015
 

Rules apply to both punch boards and pull-tabs.
 

230-14-020
 

Washington state identification and inspection stamps to be called "I.D. stamps."
 

230-14-025
 

Punch boards, pull-tabs, and pull-tab dispensers must meet all requirements.
 

230-14-030
 

Determining winners or location of winners in advance prohibited.
 

230-14-035
 

Defining "pull-tab series."
 

230-14-040
 

Maximum number of pull-tabs in a series.
 

230-14-045
 

Authorized pull-tab dispensers.
 

230-14-047
 

Standards for electronic video pull-tab dispensers.
 

230-14-050
 

Operating restrictions for punch boards and pull-tabs.
 

230-14-055
 

Selling pull-tabs.
 

230-14-060
 

Defining "flare."
 

230-14-065
 

Flares for punch board or pull-tab series.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-14-070
 

Displaying flares.
 

230-14-075
 

Substitute flares.
 

230-14-080
 

Prize limits and percentage of winners required.
 

230-14-085
 

Calculating markup for merchandise prizes.
 

230-14-090
 

Controlling prizes.
 

230-14-095
 

Displaying prizes.
 

230-14-100
 

Removing prizes from flares.
 

230-14-105
 

Paying prizes not deleted from flares.
 

230-14-110
 

Recording winners.
 

230-14-115
 

Defacing winning punches or pull-tabs.
 

230-14-120
 

Permanently reserving punch boards or pull-tab series.
 

230-14-125
 

Temporarily removing punch boards or pull-tab series from play.
 

230-14-130
 

Defining "happy hour punch board or pull-tab games."
 

230-14-135
 

Operating spindle, banded, or "jar" type pull-tabs which award only merchandise prizes.
 

SEAL CARD PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-14-140
 

Defining "seal card pull-tab series."
 

230-14-145
 

Defining "seal card round."
 

230-14-150
 

Awarding seal card pull-tab winners.
 

PROGRESSIVE JACKPOT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-14-155
 

Definitions for "progressive jackpot pull-tab series."
 

230-14-160
 

Progressive jackpot dispensers with a bank system.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-14-165
 

Additional operating requirements for progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-14-170
 

Prizes in progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-14-175
 

Removing progressive jackpot pull-tab series from play.
 

230-14-180
 

Paying out prizes and defacing tabs in progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-14-185
 

Additional recordkeeping for progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

EVENT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-14-190
 

Defining "event pull-tab series" and "event round."
 

230-14-195
 

Operating requirements for event pull-tabs.
 

BONUS PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-14-200
 

Defining "bonus pull-tab series."
 

230-14-205
 

Operating requirements for bonus pull-tab series.
 

230-14-210
 

Flares for bonus and step-up prizes.
 

CARRY-OVER JACKPOT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-14-215
 

Defining "carry-over jackpot pull-tab series" and "contribution amount."
 

230-14-220
 

Prize limits for carry-over jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-14-225
 

Sufficient funds for carry-over jackpot pull-tab prizes.
 

230-14-230
 

Transferring a carry-over jackpot to another game.
 

230-14-235
 

Replacing played out carry-over jackpot series.
 

230-14-240
 

Distributing carry-over pull-tab jackpots.
 

230-14-245
 

Retaining carry-over jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-14-250
 

Recording carry-over jackpots on a cash basis.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

CHARITABLE OR NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS OPERATING PUNCH BOARDS AND PULL-TABS
 

230-14-255
 

Net income and cash flow requirements when operating punch boards and pull-tabs.
 

RECORDKEEPING FOR PUNCH BOARDS AND PULL-TABS
 

230-14-260
 

Inventory control.
 

230-14-265
 

Retention requirements for punch boards and pull-tab series.
 

230-14-266
 

Location of unplayed punch boards and pull-tab series.
 

230-14-270
 

Additional retention requirements for some commercial stimulant licensees.
 

230-14-275
 

Returning punch boards and pull-tab series to the distributor or manufacturer.
 

230-14-280
 

Unrecorded or inaccurateRecords review of gross gambling receipts.
 

230-14-284
 

Activity reports for punch board and pull-tab licensees.
 

230-14-285
 

Monthly income summary.
 

230-14-290
 

Calculating cash over and cash short on the punch board and pull-tab monthly income summary.
 

230-14-295
 

Electronic facsimiles of I.D. stamps.
 

230-14-320
 

Defining a cumulative prize pool pull-tab game.
 

230-14-325
 

Defining a cumulative prize pool pull-tab game board.
 

230-14-330
 

Defining a cumulative prize pool pull-tab series.
 

230-14-335
 

Operating requirements for cumulative prize pool pull-tab games.
 

WAC 230-14-250 Recording carry-over jackpots on a cash basis. (1) 

Operators must record carry-over jackpots on a cash basis. "Cash basis" 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

means operators do not record carry-over jackpot contributions until the 

prize is awarded.
 

(2) However, punch board and pull-tab licensees who also hold a 

Class F or above bingo license with gross gambling receipts over six 

hundred fifty thousand dollars in their previous license year may record 

carry-over jackpot contributions on their monthly records if they:
 

(a) Record contribution amounts, up to the jackpot maximum, as 

prizes paid on the monthly records; and
 

(b) When the jackpot is awarded, record only amounts not previously 

accrued as prizes paid; and
 

(c) Play no more than five carry-over jackpot series at once; and
 

(d) Maintain a proper audit trail and adequate security over the 

funds if the licensee does not deposit the contributions with the net 

receipts.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-17-058 (Order 614), § 230-

14-250, filed 8/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] 

WAC 230-14-280 Unrecorded or inaccurateRecords review of gross gam-

bling receipts. For licensees that have not recorded all of their punch-

board/pull-tabs gross gambling receipts or reported inaccurately, we 

will use the following calculations to determine their gross gambling 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

receipts:To meet the gross gambling receipts and license class require-

ments, punch boards and pull-tab licensees must adjust gross gambling 

receipts from the operation to comply with commission records review 

findings.
 

Licensees must perform the following calculations:
 

(1) For unrecorded punch boards and pull-tab series -
 

 

  Unadjusted gross gambling receipts 
+   
  Unrecorded punch boards or pull-tab series 
  (total number of chances multiplied by price) 
  Adjusted gross gambling receipts* 

 

To account for any unrecorded punch boards and pull-tab series, 

licensees add the unrecorded punch board or pull-tab series to the 

unadjusted gross gambling receipts. To get the total of unrecorded punch 

boards or pull-tab series, licensees multiply the total number of chances 

available by the price of a single chance to determine the maximum amount 

that could be generated from the punch board or pull-tab series. 

(a) The unadjusted gross gambling receipts is the amount reported 

for the period.   

(b) The unrecorded punchboard or pull-tab series is the total number 

of chances or games play multiplied by the price per game.  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(c) Adjusted gross gambling receipts is the amount the licensee 

must record for the month in which they purchased the punchboard 

or pull-tab series.     

 

* Licensees must apply this figure to the records for the month in which they purchased the punch board or pull-tab series. 
 

(2) For recording errors -
 

 

  Unadjusted gross gambling receipts 
+/–   
  Adjustment factor 

(amount of sample group divided by recorded 
amount for the licensee) 

  Adjusted gross gambling receipts for the quarter 
and the three quarters preceding** 

 

To adjust gross gambling receipts for the results of our records 

review, licensees divide the amount we determined for a randomly selected 

sample of punch boards or pull-tab series by the recorded amount for 

them. 

(a) The unadjusted gross gambling receipts is the amount reported 

for the period.   

(b) The adjustment factor is the amount of a randomly selected 

sample of punchboard or pull-tab series divided by the amount the 

licensee recorded.   

(c) We will apply the adjusted gross gambling receipts to the total 

recorded gross gambling receipts for the calendar quarter from 

which we took the sample and to the three quarters immediately 

before.      



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

 
 

** Licensees apply this figure to the total recorded gross gambling receipts for the calendar quarter from which we took the sample and to the three quarters 
immediately before. 

 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-17-058 (Order 614), § 230-

14-280, filed 8/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-14-284 Activity reports for punch board and pull-tab li-

censees. Punch boards and pull-tab licensees must submit an activity 

report to the commission. Licensees must complete the report in the 

format we require and must:
 

(1) Prior to July 1, 2018, Ccover the periods:
 

(a) January 1 through June 30; and
 

(b) July 1 through December 31; and
 

(2) Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must 

be submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and 

(3) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 

than thirty days following the end of the reporting period; and
 

(3)(4) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive of-

ficer or a designee. If someone other than the punch board and pull-tab 

licensee or its employee prepares the report, then it must provide the 

preparer's name and business telephone number; and
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(4)(5) Be filed even if they do not renew their license. They must 

file a report for the period between the previous report filed and the 

expiration date of the license; and
 

(5)(6) Unless they are also licensed for Class D or above bingo, 

charitable and nonprofit licensees must submit a semiannual activity 

report for punch boards and pull-tabs; and
 

(6)(7) Class D or above bingo licensees with a punch board and 

pull-tab license must report punch board and pull-tab activity, on the 

combined quarterly report provided by the commission as explained in WAC 

230-10-331.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-

14-284, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-15 WAC
 

CARD GAME RULES
 

Last Update: 1/19/17
 

WAC
 

OPERATING CARD GAMES
 

230-15-001
 

"Public card room" defined.
 

230-15-005
 

Requirements for public card games.
 

230-15-010
 

"Social card games" defined.
 

230-15-015
 

"Charitable and nonprofit social card room" and "guest" defined.
 

230-15-020
 

Approving area of premises for card games.
 

230-15-025
 

Hours of play.
 

230-15-030
 

Authorized nonhouse-banked card games.
 

230-15-035
 

Authorizing new games or changing game rules.
 

230-15-040
 

Requirements for authorized card games.
 

230-15-045
 

Withdrawing card game authorization.
 

230-15-050
 

Minimum cash on hand requirements.
 

230-15-055
 

Limit on number of players at each table.
 

230-15-060
 

Posting rules for play.
 

230-15-065
 

Enforcement of card game rules of play.
 

230-15-070
 

Fee restrictions for nonhouse-banked card games.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-075
 

Card game fees for nonhouse-banked card games.
 

230-15-080
 

Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection.
 

230-15-085
 

Requirements for authorized methods of collecting fees.
 

230-15-090
 

Requirements for drop boxes.
 

230-15-100
 

Providing cards and chips in card games.
 

230-15-105
 

Only authorized cards or chips may be used.
 

230-15-110
 

Standards for chips.
 

230-15-111
 

Destruction and disposal of gambling chips.
 

230-15-115
 

Standards for cards.
 

230-15-116
 

Electronic facsimiles of cards allowed.
 

230-15-120
 

Fees for decks of cards.
 

230-15-125
 

Cutting cards in player-dealt games.
 

230-15-126
 

Cutting cards in center dealer-dealt games.
 

230-15-130
 

Rotating the deal in player-dealt games.
 

230-15-135
 

Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games.
 

230-15-140
 

Wagering limits for house-banked card games.
 

230-15-141
 

Additional merchandise or cash prizes for card games.
 

230-15-145
 

Making wagers with chips or coin.
 

230-15-150
 

Selling and redeeming chips.
 

230-15-155
 

NSF checks.
 

230-15-158
 

Ensuring card room employees meet license requirements.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-160
 

Providing dealers.
 

230-15-165
 

Defining "floor supervisor."
 

230-15-170
 

Photos of card room employees required.
 

230-15-180
 

Playing for or assisting others prohibited.
 

230-15-185
 

Preventing cheating in card games.
 

GENERAL RECORDS AND RECORDKEEPING FOR CARD GAMES
 

230-15-190
 

Preparing card game records.
 

230-15-195
 

Keeping and making daily records available.
 

230-15-200
 

Reporting card game activity semiannually.
 

CARD TOURNAMENTS
 

230-15-205
 

Card tournament licenses.
 

230-15-210
 

Entry fees and buy-ins for card tournaments.
 

230-15-215
 

Getting card tournaments approved.
 

230-15-220
 

Restricting length of card tournaments.
 

230-15-225
 

Tournament rules and prizes.
 

230-15-230
 

Offering discounted tournament fees as customer appreciation.
 

230-15-235
 

Exclusive tournament entry as customer appreciation.
 

230-15-240
 

Value of tournament chips.
 

230-15-245
 

Reporting entry fees as gambling receipts.
 

230-15-250
 

Recordkeeping for card tournaments.
 

ADDITIONAL RULES FOR CHARITABLE AND NONPROFIT CARD GAMES
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-255
 

Posting rules for unlicensed card and dice games.
 

230-15-260
 

Allowing guests to play social card games.
 

SURVEILLANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CLASS F AND HOUSE-BANKED CARD GAME LICENSEES
 

230-15-265
 

Closed circuit television system surveillance requirements.
 

230-15-267
 

Remote access of closed circuit television surveillance systems.
 

230-15-270
 

Surveillance when operating both Class F and house-banked card games.
 

230-15-275
 

Surveillance requirements for Class F card games.
 

230-15-280
 

Surveillance requirements for house-banked card games.
 

230-15-285
 

Camera and monitor requirements for closed circuit television systems.
 

230-15-290
 

Analog video recording equipment requirements.
 

230-15-295
 

Digital video recording equipment requirements.
 

230-15-300
 

Using multiplex and quad recording devices in required surveillance.
 

230-15-305
 

Reporting illegal or suspicious activities.
 

230-15-310
 

Resolving disputes using video recordings.
 

230-15-319
 

Retaining video recordings.
 

230-15-320
 

Surveillance room requirements for house-banked card game licensees.
 

230-15-325
 

Surveillance room sign-in log.
 

230-15-330
 

Keeping a surveillance activities log.
 

ADDITIONAL RULES FOR CLASS F CARD GAMES
 

230-15-335
 

Internal controls.
 

230-15-340
 

Minimum number of licensed employees required.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-345
 

Numbering tables.
 

230-15-350
 

Transporting drop boxes.
 

230-15-353
 

Using match play coupons in nonhouse-banked card games.
 

230-15-355
 

Counting procedures for fees.
 

PLAYER-SUPPORTED JACKPOTS
 

230-15-360
 

Defining "player-supported jackpot."
 

230-15-365
 

Getting approval for player-supported jackpots.
 

230-15-370
 

Naming a prize fund custodian for a player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-375
 

Posting rules for a player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-380
 

Seeding a player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-385
 

Collecting funds for a player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-390
 

Collecting an administrative fee on the player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-395
 

House dealer required for a player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-400
 

Accounting for player-supported jackpot funds.
 

230-15-405
 

Paying out prizes on a player-supported jackpot.
 

230-15-410
 

Owners, prize fund custodians, and card room employees participating in player-supported 

jackpots.
 

230-15-415
 

Removing a player-supported jackpot from play.
 

230-15-420
 

Resolving disputes over player-supported jackpots.
 

ADDITIONAL RULES FOR HOUSE-BANKED CARD GAMES
 

Internal Controls for House-Banked Card Games
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 6 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-425
 

Internal controls.
 

230-15-430
 

Internal control requirements.
 

230-15-435
 

Defining "incompatible functions."
 

230-15-440
 

Modifying internal controls and changing card games offered.
 

230-15-445
 

Defining "gambling operations department manager."
 

230-15-450
 

Defining "shift manager."
 

Operating House-Banked Card Games
 

230-15-453
 

Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions.
 

230-15-455
 

Keeping funds to pay prizes, progressive jackpot prizes, and odds-based wager prizes.
 

230-15-460
 

Supervision requirements for house-banked card rooms.
 

230-15-465
 

Dealing all house-banked card games from a dealing shoe.
 

230-15-470
 

Numbering gambling tables.
 

230-15-475
 

Tips from players and patrons to card room employees.
 

230-15-480
 

Commissions on winning hands.
 

230-15-490
 

Limiting pay outs for odds-based wagers.
 

230-15-491
 

Limiting payouts to dealers for tip or "toke" wagers for odds-based payouts.
 

230-15-495
 

Opening tables.
 

230-15-500
 

Accounting for table inventory.
 

230-15-505
 

Selling gambling chips to players.
 

230-15-510
 

Transferring chips and coin to the gambling tables.
 

230-15-515
 

Requirements for request for fill/credit slips.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 7 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-520
 

Requirements for fill/credit slips.
 

230-15-525
 

Completing the fill process.
 

230-15-530
 

Completing the credit process.
 

230-15-535
 

Closing tables.
 

230-15-540
 

Notifying the commission of card game interruptions.
 

230-15-545
 

Interruption of card games for more than seven days.
 

Cashier's Cages in House-Banked Card Rooms
 

230-15-550
 

Closely controlling money.
 

230-15-553
 

Defining "cash equivalent."
 

230-15-555
 

Cashier's cage design and structure.
 

230-15-560
 

Operating the cashier's cage.
 

230-15-565
 

Access and entrance to cashier's cage.
 

230-15-575
 

Separate imprest bank allowed for nonhouse-banked card games.
 

230-15-580
 

Accepting checks at the cashier's cage.
 

Drop Boxes in House-Banked Card Rooms
 

230-15-585
 

Using drop boxes.
 

230-15-590
 

Transporting drop boxes.
 

230-15-595
 

Storing drop boxes not attached to tables in the count room.
 

230-15-600
 

Storing drop boxes on closed gambling tables.
 

Count Requirements in House-Banked Card Rooms
 

230-15-605
 

Requirements for count rooms.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 8 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-610
 

Preparing to conduct a count.
 

230-15-615
 

Conducting the count.
 

230-15-620
 

Concluding the count.
 

230-15-625
 

Accounting department review of the count.
 

Securing House-Banked Card Room Keys
 

230-15-630
 

Controlling keys and restricting access.
 

Progressive Jackpot Prizes for House-Banked Card Games
 

230-15-680
 

Operating progressive jackpot prizes.
 

230-15-685
 

Restrictions on progressive jackpots.
 

230-15-690
 

Paying out progressive jackpot prizes.
 

230-15-695
 

Adjusting progressive jackpot amounts.
 

230-15-700
 

Merchandise prizes for progressive jackpots.
 

230-15-705
 

Temporarily removing a progressive jackpot from play.
 

230-15-710
 

Permanently removing a progressive jackpot or a portion of a progressive jackpot from 

play.
 

230-15-715
 

Tax authorities seizing all, or a portion, of a progressive jackpot.
 

230-15-720
 

Deposit and reconciliation requirements for progressive jackpot prizes.
 

Records and Recordkeeping for House-Banked Card Games
 

230-15-725
 

Keeping all card game records.
 

230-15-730
 

Keeping an accounting system.
 

230-15-735
 

Keeping employee licensing records.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 9 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-740
 

Preparing required financial statements.
 

230-15-745
 

Signature cards.
 

230-15-750
 

Signature requirements for documents, records, and forms.
 

DISPOSITION OF SECTIONS FORMERLY CODIFIED IN THIS CHAPTER
 

230-15-175
 

Reporting card room employees no longer working. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 

07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-175, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 

08-21-087 (Order 633), filed 10/14/08, effective 1/1/09. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070.
 

230-15-189
 

House-banked and Class F card game licensee pilot program on wagering limits for Texas 

Hold'em poker. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0282. WSR 10-19-048 (Order 672), 

§ 230-15-189, filed 9/13/10, effective 10/15/10.] Repealed by WSR 12-21-048 (Order 680), 

filed 10/12/12, effective 1/1/13. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-485
 

Electronic facsimiles of cards allowed. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 

(Order 617), § 230-15-485, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 

230-15-485, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 13-07-040 (Order 685), 

filed 3/14/13, effective 4/14/13. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070, 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-570
 

Cashier's cage bank requirements. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Or-

der 608), § 230-15-570, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 14-11-021 (Or-

der 699), filed 5/9/14, effective 7/1/14. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 

9.46.0282.
 

230-15-635
 

Electronic key control systems. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 10 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

608), § 230-15-635, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 (Order 

714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-640
 

Keeping individual key control boxes for departments. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. 

WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-640, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by 

WSR 15-15-065 (Order 714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070 and 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-645
 

Keeping a key control log. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), 

§ 230-15-645, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 (Order 714), 

filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-650
 

Keys for the gambling operations department. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-

09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-650, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-

15-065 (Order 714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 

and 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-655
 

Keys for the security department. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Or-

der 608), § 230-15-655, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 (Or-

der 714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 

9.46.0282.
 

230-15-660
 

Keys for the accounting department. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 

(Order 608), § 230-15-660, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 

(Order 714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 

9.46.0282.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 11 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-15-665
 

Keys for the surveillance department. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 

(Order 608), § 230-15-665, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 

(Order 714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 

9.46.0282.
 

230-15-670
 

Keeping a master key control box. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-116 (Or-

der 617), § 230-15-670, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 

230-15-670, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 (Order 714), 

filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0282.
 

230-15-675
 

Key control box for the emergency key. [Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 

(Order 608), § 230-15-675, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] Repealed by WSR 15-15-065 

(Order 714), filed 7/10/15, effective 8/9/15. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 

9.46.0282.
 

WAC 230-15-005 Requirements for public card games. At any time 

public card game licensees are conducting card games, they must have:
 

(1) Have tThe food and/or drink business being commercially stim-

ulated open to the public; and
 

(2) A licensed card room employee on duty and in the public card 

room area if operating the following card games: 

(i)For Class E, Class F, or  

(ii) Hhouse-banked card games, or  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 12 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(iii) Commercial nonhouse-banked card games of poker or other 

nonhouse-banked card games specifically approved by the director or 

the director’s designee and a fee is collected to play.have a licensed 

card room employee on duty and in the public card room area.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-

15-005, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collec-

tion. Card game licensees must collect only one type of card game fee 

at a table at any given time. The following are authorized types of 

fees, the card game licensees who may use those fee types, and the 

methods of collection:
 

 

Authorized types of fees 
Licensees authorized to 

use the fee types 
Authorized methods of 

collection 
Maximum amount to 

collect 
(1) Period of time -  Nonhouse-banked card 

gamesClass A, B, C, E, 
Class F, and house-
banked 

Direct collection; 
or 
Chip rack - Only allowed if 
licensed for three or fewer 
tables; 
or 
Drop box. 

Not more than ten 
dollars per hour, per 
player. 

(a) Licensees must collect 
the fee at least once per 
hour at times the licensee 
chooses, for example, at 
thirty minute increments; 
and 

  

(b) Licensees must record all 
fees immediately after 
collection; or 

  

(2) Per hand played -  Class F and house-banked Drop box; 
or 
Chip rack - Only allowed if 
licensed for three or fewer 
tables. 

Not more than one 
dollar per hand, per 
player. (a) Players must place fees 

charged on a per-hand 
basis in a designated area 
of the table and dealers 
must collect them before 
dealing the first round of 
cards; and 

  

(b) After collecting the fees, 
dealers must deposit all 
chips or coins in either 
the drop box or chip 
rack; or 

  



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 13 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Authorized types of fees 
Licensees authorized to 

use the fee types 
Authorized methods of 

collection 
Maximum amount to 

collect 
(3) Rake -  Class F and house-banked Drop box; 

or 
Chip rack - Only allowed if 
licensed for three or fewer 
tables. 

Not more than ten 
percent of the total 
wagers for a hand. (a) Dealers must collect fees 

charged on the amounts 
wagered during the play 
of the hand and place the 
fees in a designated area 
of the table; and 

  

(b) Once dealers accumulate 
the maximum fee for a 
hand, they must spread 
the chips or coins to 
allow players and the 
surveillance system to 
view the amount 
collected. After 
spreading the chips or 
coins, the dealer deposits 
them in either the drop 
box or chip rack. 

  

 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0201. WSR 16-23-153, § 

230-15-080, filed 11/22/16, effective 12/23/16. Statutory Authority: 

RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-080, filed 4/10/07, 

effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-15-100 Providing cards and chips in card games. (1) Card 

game licensees, except for nonhouse-banked card gameClass D licensees 

that do not charge a fee to play, must supply all chips and cards and 

not allow any other chips or cards to be used on their premises.
 

(2) Card game licensees must not charge additional fees to play-

ers for chips and cards except as allowed under WAC 230-15-110.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-

15-100, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 14 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-15-110 Standards for chips. (1) Chips must be of conven-

tional size and design that maximize the integrity of the card games. 

Chips must be identifiable as belonging to the licensee and must:
 

(a) Include the house name or logo; and
 

(b) Denote the chip value; and
 

(c) Be made by a licensed manufacturer; and
 

(d) Be purchased from a licensed manufacturer or distributor.
 

(2) Nonhouse-banked card gameClass D licensees that do not charge 

a fee to play are exempt from subsection (1) of this section.
 

(3) Card game licensees must:
 

(a) Safeguard all chips in their possession; and
 

(b) Not allow any other person to buy or sell chips for use in 

card games on their premises.
 

(4) Nonhouse-banked card gameClass A, B, C, and E licensees that 

charge a fee to play and havewith five or fewer tables may use chips 

without a house name or logo if the chips are identifiable as belong-

ing to the licensee and they prominently post values of the chips in 

the card room.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-

15-110, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 15 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-15-115 Standards for cards. (1) Card game licensees must:
 

(a) Supply cards of conventional size and design to maximize the 

integrity of the card games; and
 

(b) Safeguard all cards; and
 

(c) Not allow cards that have been modified or marked in any man-

ner.
 

(2) For Class E, Class F, and house-banked, and nonhouse-banked 

card games licensees that play poker or other games approved by the 

director or the director’s designee and collect a fee to play, the 

cards must:
 

(a) Be made by a licensed manufacturer; and
 

(b) Be purchased from a licensed manufacturer or distributor.
 

(3) Cards with the house name or logo must be used for house-

banked card games.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 09-11-087 (Order 648), § 230-

15-115, filed 5/18/09, effective 7/1/09; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 

230-15-115, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-15-120 Fees for decks of cards. (1) Card game licensees 

may charge a fee to a player asking for a new deck of cards.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 16 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) In addition, nonhouse-banked card gameClass D licensees who 

do not charge a fee to play may charge a fee for every deck supplied 

to a table.
 

(3) The fee must not be greater than the licensee's actual cost 

for the deck.
 

(4) At the time licensees introduce new decks, they must collect 

the fee in cash directly from the player requesting the deck or the 

players of the game.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-

15-120, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 

Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering limits:
 

(1) Poker - 
 

(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any one 

game; and
 

(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting round, 

for example, the initial wager plus three raises; and
 

(c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed forty 

dollars; however, Cclass F and house-banked card game licensees may 

offer a single wager not to exceed three hundred dollars;
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 17 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points - Each 

point must not exceed five cents in value;
 

(3) Ante - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the first 

betting round for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). The ante may, 

by house rule:
 

(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may not 

exceed the maximum wager allowed for the first betting round; and
 

(b) Be used as part of a player's wager;
 

(4) Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must not ex-

ceed ten dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We prohibit dou-

bling of conditions. Players going out may collect no more than two 

additional chips for going out from each participating player.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 and 9.46.0201. WSR 16-23-153, § 

230-15-135, filed 11/22/16, effective 12/23/16; WSR 16-18-024, § 230-

15-135, filed 8/26/16, effective 9/26/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070 and 9.46.0282. WSR 12-21-048 (Order 680), § 230-15-135, filed 

10/12/12, effective 1/1/13; WSR 09-21-013 (Order 658), § 230-15-135, 

filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. 

WSR 09-09-056 (Order 642), § 230-15-135, filed 4/10/09, effective 

7/1/09; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-15-135, filed 10/22/07, ef-



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 18 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

fective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-15-135, filed 

4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

WAC 230-15-200 Reporting card game activity semiannually. Card 

game licensees, except for Class D, must submit an activity report for 

their card games to us.
 

(1) Licensees must complete the report in the format we require; 

and
 

(2) We must receive the completed report, or the report must be 

postmarked, no later than thirty days after the end of the reporting 

period; and
 

(3) The highest ranking executive officer or designee must sign 

the report. If someone other than the licensee or an employee prepares 

the report, the preparer must print his or her name and phone number 

on the report; and
 

(4) Prior to July 1, 2018, Llicensees must report activities for:
 

January 1 through June 30; and
 

July 1 through December 31; and
 

(5) Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must 

be submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 19 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(6) Licensees must submit a report for any period of time their 

license was valid. If licensees do not renew, they must submit a re-

port for the period between the previous semiannual report they filed 

and the date their license expired.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 230-

15-200, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

CARD TOURNAMENTS
 

WAC 230-15-205 Card tournament licenses. (1) Class A, B, E, F, or 

house-banked, and nonhouse-banked card game licensees may conduct a 

card tournament where a fee or buy-in is charged without getting a 

card tournament license, but they must only operate those card games 

approved for their license typeclass.
 

 (2) Class D licensees must obtain a card tournament license to 

charge a fee for a card tournament.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 08-21-087 (Order 633), § 230-

15-205, filed 10/14/08, effective 1/1/09; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 608), § 

230-15-205, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 

 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

Chapter 230-16 WAC
 

MANUFACTURER, DISTRIBUTOR, AND GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIER RULES
 

Last Update: 7/22/14
 

WAC
 

GENERAL RULES FOR MANUFACTURERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND GAMBLING SERVICE SUPPLIERS
 

230-16-001
 

Manufacturers, distributors, and gambling service suppliers must ensure representatives 

are licensed.
 

230-16-005
 

Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and conventions.
 

PUNCH BOARD AND PULL-TAB REQUIREMENTS
 

230-16-010
 

Manufacturers, distributors, and gambling service suppliers must comply with punch board 

and pull-tab rules.
 

230-16-015
 

Punch board and pull-tab sales restrictions.
 

230-16-020
 

Sales to Indian tribes.
 

230-16-025
 

Punch board construction.
 

230-16-030
 

Step up punch board construction.
 

230-16-035
 

Pull-tab construction.
 

230-16-040
 

Winner protection and secondary verification codes.
 

230-16-045
 

Defective punch boards, pull-tabs, or pull-tab dispensers.
 

230-16-050
 

Punch board and pull-tab quality control program.
 

230-16-052
 

Standards for flares.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-16-055
 

Bonus or step up flares.
 

230-16-060
 

Assembly and packaging of pull-tab series.
 

PROGRESSIVE JACKPOT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-065
 

Approvals needed before offering progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-16-070
 

Prizes in progressive jackpot pull-tab series.
 

230-16-075
 

Assembly and packaging of progressive pull-tab series.
 

EVENT PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-080
 

Event pull-tab series.
 

BONUS PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-085
 

Bonus pull-tab series with carry-over jackpots.
 

CARRY-OVER JACKPOTS
 

230-16-090
 

Secondary win codes for carry-over jackpots.
 

230-16-095
 

Prizes in carry-over jackpot pull-tab series.
 

SEAL CARD PULL-TAB SERIES
 

230-16-100
 

Seal card pull-tab series.
 

230-16-102
 

Cumulative prize pool pull-tab games.
 

230-16-104
 

Cumulative prize pool pull-tab series flare.
 

BINGO CARDS
 

230-16-105
 

Disposable bingo cards.
 

230-16-110
 

Duplicate bingo cards.
 

230-16-120
 

Bingo card manufacturing control system.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-16-125
 

Disposable bingo card packing slip and package label.
 

230-16-130
 

Disposable bingo card sales.
 

230-16-135
 

"Player selection" bingo cards.
 

230-16-140
 

"Hidden face" bingo cards.
 

230-16-145
 

Electronically generated bingo card computer systems.
 

230-16-150
 

Control system for electronically generated bingo cards.
 

GAMBLING EQUIPMENT
 

230-16-151
 

Gambling equipment connecting to external tools for standard maintenance.
 

ELECTRONIC CARD FACSIMILES
 

230-16-155
 

Electronic card facsimiles.
 

I.D. STAMPS
 

230-16-160
 

I.D. stamps for gambling equipment.
 

230-16-165
 

Purchasing I.D. stamps.
 

230-16-170
 

I.D. stamps must be visible.
 

230-16-175
 

Placing I.D. stamps and records entry labels.
 

230-16-180
 

Record retention for I.D. stamp records.
 

RECORDKEEPING
 

230-16-185
 

Accounting records for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-187
 

Accounting records for manufacturer's special sales permit holders.
 

230-16-190
 

Sales invoices for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-195
 

Additional requirements for sales invoices.
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 4 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

230-16-200
 

Sales journals for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-205
 

Record retention for manufacturers and distributors.
 

230-16-210
 

Alternative formats for recordkeeping.
 

230-16-215
 

Accounting records and record retention for gambling service suppliers.
 

230-16-220
 

Activity reports by manufacturers and distributors.
 

WAC 230-16-130 Disposable bingo card sales. (1) Manufacturers of 

disposable bingo cards must sell each set or collation as a single unit.
 

(2) We allow distributors to open containers for  Class E and below 

licensed operators and operators of authorized unlicensed activities:
 

(a) At an operator's request to change the "on," "up," and "cut." 

When a modification is made, the distributor must reseal the carton and 

note all changes on the packing label; or
 

(b) To provide cards to individuals for recreational activities; 

or
 

(c) To provide cards for "promotional contests of chance."
 

(3) Subsets must have at least one container, except distributors 

may open the container and sell cards in smaller quantities described 

in subsection (2) of this section.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-19-069 (Order 615), § 230-

16-130, filed 9/17/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



  

WAC (6/7/2017 4:35 PM) [ 5 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

WAC 230-16-220 Activity reports by manufacturers and distributors. 

Manufacturers and distributors must submit activity reports to us twice 

a year for sales and services related to gambling activities. The ac-

tivity reports must be in the format we require and must:
 

(1) Prior to July 1, 2018, Ccover the periods:
 

(a) January 1 through June 30; and
 

(b) July 1 through December 31; and
 

(2) Beginning July 1, 2018, reports required by this section must 

be submitted quarterly, as set forth in WAC 230-05-102; and 

(3) Be received at our administrative office or postmarked no later 

than thirty days following the end of the reporting period; and
 

(34) Be signed by the licensee's highest ranking executive officer 

or a designee. If someone other than the manufacturer or distributor or 

its employee prepares the report, then it must provide the preparer's 

name and business telephone number; and
 

(45) Be submitted for any period of time their license was valid, 

even if they had no activity or did not renew.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-19-069 (Order 615), § 230-

16-220, filed 9/17/07, effective 1/1/08.]
 



WAC (10/2/2017 8:17 AM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING

WAC 230-17-150 Use of bBrief adjudicative proceedings (BAPs). (1) 

Presiding officers must use brief adjudicative proceedings (BAPs) for 

The commission adopts the procedure for brief adjudicative proceedings 

provided in RCW 34.05.482 through 34.05.494. The commission finds 

brief adjudicative proceedings will be conducted where the matter in-

volves one of the following:

(a) Stays of summary suspension; and

(b) Denying or revoking extended operating hours for:

(i) Card games; and

(ii) Bingo; and

(c) Charitable or nonprofit licensee appealing a denial of a re-

quest for waiver of significant progress requirements; and

(d) Failure to pay required gambling taxes, where that is the on-

ly alleged violation in the administrative charges; and

(e) Failure to pay quarterly license fees or submit quarterly li-

cense reports; and 

(f) When the penalty we are requesting is a suspension of seven 

days or less; and

(fg) When the parties stipulate to using a BAPbrief adjudicative 

proceeding.

BRIEF ADJUDICATIVE PROCEEDINGS (BAPs)



  

WAC (10/2/2017 8:17 AM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 
  

(2) If we conduct a BAP, we may conduct them telephonically and, 

therefore, the notice of hearing will not set a place of the hearing.
 

(3) Any party to the BAP may request to appear in person and, in 

those cases, a place will be set and all parties notified.
 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-156 (Order 615), § 230-

17-150, filed 10/24/07, effective 1/1/08.] 



NEW SECTION

WAC 230-17-151  Brief adjudicative proceedings—Procedure.  (1) 
The following procedures apply to the commission's brief adjudicative 
proceedings for matters identified in WAC 230-17-150, unless the mat
ter is converted to a formal adjudicative proceeding as provided in 
subsection (2) of this section.

(a) We will set the date and time of the hearing.
(b) Written notice shall be served upon the licensee at least 

seven days before the date of the hearing. Service is to be made pur
suant to WAC 230-17-035.

(c) A brief adjudicative proceeding may be conducted telephoni
cally with the concurrence of the presiding officer and all persons 
involved in the proceeding.

(d) WAC 230-17-045 controls who can appear in a brief adjudica
tive proceeding.

(e) The presiding officer must be the director, deputy director, 
or administrative law judge.

(f) Parties or their representatives may present written documen
tation or oral testimony at a brief adjudicative proceeding. However, 
no nonparty witnesses may appear to testify.

(g) The presiding officer may, in her or his discretion, allow 
oral argument from parties or their representatives during a brief ad
judicative proceeding.

(h) The presiding officer will enter an initial order within ten 
business days of the end of a brief adjudicative proceeding. The ini
tial order shall briefly state the basis and legal authority for the 
decision.

(i) An initial order will become the final order if no review of 
the initial order is received by us within twenty-one days of service 
of the initial order.

(2) Any party, including the agency, may file a written objection 
to resolution of a matter by a brief adjudicative proceeding and may 
request that it be converted to a formal adjudicative proceeding.

(a) The objection must be received by the presiding officer at 
least three days before the scheduled brief adjudicative proceeding.

(b) Upon receiving a timely written objection, the presiding of
ficer shall determine whether the matter should be converted.

(c) A presiding officer may convert any brief adjudicative pro
ceeding to a formal adjudicative proceeding whenever it appears that a 
brief adjudicative proceeding is insufficient to determine the issues 
pending before the commission.

(d) In determining whether to convert a proceeding, the presiding 
officer may consider the following factors:

(i) Whether witness testimony will aid the presiding or reviewing 
officer in resolving contested issues of fact;

(ii) Whether the legal or factual issues are sufficiently complex 
to warrant a formal adjudicative proceeding, including whether there 
are multiple issues of fact or law;

(iii) Whether a brief adjudicative proceeding will establish an 
adequate record for further agency or judicial review;

(iv) Whether the legal issues involved in the proceeding present 
questions of legal significance or are being raised for the first time 
before the commission;

[ 1 ] OTS-9117.1



(v) Whether conversion of the proceeding will cause unnecessary 
delay in resolving the issues; and

(vi) Any other factors that the presiding or reviewing officer 
deems relevant in reaching a determination.

NEW SECTION

WAC 230-17-152  Brief adjudicative proceedings—Appeal rights. 
(1) Any party to a brief adjudicative proceeding may request review of 
the initial order by filing a written petition for review to us.

(2) We must receive your petition for review within twenty-one 
days after service of the initial order.

(3) Your petition for review must contain any evidence or written 
material relevant to the matter that the party wishes the reviewing 
officer to consider.

(4) Parties must serve copies of the petition to all other par
ties or their representatives at the time the petition for review is 
filed.

(5) The chair of the commission or the commissioners shall be the 
reviewing officer(s).

(6) The reviewing officer(s) consider your appeal and either up
hold, modify or overturn the brief adjudicative proceeding order. The 
decision of the reviewing officer(s), also called an order, is the fi
nal agency decision. The order will be provided to you at the last ad
dress you furnished to the commission.

(7) The order on review must be in writing, must include a brief 
statement of the reasons for the decision, and must be entered within 
ten business days after the petition for review is considered. The or
der shall include a description of any further available administra
tive review or, if none is available, a notice that judicial review 
may be available.

[ 2 ] OTS-9117.1



WAC (10/2/2017 8:17 AM) [ 3 ] NOT FOR FILING

WAC 230-17-155 Discovery limitations in brief adjudicative proceed-

ings. (1) In all brief adjudicative proceedings, discovery must be 

limited to requests for written reports and supporting documents rele-

vant to the charges.

(2) Interrogatories and depositions are not allowed.

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 07-21-156 (Order 615), § 230-

17-155, filed 10/24/07, effective 1/1/08.]



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-21-116, filed 10/22/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-03-085  Denying, suspending, or revoking an application, 
license or permit.  We may deny, suspend, or revoke any application, 
license or permit, when the applicant, licensee, or anyone holding a 
substantial interest in the applicant's or licensee's business or or
ganization:

(1) Commits any act that constitutes grounds for denying, sus
pending, or revoking licenses or permits under RCW 9.46.075; or

(2) Has been convicted of, or forfeited bond on a charge of, or 
pleaded guilty to a misdemeanor or felony crime involving physical 
harm to individuals. "Physical harm to individuals" includes any form 
of criminal assault, any crime involving a threat of physical harm 
against another person, or any crime involving an intention to inflict 
physical harm on another person; or

(3) Has demonstrated willful disregard for complying with ordi
nances, statutes, administrative rules, or court orders, whether at 
the local, state, or federal level; or

(4) Has failed to pay gambling taxes to local taxing authorities 
and the local taxing authority has petitioned us to take action; or

(5) Has failed to pay a quarterly license fee or submit a quar
terly license report; or

(6) Is serving a period of probation or community supervision im
posed as a sentence for any juvenile, misdemeanor, or felony criminal 
offense, whether or not the offense is covered under RCW 9.46.075(4); 
or

(((6))) (7) Is the subject of an outstanding gross misdemeanor or 
felony arrest warrant; or

(((7))) (8) Fails to provide us with any information required un
der commission rules within the time required, or, if the rule estab
lishes no time limit, within thirty days after receiving a written re
quest from us; or

(((8))) (9) Poses a threat to the effective regulation of gam
bling, or creates or increases the likelihood of unfair or illegal 
practices, methods, and activities in the conduct of gambling activi
ties, as demonstrated by:

(a) Prior activities; or
(b) Criminal record; or
(c) Reputation; or
(d) Habits; or
(e) Associations; or
(((9))) (10) Knowingly provides or provided goods or services to 

an entity that illegally operates gambling activities.

[ 1 ] OTS-9161.1

Proposed Rule Changes - 
Failure to pay license fee/submit licensing report and BAP and 

Process for failure to pay/report



 
 
Tab 9: NOVEMBER 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 

Describe the Rule Change 
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the October 2017 Commission Meeting  
 
Staff is requesting a new rule to require a manufacturer or its designee to submit electronic or mechanical 
gambling equipment for evaluation during rule-making. 
 
This rule change would allow staff to request and evaluate equipment during the rule-making process.   
 
The manufacturer would not be required to submit an application or fees for this evaluation during the rule-
making process.   
 
If the new rule or rule change is adopted, thereby authorizing the use of such gambling equipment, the 
manufacturer would be required to submit an application and fees to us for our review and approval prior to 
selling or leasing the gambling equipment in the state, as outlined in WAC 230-06-050. 
 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement has been prepared and is attached.   
 
Attachments: 

• WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 
• Notice of rule-making sent to all licensed manufacturers on October 27, 2017.   
• Small Business Economic Impact Statement. 

 
Policy Considerations 

When a petition for rule-making involves new gambling equipment or a new concept involving gambling 
equipment, staff feels it is necessary to include a review of the gambling equipment as part of the rule-
making process.  A review of the gambling equipment during the rule-making process would ensure: 

• Staff has a clear understanding of how the equipment works;  
• Regulatory guidelines can be addressed during the rule-making process; and 
• More effective rule-making can occur as a result of understanding how the gambling equipment 

operates. 
 

Stakeholder Feedback 
Victor Mena – Testified at the September commission meeting with concerns this new rule would be 
costly for small manufacturers and inhibit new gambling equipment and games in the state. 
When asked again in October, Victor Mena no longer had concerns. 
 

 
Staff Request for New Rule   

WAC 230-17-192 Submission of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment 
during rule-making.  

 
November 2017 – Further Discussion 
October 2017 – Further Discussion 

September 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
 



  

9/12/2017 11:35 AM [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9065.1 
  

NEW SECTION
 

WAC 230-17-192 Submission ofRule making that involves new or nov-

el electronic or mechanical gambling equipment during rule-making. (1) 

A manufacturer or its designee is required to submit electronic or me-

chanical gambling equipment for evaluation during rule- making when:
 

(a) The equipment or intended use of the equipment is new or nov-

el in Washington state; and 
 

(b) tThe commission is consideringhas takingen action to adopt, 

change, or repeal a rule in order to authorize use of the gambling 

equipment.
 

(2) When we are ready to begin our equipment evaluation, we will 

notify the manufacturer or its designee in writing. The manufacturer 

or its designee will have thirty days from the date of our written re-

quest to submit the requested electronic or mechanical gambling equip-

ment to our headquarters, directly or through a designee, or we may 

administratively close our review and deny the requested rule change.
 

(3) Manufacturers or their designee must submit:
 



  

9/12/2017 11:35 AM [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9065.1 
  

(a) The gambling equipment, including all relevant software, that 

is identical or substantially similar to what will be marketed, dis-

tributed, and deployed in Washington;
 

(b) A copy of detailed technical materials and diagrams associat-

ed with the equipment and software, and all of the operational proce-

dures and manuals, including relevant hardware and software manuals; 

and
 

(c) Other technical specifications as requested by the commis-

sion.
 

(4) The manufacturer or its designee must install, configure, and 

support the equipment/software to allow us to fully evaluate its oper-

ation. Evaluation may include, but is not limited to, interoperabil-

ity, communication, security, and player protection issues.
 

(5) We will notify the manufacturer or their designee in writing 

if we require additional equipment or information for our evaluation. 

The manufacturer or its designee must provide us with the requested 

equipment or information within thirty days from the date of our writ-

ten request or we may administratively close our review and deny the 

requested rule change.
 

[]
 



WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 
(1) When you submit gambling equipment, supplies, services, or games for our review to 

verify compliance with chapter 9.46 RCW and Title 230 WAC, you must pay the application 
deposit before we perform the review. You must also reimburse us for any additional costs of the 
review. All costs must be paid in full prior to the completion of the review. 

(2) The gambling equipment submitted for review must be identical or substantially similar 
to what will be marketed, distributed, and deployed in Washington. If the equipment is not 
sufficient for testing and review, we may require additional equipment or information. 

(3) If your application is incomplete or we request additional information, you must provide 
us with the required items within thirty days of notification or we may administratively close 
your application. 

(4) You can begin selling or leasing the gambling equipment when you are licensed and the 
gambling equipment has been approved by the director or director's designee. 

(5) We may include security or surveillance requirements as part of gambling equipment 
approval. 

(6) Gambling equipment must operate as approved by the director or director's designee. 
(7) We may keep equipment submitted for review to allow for continued testing and training 

as long as the equipment remains in play in Washington. We are not liable for any damage to 
equipment while in our possession. 

(8) If you do not agree with the director or director's designee's decision, you may file a 
petition for declaratory order with the commission according to RCW 34.05.240 and chapter 
230-17 WAC. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 14-09-037 (Order 696), § 230-06-050, filed 4/11/14, effective 
7/1/14; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-06-050, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 06-17-132 
(Order 601), § 230-06-050, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=34.05.240
http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-17
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070


From: DONOTREPLY (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Rancour, Michelle (GMB)
Subject: Notice of Rule-Making
Date: Friday, October 27, 2017 3:09:54 PM
Attachments: image001.gif

image002.png
image003.jpg
10 2017 Comm meeting.pdf
image005.png

 
Dear Licensee,
 
Commission staff is requesting a new rule to require manufacturers to submit electronic or
mechanical gambling equipment for evaluation during rule-making.  This new rule would allow staff
to request and evaluate equipment during the rule-making process.  Manufacturers would not be
required to submit an application or fees for the evaluation during rule-making. 
 
If the new rule or rule change involving equipment is adopted, thereby authorizing the use of such
equipment, the manufacturer would be required to submit an application and fees to us for our
review and approval of the gambling equipment, as outlined in WAC 230-06-050.
 
An equipment evaluation would allow staff to understand how the equipment works,
communication, security and player protection issues.  With this understanding, staff could make the
necessary changes during rule-making to address any equipment related issues rather than initiate
subsequent rule-making after the equipment is operational in the state. 
 
Staff’s new rule was filed for further discussion at the September 2017 commission meeting.  It will
be up for further discussion at the November 16, 2017, commission meeting.  Check our website for
meeting dates, times and location. 
 
If you have any questions or comments on this new rule, you can testify before the Commissioners
at the November 2017 or January 2018 commission meeting or submit your comments to
Tina.Griffin@wsgc.wa.gov.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Tina Griffin
Assistant Director
Licensing, Regulation and Enforcement
Washington State Gambling Commission
P.O. Box 42400
Olympia, WA   98504
360-486-3546 office
 

        
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DONOTREPLY50F
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/
mailto:Tina.Griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
https://www.facebook.com/WAGamblingCommission/
https://twitter.com/WAGambling
https://www.instagram.com/wagambling/
https://www.linkedin.com/company-beta/16262525/















 
 
 
Tab 6: October 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 


Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Staff 


Describe the Rule Change 
Bold/Underline = Changes made after the September 2017 Commission Meeting  
 
Staff is requesting a new rule to require a manufacturer or its designee to submit electronic or mechanical 
gambling equipment for evaluation during rule-making. 
 
This rule change would allow staff to request and evaluate equipment during the rule-making process.   
 
The manufacturer would not be required to submit an application or fees for this evaluation during 
the rule-making process.   
 
If the new rule or rule change is adopted, thereby authorizing the use of such gambling equipment, 
the manufacturer would be required to submit an application and fees to us for our review and 
approval prior to selling or leasing the gambling equipment in the state, as outlined in WAC 230-06-
050. 
 
Attachments: 


• WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 
 


Policy Considerations 
When a petition for rule-making involves new gambling equipment or a new concept involving gambling 
equipment, staff feels it is necessary to include a review of the gambling equipment as part of the rule-
making process.  A review of the gambling equipment during the rule-making process would ensure: 


• Staff has a clear understanding of how the equipment works;  
• Regulatory guidelines can be addressed during the rule-making process; and 
• More effective rule-making can occur as a result of understanding how the gambling equipment 


operates. 
 


Stakeholder Feedback 


Victor Mena – Testified at the September commission meeting with concerns this new rule would be 
costly for small manufacturers and inhibit new gambling equipment and games in the state. 
 
 


 
 


Staff Request for New Rule   
WAC 230-17-192 Submission of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment 


during rule-making.  
 


October 2017 – Further Discussion 
September 2017 – Discussion and Possible Filing 


 







  


9/12/2017 11:35 AM [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9065.1 
  


NEW SECTION
 


WAC 230-17-192 Submission ofRule making that involves new or nov-


el electronic or mechanical gambling equipment during rule-making. (1) 


A manufacturer or its designee is required to submit electronic or me-


chanical gambling equipment for evaluation during rule- making when:
 


(a) The equipment or intended use of the equipment is new or nov-


el in Washington state; and 
 


(b) tThe commission is consideringhas takingen action to adopt, 


change, or repeal a rule in order to authorize use of the gambling 


equipment.
 


(2) When we are ready to begin our equipment evaluation, we will 


notify the manufacturer or its designee in writing. The manufacturer 


or its designee will have thirty days from the date of our written re-


quest to submit the requested electronic or mechanical gambling equip-


ment to our headquarters, directly or through a designee, or we may 


administratively close our review and deny the requested rule change.
 


(3) Manufacturers or their designee must submit:
 







  


9/12/2017 11:35 AM [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING OTS-9065.1 
  


(a) The gambling equipment, including all relevant software, that 


is identical or substantially similar to what will be marketed, dis-


tributed, and deployed in Washington;
 


(b) A copy of detailed technical materials and diagrams associat-


ed with the equipment and software, and all of the operational proce-


dures and manuals, including relevant hardware and software manuals; 


and
 


(c) Other technical specifications as requested by the commis-


sion.
 


(4) The manufacturer or its designee must install, configure, and 


support the equipment/software to allow us to fully evaluate its oper-


ation. Evaluation may include, but is not limited to, interoperabil-


ity, communication, security, and player protection issues.
 


(5) We will notify the manufacturer or their designee in writing 


if we require additional equipment or information for our evaluation. 


The manufacturer or its designee must provide us with the requested 


equipment or information within thirty days from the date of our writ-


ten request or we may administratively close our review and deny the 


requested rule change.
 


[]
 







WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment. 
(1) When you submit gambling equipment, supplies, services, or games for our review to 


verify compliance with chapter 9.46 RCW and Title 230 WAC, you must pay the application 
deposit before we perform the review. You must also reimburse us for any additional costs of the 
review. All costs must be paid in full prior to the completion of the review. 


(2) The gambling equipment submitted for review must be identical or substantially similar 
to what will be marketed, distributed, and deployed in Washington. If the equipment is not 
sufficient for testing and review, we may require additional equipment or information. 


(3) If your application is incomplete or we request additional information, you must provide 
us with the required items within thirty days of notification or we may administratively close 
your application. 


(4) You can begin selling or leasing the gambling equipment when you are licensed and the 
gambling equipment has been approved by the director or director's designee. 


(5) We may include security or surveillance requirements as part of gambling equipment 
approval. 


(6) Gambling equipment must operate as approved by the director or director's designee. 
(7) We may keep equipment submitted for review to allow for continued testing and training 


as long as the equipment remains in play in Washington. We are not liable for any damage to 
equipment while in our possession. 


(8) If you do not agree with the director or director's designee's decision, you may file a 
petition for declaratory order with the commission according to RCW 34.05.240 and chapter 
230-17 WAC. 
[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 14-09-037 (Order 696), § 230-06-050, filed 4/11/14, effective 
7/1/14; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-06-050, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 06-17-132 
(Order 601), § 230-06-050, filed 8/22/06, effective 1/1/08.] 
 



http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=34.05.240

http://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-17

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=9.46.070



		WAC 230-17-192 Submission of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment during rule-making.

		October 2017 – Further Discussion

		WAC 230 06 050.pdf

		WAC 230-06-050 Review of electronic or mechanical gambling equipment.











 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 1 of 5 
 

Small Business Economic Impact Statement – RCW 19.85.040 
Washington State Gambling Commission 

 
October 27, 2017  
 
Proposed Changes to Rules:  WAC 230-17-192, Submission of electronic or mechanical 
gambling equipment during rule-making.     
 
This new rule requires manufacturers or their designee to submit electronic or mechanical 
gambling equipment for evaluation during rule-making, if the equipment submission is requested 
by Gambling Commission staff.  The manufacturer would not be required to submit an 
application or fees for this evaluation during the rule-making process.   
 
Allowing staff to evaluate the gambling equipment during the rule-making process will ensure: 

• Staff has a clear understanding of how the equipment works before authorized by rule 
and implemented;  

• Regulatory guidelines can be addressed during the rule-making process; and 
• More effective rule-making can occur as a result of understanding how the gambling 

equipment operates.  
 
The evaluation of the equipment may include an understanding of interoperability, 
communication, security, and player protection issues.  The intent is to put rules into place 
during the rule-making process to set parameters for the authorization of the use of the 
equipment rather than after new rules are in place and the equipment deployed.  Thereby, this 
process should save stakeholders money by not putting equipment into the marketplace and then 
having it pulled back because of subsequent changes in rules limiting the operation of the 
equipment because staff did not know how the equipment worked.   

 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
1. Description of the reporting, record keeping and other compliance requirements of 

the proposed rule. 
 

There are no new reporting or record keeping requirements.  The new rule solely creates 
a mechanism to require gambling equipment manufacturers or their designee to submit 
electronic or mechanical gambling equipment for evaluation during rule-making to 
authorize the use of such gambling equipment.   
 
This new rule is only applicable during rule-making to authorize new gambling 
equipment.  The gambling equipment review and approval process set out in WAC 230-
06-050 will not be changed. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 2 of 5 
 

The manufacturer would be required to submit the following to our office in Lacey, WA, 
for inspection within thirty days of our request:   

• Gambling equipment, including software, that is identical or substantially similar 
to what will be marketed, distributed or deployed in the state;  

• A copy of detailed technical materials and diagrams associated with the 
equipment and software, and all of the operational procedures and manuals;  

• Other requested technical specifications.  
 
The manufacturer would be responsible for costs associated with the above information 
and the installing, configuring, and supporting the equipment/software to allow us to 
fully evaluate its operation.   
 
The manufacturer would not be required to submit an application or any fees related to 
the evaluation during the rule-making process.  The agency will assume all 
evaluation/inspection-related costs. 

 
   

  
2. Kinds of professional services that a small business is likely to need in order to 

comply. 
 
Manufacturers seeking rule-making to authorize new gambling equipment through a rule 
change may need to solicit transportation support to get their proposed gambling 
equipment to our Lacey office.  
 
No other professional services are needed to comply with this new rule.  
 

3. The actual costs to small businesses of compliance, including costs of equipment, 
supplies, labor and increased administrative costs. 
 
The actual costs cannot be determined because of the following variables: 
• Distance of manufacturer seeking a rule-change to authorize new gambling 

equipment (to determine transportation costs).  Manufacturer may reside out-of-state; 
and 

• Time to evaluate the new equipment during the rule-making process, including the 
value of the equipment/software and costs for installation, configuration, and support 
for the equipment is variable depending on type of equipment and complexity of 
equipment and software being evaluate.  The cost could increase if the manufacturer 
had to remove equipment from possible sale, rental or lease in another jurisdiction 
where the equipment is authorized for use.   

 
4. Whether compliance with the rule, based on feedback received from licensees, will 

cause businesses to lose sales or revenue. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 3 of 5 
 

No small business should lose sales or revenue because the rule relates to gambling 
equipment/software not currently authorized under the Gambling Act or by Gambling 
Commission rules.  A card room licensee testified he feared increased costs to small 
manufacturers would prevent new gambling equipment coming into the state and being 
used by card room licensees.  The licensee misunderstood that the equipment evaluation 
under this new rule only applied when a manufacturer is seeking a rule change to 
authorize the use of the new equipment.   
 
Gambling Commission staff explained to the licensee there should be no costs preventing 
distribution of equipment for currently approved devices and software, and the licensee 
felt comfortable there would be no additional costs.  The licensee also understood how 
this new rule would provide more transparency and be more economical for 
manufacturers.  In the past, manufacturers have made financial investments by placing 
gambling equipment in the state after a rule change to authorize the equipment.  Later, 
further rules had to be implemented, which required costly modifications to the 
equipment, as staff gained an understanding of how the equipment operated.    
 
This new rule could cause a small business to delay sales or revenue on the one piece of 
gambling equipment they submit to us for evaluation during the rule-making process.  
Overall, we anticipate this new rule will save manufacturers from making investments in 
gambling equipment in the state and then having to change the functionality of the 
equipment, thereby costing the manufacturers money to make the changes to the 
equipment and possible loss of revenue, because of future rule changes to how the 
equipment will operate.   
 

5. A determination of whether the proposed rule will have a disproportionate cost 
impact on small businesses.  
 
The cost on small businesses and the cost for the largest 10 percent of manufacturers is 
indeterminate because shipping of the equipment/software and the value of the 
equipment/software and costs for installation, configuration, and support for the 
equipment is variable depending on type of equipment and complexity of equipment and 
software that will be evaluated.  However, this rule should not have a disproportionate 
cost because the cost should be the same because the possible aforementioned costs are 
equipment/software specific and should not vary between manufacturers.   

 
 

6. Steps taken by the agency to reduce the costs of the rule on small businesses or 
reasonable justification for not doing so. Agencies “must consider, without 
limitation, each of the following methods of reducing the impact of the proposed 
rule on small businesses:”  

 
a. Reducing, modifying, or eliminating substantive regulatory requirements; 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 4 of 5 
 

This rule change does not add any new substantive regulatory requirements to 
licensees or potential licensees.  Instead, it adds a process during the agency’s 
rule-making consideration when it is considering rules authorizing and regulating 
new gambling equipment and/or software.  The agency will incur most of the 
costs for inspection/evaluation of the gambling equipment and manufacturers will 
not be required to pay for our inspection/evaluation of the equipment during the 
rule-making process.   
 
This should reduce manufacturer costs in the long-run because staff and 
Commissioners will understand the full functionality of the equipment during the 
rule-making process and then can ensure that the rules contain all necessary 
regulatory requirements to ensure effective implementation of the new 
equipment/software.  This should prevent situations that have occurred in the past 
where equipment has been approved without review by the Commission’s lab and 
then additional rules are enacted to address regulatory concerns with how the 
equipment is being operated after its initial approval.   
 
 

b. Simplifying, reducing, or eliminating recordkeeping and reporting 
requirements; 
 
This rule change does not require any additional recordkeeping or reporting 
requirements.   
 

c. Reducing the frequency of inspections; 
 
This rule change will not impact the number of inspections.   
 

d. Delaying compliance timetables; 
 
A delay is not necessary because it could provide a financial benefit for 
manufacturers seeking a rule change to allow the gambling equipment they 
manufacture in Washington.     

 
e. Reducing or modifying fine schedules for noncompliance; or 

 
Reduction or modification is unnecessary because there is no fine schedule related 
to this rule.     
 

f. Any other mitigation techniques including those suggested by small 
businesses or small business advocates.  

 
A mitigation analysis is unnecessary because of the positive impact to 
manufacturers.  We have not received any feedback from stakeholders requesting 
changes to the proposed rule.   



 
 
 
 
 

Small business economic impact statement        Page 5 of 5 
 

 
7. A description of how the Gambling Commission will involve small businesses in the 

development of the rule. 
 

Notice of this rule-making followed the Gambling Commission’s standard procedure.  It 
was included in the September 2017 commission materials posted on our website.  On 
September 15, 2017, staff presented the new rule to the Commissioners for discussion 
and possible filing.  The Commissioners filed the new rule for further discussion after 
taking comment from the public. 
 
The new rule was included in the October 2017 commission materials posted on our 
website.  Prior to the start of the October 2017 commission meeting, we held an informal 
“Question and Answer” session for stakeholders to ask questions and discuss with staff 
proposed rules.  The new rule was discussed at the Commission meeting and the public 
was taken. 
 
In October 2017, we posted the new rule on our agency’s website under “Breaking 
News.”  (“Breaking News” is in the middle of our main website, www.wsgc.wa.gov  
 
On October 27, 2017, we sent an email to all licensed manufacturers giving them notice 
of the new rule and a copy of the proposed rule language.   
 
The new rule will be discussed at future commission meetings until the Commissioners 
take final action, which is anticipated to be at the January 2018 meeting.  Public comment 
is taken at each meeting.  The new rule and this Small Business Economic Impact 
Statement will be made available on our website for each commission meeting that the 
rule will be heard.  Lastly, the new rule will remain posted under “Breaking News” on 
our main website until the Commissioners take final action. 

 
This process provided small businesses several opportunities to provide feedback in the 
development of the new rule.  

 
8. A list of industries that will be required to comply with the rule. 

7132.   
 

9.  An estimate of the number of jobs that will be created or lost as the result of   
 compliance with the proposed rule.  

 
No jobs will be impacted based on the information provided above.   



Washington State Gambling Commission 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2017 
Global Gaming Expo (G2E) 

Summary Report



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

ii 
 

Preface 
 
The Global Gaming Expo (G2E) sponsored by the American Gaming Association (AGA) is considered the 
preeminent show for the global casino entertainment industry. The 2017 G2E was held at the Sands 
Expo in Las Vegas, NV from October 2 to October 5, 2017 and had more than 550 exhibitors and more 
than 26,000 attendees. Some of the common themes at this year’s G2E were innovation, Tribal gaming, 
skill based games, eSports and iGaming. 
 
In order to stay abreast of current and future trends in the gambling industry as well as regulatory 
concerns about the industry and/or products, the Washington State Gambling Commission sends staff to 
G2E. Attendance also allows staff to network with regulators from various jurisdictions, manufacturers, 
current licensees and potential licensees. 
 
Commission Chair Bud Sizemore and Commissioner Ed Troyer attended the 2017 G2E along with Ex 
Officio members Senator Conway and Representative Sawyer. Nine staff members from the agency 
attended as well.  We had two teams of staff members who attended for different areas of expertise.  
One team of staff members work primarily with Tribal Lottery System submissions and associated 
regulations; the staff members who made up this team are Chief Information Officer Tom Means, 
Electronic Gambling Lab Administrator Melissa Valencia, Electronic Gambling Lab Lead Testing Engineer 
Rodney Joubert and Electronic Gambling Lab Lead Testing Engineer Logan Blazian.  The team of staff 
members who work primarily with all other gambling equipment in the state and associated regulations, 
are Agent in Charge, Licensing, Jennifer LaMont, and Agent in Charge, Tribal Gaming, Cathy Harvey, 
Special Agent Donna Khanhasa, and Special Agent Brian Lane.  Deputy Director Amy Hunter also 
attended G2E 2017; although staff had primary focus on their areas, meeting attendance overlapped 
depending on expertise, interest, request of the stakeholder or manufacturer, etc. This report consists 
of information provided by all of these staff members. 



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

1 
 

Regulators Roundtable 
 
The Regulator’s Roundtable was attended by 8 jurisdictions: 
 

Arizona Department of Gaming Nevada Gaming Control Board 
New Jersey Casino Control Commission Montana Gaming Control Division 
Ohio Casino Control Commission Ontario Alcohol & Gaming Commission 
Missouri Gaming Commission Washington State Gambling Commission 

 
Topics of interest were testing labs, skill based games, electronic table games or Fusion games’ revenue 
accounting, and Daily Fantasy Sports (DFS)/sports wagering.   
 
Representatives of the Nevada Gaming Control Board discussed their experience in having their own lab 
to test products versus relying on testing from independent testing labs (ITLs). In the past, Nevada had 
their own lab test a wide variety of products. Currently, the lab primarily tests outlying technology that 
is unusual, and depend entirely on ITLs for testing slot games. It was also shared that ITL’s certifications 
for revenue reporting have had deficiencies and since ITLs have been testing the games, time to conduct 
testing and approval of games has increased. 
 
Jurisdictional differences in regulating skill based gaming was discussed. Skill based games are increasing 
in popularity. Regulatory agencies are trying to make policy decisions and accounting procedures for this 
new emerging gaming.  How do skill/chance based gambling activities fit into gambling regulation? It is 
not the regulator’s job to limit a skilled player’s success on a game. Further, manufacturers of this type 
of gaming have a hard time controlling win percentages; it truly is based on the skill of a particular 
player. 
 
Missouri contributed that they now allow DFS betting, Arizona allows skill/chance hybrid games, and 
Ohio is preparing to allow DFS betting. Montana discussed the rash of forged or altered cash tickets that 
they have seen recently. Attendees discussed the regulation of table games and fusion type games that 
have both slot and table game revenues with shared accounting systems and the difficulty in accounting 
for revenue generated by which type of gaming. 
 
Representatives from the New Jersey Casino Control Commission contributed that their own Licensing 
and Lab staff have had communication issues and other representatives agreed that they have 
experienced this in their own agencies. New Jersey also shared that geolocating products are not as 
accurate as iGaming products and that there are problems locating players in state border areas. 
 
 
 
 
 



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

2 
 

Lab Tours 
 

BMM Lab Tour 
Three staff members were given a tour of BMM’s Las Vegas lab, BMM is a licensed independent testing 
lab. They were able to see BMM’s testing lab space, which included isolation and investigation rooms. 
Isolation rooms are privacy rooms for manufacturers who have new products that they don’t want seen 
on the floor. WSGC staff was unable to see the forensics and investigation room, as only 3 people have 
access, none of which were on-site at that time. The room is used for system investigations from states, 
manufacturers, etc. when necessary. 
 
BMM keeps all system servers in one room and do networking with overhead cable trays. They have a 
small interoperability lab on the premises for testing using simulators and real accounting systems. 
There is also a math group that performs random number generator (RNG) testing as well as code 
review. They have a lot of the same challenges we at the WSGC lab face, such as prompt manufacturer 
support, new system technical issues, etc. The SASsimulator program they use was built and provided by 
IGT. WSGC can ask for a copy for simple SAS testing, but we don’t expect this to replace real 
interoperability SAS testing in our lab.  
 
There was also a demonstration of two tools that BMM utilizes, EGMedit and PayNPlay. EGMedit was 
developed by BMM and can simulate a real game on a PC with wins like jackpots, invalid wins, etc. 
PayNPlay is the actual game simulator software. BMM will take the core game code and put it in a .dll 
that runs a simulation of the game on Pay N Play. Similar to WSGC lab, most testers work on one 
manufacturer for long periods of time, allowing a degree of familiarity with one system. 

 
Gaming Laboratories International (GLI) Lab Tour 
Two staff members were given a tour of GLI’s Las Vegas lab, GLI is a licensed independent testing lab. 
They were able to see GLI’s vast testing lab space and meet with a few of GLI’s testing engineers. During 
the tour, GLI discussed and demonstrated their ability to link the accounting systems to any one of their 
labs in the world via VPN. This allows the Colorado lab to hook up to accounting in the Vegas lab and 
produce reports if needed. They also explained that emulated testing is conducted and SAS sniffing tools 
are implemented to parse out which manufacturer’s software is causing issues. Similar to our lab and 
BMM, GLI has specialized teams of engineers that are dedicated to each manufacturer. They mentioned 
that they are in the midst of skill based game testing. 
 
Several other staff members and Commissioners had a separate meeting with GLI at their booth on the 
Expo floor at G2E. James Maida, President of GLI, explained that he will be visiting Washington in early 
December to attend a conference. He plans to stop by WSGC while he’s in town. GLI also discussed a 
program called GLI Scale, which is a program that can simulate up to 20,000 machines. GLI does not test 
using this unless the manufacturers request load testing on certain components.  
 
Staff was also given an overview of GLI’s Bulletproof product. GLI was encouraged by Nevada to go out 
and engage the Tribes and help them with their IT systems by providing IT consulting. They would like to 
do a network risk assessment at facilities for both their gaming and non-gaming networks. The service is 



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

3 
 

essentially monitoring for threats to the network. They can quarantine the threat or notify the casino of 
the threat so that they can deal with it, depending on the casino’s preference. They would like to find a 
consistent standard to apply to everyone. They would like to bring a group of technicians to WSGC to 
demonstrate the product to us. Tom Means, CIO, explained he would work further with both GLI staff 
and Tribal partners to explore this product and its use in Washington tribal facilities. 
 
Mr. Maida complimented WSGC by letting us know that he has heard no complaints or negative 
feedback from the manufacturers in the last six months and suggested that we continue to be 
transparent. What he has heard in the industry has been mostly complimentary and positive.  

 
SIQ 
Staff met with Zoran Svetik and Brandon Griffith from SIQ. SIQ is an applicant to become a licensed 
independent testing lab. Brandon is the Director of Business Development for the US market. He will 
become the main point of contact after the initial licensing process. Zoran explained that their test 
scripts are under review. These test scripts are the testing criteria SIQ will follow to ensure tribal lottery 
system compliance with the standards of Appendix X2 of tribal-state compact. Once they’re finalized, he 
will forward them to WSGC. We will look at the scripts, as part of the pre-licensing investigation, and let 
them know if we have any questions. We will also determine at that time if someone from our lab needs 
to visit as part of the on-site review to determine qualification for licensure, or if the Licensing 
investigators can obtain all of the information needed while they are there.  



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

4 
 

Educational Sessions and Keynotes Attended 
 
Tom Means, Melissa Valencia, Rodney Joubert, Logan Blazian and Donna Khanhasa attended several 
workshop/education sessions while attending the Global Gaming Expo. Combined, staff members 
attended approximately 35 Educational Sessions and/or Keynotes. The sessions found to be most useful 
and insightful are detailed below: 

 
Global Regulation: What Gaming Regs Should Be 

• As regulators, we should work with legislation, be engaged in the legislation process and 
drafting new language. 

• When writing legislation, make the language with not as many restrictions to change with 
modifying businesses.  

• Be involved up-front. 
• Be prepared if new legislation is enacted to allow sports wagering. 

 

Maximize Brainomics: The Economic Gains from Advancing Innovative Thinking 
• When attending a class or meeting, focus on the top 2 most relevant things.  
• You can build new brain cells. 
• Multitasking is harmful for your brain.  
• There could be more than one way to solve a problem.   
• Learn from someone with a different perspective. 

 

What Does the Constantly Shifting Landscape Mean for Regulators? 
• Illinois is slower to get new technology. They have a test lab and also use GLI. They do field 

evaluation as well. 
• New Jersey took a “Wild West” approach to skills-based gaming. They wanted all products in the 

market submitted there first. They concentrated on RTP and Player Disputes during testing. 
They want to be the first to market and have been extremely lenient on new technology. 

• A CEO of a gaming company thinks Nevada gaming is very collaborative with business. Hey says 
the not to blame regulation for lack of innovation, but the companies themselves. 

• Former Illinois regulator: “Saying No just doesn’t work anymore”. Illinois wants new products to 
succeed. 

• Head to Head eSports gambling CEO thinks this will be on the floor of casinos soon. 
• CEO of gaming company thinks that it’s powerful people inside the gaming industry that are 

holding back internet gaming, not the regulators. 
• Mobile Account-Based wagering. Former Illinois regulator sees it coming, but not quite yet. 
• Skills-based gaming has been out on the market in the US (NJ and NV) for about 9 months and is 

not quite the smash hit it was hoped it would be. 
 

eSports Betting 
• eSports betting is betting on video games. 
• Including Skins betting, the market is $5 billion. 
• Gaming lounges are being built in casinos for players to play and bettors to bet. 



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

5 
 

• TV and internet viewers are at 20% growth per year. 
• Most companies treated eSports betting exactly the same as sports betting, but now they are 

giving it their own platform and treating it as its own entity. 
• Millennials are not traditional gamblers and games of skill/chance are not catching on. It’s a 

feeling that eSports lounges will be successful in attracting younger gamblers. 
• Twitch is a major online outlet for eSports, similar to a live YouTube. 
• Game Integrity - one operator works with the ESL or E-Sports League to ensure honest 

competition, no match fixing, cheating etc. 
• Pinnacle sports betting doesn’t offer head-to-head betting, only large tournament betting. 
• Skins Betting - uses gaming skins ie limited availability cool looking weapons and armor as real-

value objects with which to gamble. 
• A representative for a leading skills-based gaming company, Gamblit, questioned one of the 

operators about the integrity of the eSports setup, citing no ITL certification and little to no 
regulation. 

 

iGaming Policy – Another Year Later 
• IGaming policies are driven by economics. 
• Slow pace is due to legislation. 
• There is no real interest at the Federal level when it comes to iGaming and the Wire Act. 
• In 2013, three states had iGaming policies: 

o Nevada 
o Delaware 
o New Jersey 

• In 2017, the same three states have iGaming.  
• 5 states have passed on-line lottery. 
• Michigan may be the best model for on-line lottery. 

 

Gaming Leaders: View from the Top 
• There is strength in the industry and the industry is growing. 
• The American Gaming Association (AGA) presented their Strategic Plan 2020. 

 

Scams, Cheats & Blacklists: Current Fraud and Casino Crimes 
• Discussed criminal cases – there were 808 total for 2016. 
• Different case types were theft, fraud acts/cheating and minor gambling. 
• Employees account for around 20% of arrests. 
• Theft trends include counterfeiting, armed robbery and chip grabs.  
• Fraudulent acts include bet manipulation, card switching, collusion, dice sliding/scooting, 

software flaws and glitches and card crimping.  
• One case was brought up regarding a Konami Vibrant 7 machine having a flaw in a locking 

mechanism on the side. Once key is inserted and turned, bar is released and door opens. A man 
hit the bar and the belly door opened, without a key. With a screwdriver, he could pull out cash 
can; this took 9.5 seconds to do. Konami is putting an alert out about this. (There are no Konami 
products currently in Washington) 



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

6 
 

 

Policy Pitfalls to Avoid 
• US Tribal gaming – faster growth than commercial growth. 
• 2/3 of revenue in Las Vegas is coming from Non-Gaming. 
• iGaming Revenue – Nevada, Delaware and NJ (only legal iGaming jurisdictions). 
• NJ is far outperforming the other 2 states. There are now 2 tribal operators in NJ – which is 

believed to be a contributor. 
• Millennials less engaged by gaming – they are looking for shared experiences and 

choices/empowerment. 
• Nothing in the gaming industry is really compelling or inspires Millennials to gamble. It is very 

intimidating for them to sit at a poker table and place sports bets – a generation of doing 
everything via text. They don’t know the verbiage or way to do things. Those tools are not 
utilized in the gaming industry today. 

• A lot of advantages in tribal gaming that don’t exist in commercial gaming. Tribal casinos have 
more committed/loyal customers. Class II continues to be an underutilized option for revenue. 

 

  



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

7 
 

Stakeholder Meetings 
 
Staff had the opportunity to meet with a number of Washington State licensed manufacturers, those 
interested in becoming licensed manufacturers, licensed individuals and/or those involved with house-
banked card rooms in Washington and other regulatory agencies such as the Washington State Lottery 
Commission, whom were interested in products that would cross both regulatory jurisdictions. 
 
Meetings with licensed manufacturers included Galaxy Gaming, GPI, Masque Publishing, Bally 
Technologies, AGS, NRT, and Cammegh Limited. These meetings gave licensees an opportunity to 
discuss current issues with staff such as stock interpretations of Washington Administrative Code and 
gambling equipment, approval of new proprietary table games, the gambling equipment approval 
process, and licensing implications of business changes.  Manufacturers also demonstrated products to 
include shufflers, dealing shoes, table games, roulette wheels and readers, and progressive and 
bonusing systems and discussed compliance with RCW, WAC, and tribal-state compact. 
 
Meetings with potential or current licensing applicants included SIQ, an independent testing lab 
currently in pre-licensing, Aristocrat, also in pre-licensing and Gamblit. These meetings offered the 
opportunity to discuss upcoming investigations and an ability to demonstrate products. Staff had the 
opportunity to view and understand how the products and/or games worked.  Then had a discussion 
regarding potential barriers to approval and/or issues with compliance with RCW, WAC, and tribal-state 
compact. Gamblit is interested in marketing table games with both elements of skill and chance. 
 
Meetings with licensed individuals involved in the gambling industry in Washington allowed staff to 
discuss gambling concepts or new table games ideas and how these concepts and ideas may or may not 
comply with current RCW and WAC. If barriers were identified in WAC, staff shared proposed rules, the 
rule change process, and the gambling equipment review and approval process. 
 
Staff also attended a meeting with a manufacturer and staff from the Washington State Lottery 
Commission. The manufacturer demonstrated a ticket validation system for use with Tribal Lottery 
Systems that would also be capable of selling, dispensing, and redeeming lottery tickets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



WSGC 2017 G2E Summary Report 

8 
 

Manufacturer Meetings 
 
Staff also had the opportunity to meet with most of the Tribal Lottery System manufacturers currently 
licensed in Washington at G2E. Meetings with Everi-Payments, Everi-Games, IGT and M3 offered 
manufacturers the opportunity to showcase new products that they hope to deploy in Washington.  
 
Meetings with Eclipse, Ainsworth, Rocket, SciGames Bally, Bluberi and NRT gave manufacturers an 
opportunity to discuss a variety of topics with staff including upcoming submissions for 2018, current 
issues with software, the testing timeframes in the lab and new processes for testing going forward. 
Manufacturers also demonstrated products to include new player terminal cabinets, software upgrades, 
new game themes, display monitors and discussed compliance with Appendix X2 of tribal-state 
compact. 
 
Staff also met with Aristocrat, a manufacturer currently going through the pre-licensing process. This 
meeting allowed for the discussion as to what specific requirements are detailed in the Tribal-state 
compact, the testing process in our lab, subsequent approval and deployment in Washington.  
 



G2E 2017 Overview
November 16, 2017
Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge, Licensing
Melissa Valencia, Lab Administrator, 
Electronic Gambling Lab



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

Preeminent show for gaming-entertainment industry
October 2 – 5

Sands Expo, Las Vegas
26,000+ attendees

450+ exhibitors
Keynotes, educational sessions, exhibit hall, stakeholder meetings

G2E: Global Gaming Expo

http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20banner.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20banner.PNG


WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

Bud Sizemore, Commission Chair
Ed Troyer, Commissioner

Senator Conway, Ex Officio
Representative Sawyer, Ex Officio

Amy Hunter, Deputy Director
Tom Means, Chief Information Officer

Melissa Valencia, Administrator, Electronic Gambling Lab 
Rodney Joubert, Lead Testing Engineer, Electronic Gambling Lab 
Logan Blazian, Lead Testing Engineer, Electronic Gambling Lab 

Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge, Licensing
Cathy Harvey, Agent in Charge, Tribal Gaming

Donna Khanhasa, Special Agent, Licensing
Brian Lane, Special Agent, Regulation

Commissioners & Staff Attended



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

Regulators Roundtable & Lab Tours



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Global Regulation: What Gaming Regs Should Be
Maximize Brainomics: The Economic Gains from 

Advancing Innovative Thinking
What Does the Constantly Shifting Landscape 

Mean for Regulators?
eSports Betting

iGaming Policy – Another Year Later
Gaming Leaders: View from the Top

Scams, cheats & Blacklists: Current Fraud and 
Casino Crimes

Policy Pitfalls to Avoid

Educational Sessions & Keynotes

http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/sports%20betting%20session.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/sports%20betting%20session.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/panelists.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/panelists.PNG


WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Stakeholder Meetings

http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20collage%201.jpg
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20collage%201.jpg
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20collage%202.jpg
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20collage%202.jpg


WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Manufacturer Meetings

http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/Aristocrat%20TLS%20IMG_0030.JPG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/Aristocrat%20TLS%20IMG_0030.JPG


Questions?
Jennifer LaMont, Agent in Charge, Licensing
Melissa Valencia, Lab Administrator, 
Electronic Gambling Lab



 
 
The presentation will be handed out at the meeting.  


	November Commission Meeting Cover
	November Agenda
	Tab 1 Oct. 12Minutes
	Tab 1 Oct. 19 Special Meeting Minutes
	Tab 1 License Report
	Defaults
	Special Olympics
	Tab 6 Rules Package #3
	Tab 10 Ducks
	Tab 7 Rules Package #1
	Tab 8 Rules Package #2
	Tab 9 Electronic  or Mechanical gambling equipment
	Tab 3 G2E
	Tab 2 Legal and Records Update



